TORRANCE C OUNTY

COMMISSION MEETING
APRIL 24, 2019
9:00 A.M.

FOR PUBLIC VIEW, DO NOT REMOVE



Torrance County

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BCC)
Ryan Schwebach, Chair
Kevin McCall, District 1
Javier Sanchez, District 3

Wayne Johnson, County Manager

ADMINISTRATIVE MEETING
AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 24th, 2019 @ 9:00 AM

1. Call to Order
2, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
3. Changes to the Agenda
4. PROCLAMATIONS
A, COMMISSION: National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week
5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS
6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
7. PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS
8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve the April, 10 2019 Torrance County Board of
County Commission Minutes

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
A. FINANCE: Motion to approve the Consent Agenda

10. PUBLIC HEARING/ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY
CODE

A. COMMISSION: PUBLIC HEARING — ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE #
Approval of issuance of up to $675,000,000 of Torrance County Industrial Revenue
Bonds to provide funds to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping and
installation of the La Joya Wind LLC Project.

Torrance County Page 1



Administrative Meeting Agenda April 24, 2019

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

B. COMMISSION: FINAL ACTION on Public Hearing held on January 23, 2019.
Motion to adopt Ordinance # (Previously Identified as Ordinance # 2019-01); increasing
the number of Commissioners on the Board of County Commissioners from 3 members to 5.

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A. COMMISSION: Ratify FY18 Audit Report presented at the March 27, 2019
Torrance County Commission Administrative Meeting as Resolution No. 2019

B. FINANCE: Budget Increase, Resolution No. 2019
C. FINANCE: Line Item Transfers, Resolution No. 2019
APPROVALS

A. MANAGER: Motion to authorize the County Manager to execute the Children,
Youth and Families Department Alternative to Detention Services for JJIS Contract for FY20.

B. DWI: Approval of Local DWI Grant Amendment — 19-D-J-G-31 Amendment 1

C. FIRE: Discussion & Approval of Torrance County Fire Department fund roll over to
the State Fire Marshal’s Office for all Fire Districts

D. FIRE: Discussion & Approval of Torrance County Fire Department Policy &
Procedures/SOG Manual Section 1. Sections 2, 3 and forms were approved by previous
Commissions.

E. SHERIFF: Deputy Salary increase, Patrol Sergeant Positions
DISCUSSION

A. GRANT COORDINATOR: Consideration of New Mexico True Grants.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting:

Signing of Official Documents

Torrance County Page 2



Agenda Item
No. 1



Agenda Item
No. 2



Agenda Item
No. 3



Agenda Item
No. 4-4



National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week
April 14-20, 2019

WHEREAS emergencies can occur at anytime that require police, fire or
emergency medical services; and,

WHEREAS when an emergency occurs the prompt response of police officers,
firefighters and paramedics is critical to the protection of life and preservation
of property; and,

WHEREAS the safety of our police officers and firefighters is dependent upon

the quality and accuracy of information obtained from citizens who telephane
the Torrance County emergency communications center; and,

WHEREAS Public Safety Telecommunicators are the first and most critical
contact our citizens have with emergency services; and,

WHEREAS Public Safety Telecommunicators are the single vital link far our
police officers and firefighters by monitoring their activities by radio, providing
them information and insuring their safety; and,

WHEREAS public Safety Telecommunicators of the Torrance County have
contributed substantially to the appret ion of criminals, suppression of
fires and treatment of patients; and,

.WHEREASeacI;"( her has exhibited com ion, und wding and

professionalism during the perfarmance of their job in the past year;
THEREFORE Be It Resolved that the Board of Commissioners of Torrance
County declares the week of April 14-20, 2019 to be National Public Safety
Telecommunicators Week in Torrance County, in honor of the men and
women whose diligence and professionalism keep our County and citizens
safe.

Signed this day of

Governor/County Executive/Mayor

New Mexico, Torrance County




Agenda Item
No. 5



Agenda Item
No. 6



Agenda Item
No. 7



Agenda Item
No. 8-4



DRAFT COPY
TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION MEETING
APRIL 10, 2019

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: RYAN SCHWEBACH -CHAIRMAN
KEVIN MCCALL -DISTRICT 1
JAVIER SANCHEZ -DISTRICT 3
OTHERS PRESENT: WAYNE JOHNSON-COUNTY MANAGER
LINDA JARAMILLO-CLERK
YVONNE OTERO-ADMIN. ASST.
1.) CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chairman Schwebach calls the April 10%, 2019 Commission Meeting to order at 9:04 A.M.

2.) PLEDGE AND INVOCATION

Pledge lead by Chairman Schwebach

Invocation lead by Nick Sedillo

3.) CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

There were no changes made to the agenda.

4.) PROCLAMATIONS

There were no proclamations presented.

5.) CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS

There were no certificates or awards presented.

6.) BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

There were no board or committee appointments made.

7.) PUBLIC COMMENT AND COMMUNICATION

a.) Albert Beckwith states that this is his 4™ time coming before the Commission in an attempt
to resolve an ongoing issue. He sent this issue to Congresswoman Grisham that stated she
would send all needed materials to this area to have it rectified. It is now a year and a half later

and nothing has been done. Mr. Beckwith has pleaded with the owners that said it would stop.
It hasn’t and he is unclear as to why it continues. He was told by the locals that he shouldn’t

Page |1



stand up and be an American. Mr. Beckwith states that he is a disabled veteran that fought for
this country and is proud of America. He has a right to speak and live in peace and harmony
with his neighbors and not have his space invaded.

Mr. Beckwith states that he has applied for a speed limit sign to be put up in his road and
nothing has been done. The offender has a speed limit sign down his road. Mr. Beckwith states
that he is offended by these people 7 days a week. He has gone to the Sheriff’s Department as
instructed, and was told that the men did not have the time to go out and hold his hand. Mr.
Beckwith states that he was not asking for sympathy, he was asking that the laws be enforced.
This could very easily be rectified, there are children in the area and people that like to ride
horses and bicycles. There is no law enforcement that patrol the McIntosh area.

Chairman Schwebach tells Mr. Beckwith that they should speak one on one after the meeting.

Wayne Johnson would like for Chairman Schwebach and Mr. Beckwith to know that he went
out to the location. There is no speed limit posted in the area of this property. Mr. Johnson has
instructed the road supervisor to place a sign in that area. The major issue as to whether or not
someone is speeding on a county road, is not a Commission issue. There is not enforcement
power other than the Commission setting the speed limit. Enforcing the speed is a Sheriff’s
Department issue. It is up to that department to decide whether or not they will go out and
police the area or set up a speed trap. We will speak with the Sheriff to see what he can do
about this issue.

8.) APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A.) COMMISSION: Motion to approve the March 27%, 2019 Torrance County Board of
County Commissioners Minutes

Chairman Schwebach asks for a motion to approve the March 27%, 2019 Torrance County
Board of County Commissioners Minutes.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to approve the March 27%, 2019
Board of County Commissioners Minutes. Chairman Schwebach seconds the motion. No
discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

9.) APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A.) COMMISSION: Motion to accept FY2018 Audit Report presented March 27%, 2019
Torrance County Commission Administrative Meeting.

Chairman Schwebach asks for a motion to accept the FY2018 Audit Report.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to accept the FY2018 Audit
Report. Chairman Schwebach seconds the motion. No discussion, all Commissioners in
favor. MOTION CARRIED

Page |2



B.) FINANCE: Motion to approve the March 22", 2019-April 13%, 2019 Consent Agenda.

Chairman Schwebach asks for a motion to approve the March 22", 2019-April 13® 2019
Consent Agenda.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to approve the March 22"¢, 2019-
April 13®, 2019 Consent Agenda. Commissioner Sanchez seconds the motion. No discussion,
all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

C.) FINANCE: Line Item Transfers 2019-22

Chairman Schwebach asks for a motion to approve Resolution 2019-22 Line Item Transfers.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve Resolution 2019-22
Line Item Transfers. Commissioner Sanchez seconds the motion. No discussion, all
Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

10.) ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE

Wayne Johnson states that Ms. McKinney is not present at the moment to present item A. She
is stuck in traffic and should be here shortly and requests that the Commission proceed with
item B and return to item A once Ms. McKinney is present.

B.) COMMISSION FINAL ACTION: Motion to approve an ordinance authorizing the sale
of up to a maximum $60,000,000.00 of Torrance County Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance
the acquisition, construction, and equipping of the NM Renewable Data Center II, LLC (Public
Hearing)

Wayne Johnson states that Jill Sweeny, from the bond council, is present and will go over this
particular IRB for the Commission.

Jill Sweeny, is with the firm of Sherman & Howard. This firm is representing the county in
this IRB matter. What the Commission has before them is an ordinance authorizing the
issuance and sale of Torrance County, NM taxable IRB (NM Renewable Development Data
Center 11, LLC) in the amount of $60,000,000.00 to finance solar energy generating facilities
for PNM. This project consists of the project site and various facilities and overlaps the city of
Moriarty. This project is mostly in the unincorporated areas of the county and the electricity
will serve Facebook (in Los Lunas) and other facilities.

The purpose of this particular ordinance is to authorize officers to take final action to move
towards a closing on or before December 31%, 2019. Ms. Sweeny will now stand for questions
if there are any.

Chairman Schwebach asks if there are any questions from the Commission. There being none
he asks for a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-01 authorizing the sale of up to a maximum
$60,000,000.00 of Torrance County Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance the acquisition,
construction, and equipping of the NM Renewable Data Center II, LLC.

Page | 3



ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to approve Ordinance 2019-01
authorizing the sale of up to a maximum $60,000,000.00 of Torrance County Industrial
Revenue Bonds to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of the NM Renewable
Data Center II, LLC. Chairman Schwebach seconds the motion. No discussion, all
Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

A.) COMISSION: Motion to approve introduction and publication of an ordinance
authorizing the sale of up to a maximum of $75,000,000.00 of Torrance County Industrial
Revenue Bonds to finance development, construction and install the High Lonesome Mesa
Wind, LLC project.

Jill Sweenv from Sherman & Howard representing Torrance County introduces Katherine
McKinney with the Modrall Sperling Law Firm who is representing the company in this
project. What is before the Commission is an Ordinance, on first reading, relating to the
issuance of taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds for the High Lonesome Mesa Wind, LLC
repower project in the maximum amount of $75,000,000.00. This will finance wind
transformers, generation equipment, and associated electrical equipment. This will replace old
and warn out facilities that were financed by the county in a 2008 IRB. This will be a
standalone IRB and the 2008 will remain in place. There will be a sister transaction in 2019
should it please the Commission.

The PILOT negotiations will cover both the 2008 & 2019 IRB. Ms. Sweeny would like to draw
the attention of the Commission to section 2 of the ordinance that the bonds will be issued for
the purpose of financing, acquisition, and installation of the repower project. The amount will
be $75,000,000.00. The developer will be the company and the project is located entirely
within the county on Mesa de Los Manos 9 miles south of the Village Willard.

The purpose of this ordinance is to approve the sale and terms, conditions and interest rate, and
authorize the approval of documents and the delivery of bonds as we move forward. This is a
first reading and the commission as not considered this project. We will be back May 8™, 20109.

Katherine McKinney states the she is with the Modrall Sperling Law Firm and they are the
firms representing NextEra in this matter. This is a refurbishing of the equipment that was built
with the 2008 bonds.

Chairman Schwebach states that he is familiar with the project, but is not sure that the public
1s and requests that Ms. McKinney give a brief summary about the project.

Katherine McKinney states that this will be within the confines of what currently exists at the
High Lonesome Mesa project. This project will be putting in new turbines and new equipment
that is more up to date. This is within the Estancia School district. The PILOT negotiations
have been completed, and they adopted a support resolution on March 12%, There is no new
property involved, it is a re-tooling of the project that is already in place.

Chairman Schwebach asked if a motion to approve the introduction and publication of the
ordinance and to schedule a public hearing is what is needed.

Page | 4



Wayne Johnson replies, yes, that is correct.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve the introduction and
publication of the ordinance and to set up a public hearing authorizing the sale of up to a
maximum of $75,000,000.00 of Torrance County Industrial Revenue Bonds to finance
development, construction and install the High Lonesome Mesa Wind, LLC project.
Commissioner McCall seconds the motion. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor.
MOTION CARRIED

11.) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A.) MANAGER: Motion to approve AR 2019-23, a Resolution Establishing a Mileage and
Per Diem Policy rescinding Resolution 2011-31. This resolution ties the county’s policy
directly to mileage and per diem rules promulgated by the Department of Finance and
Administration and defines the County Manager as the “Agency Head” for the purpose of
administering rules.

Wayne Johnson states that this came about as a result of a violation of a current county policy
that has been in place since 2011. This policy specifically requires that before anyone leaves
the state for out of state travel, and wants to have actual cost approved, they must bring the
request to the Commission before they leave. This is not the way it is normally done, it is
primarily a management function. We are also establishing rates tracked with the mileage and
per diem act and DFA rules. When things change we would have to go in and change the
numbers in the resolution making things difficult to tract. From and audit and management
stand point, it is easier to tie our mileage and per diem with DFA since we follow their rules

anyway.

From a management stand point approving travel out of state or approving an actual receipt
basis for that travel is a management function, as long as the request does not exceed the
approved budgets that you have approved as a Commission. It is difficult to get before the
Commission before travel. So for the ease of operation from a management stand point and
compliance purposes we are rescinding the old resolution and reset with this resolution should
the Commission approve it.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve AR 2019-23, a
Resolution Establishing a Mileage and Per Diem Policy rescinding Resolution 2011-31.
Commissioner McCall seconds the motion. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor.
MOTION CARRIED

B.) MANAGER: Motion to approve AR 2019-24, the Torrance County Information
Technology (IT) Policy.

Wayne Johnson states the Commission has a policy before them that is derived from the state
msurance policy. Mr. Johnson states that he will have Mr. Nick Sedillo come up and present
this as he has done a lot work on it and adapted it for Torrance County use. This was a re-
occurring audit finding, so an IT policy needs to be in place.

Page | 5



Nick Sedillo states that we had some deficiencies in our audit findings. They were governance
over IT functions, updated IT general policies and procedures, documented disaster recovery
policies and procedures, user setup, and termination policies and procedures. Those were the
four orders he was given when he created this policy. They are going to be tightening their
belts. The end users will be required to be held to a higher standard when it comes to Torrance
County infrastructure and the computers that are assigned to each user.

Technology is always changing and Mr. Sedillo will make it a point to revisit this policy every
year. Right now a majority of the computers are running windows 7 and Microsoft will be
ending support by the end of 2020 this requires all computers that are being brought into the
county be on the Windows 10 operating system. Mr. Sedillo states that he has addressed all 4
bullet points and hopes that we won’t see this as a recurrence in a deficiency for the upcoming
audit.

Wavne Johnson states that there were also some deficiencies in the personal use policy. We
found that in a few instances county equipment was being used for personal use even to the
extent of being used as a personal email county for purposes of pay-pal, amazon, etc. Mr.
Johnson would like to remind the county that anytime you use a piece of equipment that
generates a record that is a public piece of equipment, such as your computer, you are
generating a public record that is subject to the inspection of public records act. This policy
prohibits use of county property and IT infrastructure for personal use. This policy does allow
for incidental use such as. If a family member needs to reach you on the phone because they
can’t reach you any other way, is an incidental use, but if you are running your business from
that phone that is not an incidental use.

Nick Sedillo states that you would probably not want to be doing anything that would get you
interviewed by Larry Barker. To all the county staff please keep everything on a professional
level. With this policy it will give us the ability to police use.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve AR 2019-24, the
Torrance County Information Technology (IT) Policy. Commissioner McCall seconds the
motion. Chairman Schwebach asks if there is any discussion. Commissioner McCall would
like to thank Nick for all of his hard work. No further discussion, all Commissioners in favor.
MOTION CARRIED.

12.) APPROVALS
A.) COMMISSION: Election of Vice-Chair

Wayne Johnson states that there are two parts to this. Under the new rules of the Commission
that were passed it requires the selection of the Vice-Chair. We are transitioning from Wells
Fargo Bank to US Bank, and for the purposes of being able to sign for the county, the Chair is
not always available, so we need a Vice-Chair that will be able to sign in the event the Chair is
not available.

Page | 6



The way the rules dictate you handle this is by taking nominations from the Commission or
self-nominate as to which one of you would like to be appointed as Vice Chair. There is no
need for a motion, the majority vote would appoint the Vice-Chair.

Commissioner Sanchez asks what are the full duties and responsibilities if the Vice-Chair.

Wayne Johnson the other additional duties aside from signing documents would be to run the
meeting if the chair is not available. We do allow for teleconference attendance for the
meetings. It is difficult for the chair to be on a teleconference call and run a meeting. In those
instances or if the Chair is not available the Vice-Chair would run the meeting.

Chairman Schwebach asks who is willing to be Vice-Chair. He opens the floor for
nominations either for themselves or someone else.

Commissioner McCall would like to nominate Commissioner Sanchez as the Vice-Chair.

Chairman Schwebach asks if there are any other nominations. There being none, the floor is
now closed for nomination, and states Commissioner Sanchez is now the Vice-Chair.

B.) ASSESSOR: Pictometry software approval for Assessor, Sheriff, and Fire

Jesse Lucero states that in January they had a presentation from Eagle View regarding this
software. The pictometry software is an oblique imagery that will assist the Sheriff, Assessor,
Fire, and other departments, to be able to view structures in 3-D. This is a tool that would be
valuable to his office. Mr. Lucero shows the pay schedule and how it will be paid through a 4
year contract. We currently have imagery that is provided to the office free of charge. It has
been shared with a few people and with the public when they come in and want to view the
images, the office has come to realize that the imagery is very outdated. Mr. Lucero states that
appraisals are moving in a new direction and this oblique imagery would be vital to his office
now and in the future.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Lucero what they are approving today. There was some talk
about which plan they wanted to go with and cost. What is the Commission being asked to
approve today?

Jesse Lucero states that it is his understanding that the County Manager has to sign the
contract. The funding will come from his office but since it falls under Torrance County the
County Manager must sign. Since the manager has to sign it has to be brought before the
Commission for approval.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Lucero if the funding for this will be paid for by his
department and budget.

Jesse Lucero states that it will be coming out of the Assessor’s, Sheriff, and Fire Department
budgets.

Page | 7



Commissioner MecCall states that the amount is $23,674.42 from the Assessor’s budget,
$23,674.42 from the Fire Department budget, and $6,000.00 from the Sheriff’s budget, is that
correct?

Jesse Lucero replies, yes, that is correct.

Chairman Schwebach states this is for a 4 year time period, correct?

Jesse Lucero replies, yes, that is correct. When we did the presentation we had many
department heads who see the value in this software, but finding the money within their
department is a different story.

With the pictometry software we will be able to use 100 licenses actively at the same time. Mr.
Lucero has been in communication with Fire Chief Gary and we are going to share the licenses
with entities that have not been able to decide if they want to participate in this project. When
the second flyover is done, Mr. Lucero will share the information with these entities and see if
they can help us pic up the tab for the second half.

Commissioner McCall asks if they can speak upon the value this would have for the Fire
Department.

Lester Gary states that the advantage the Fire Department would gain from this pictometry is
they can do an aerial view of a structure fire, a wild land fine, and there is database software
that the fire department has to look at square footage and acreage, and can look at incidences
prior to the fire or event that took place. This will also help us to assist with the Assessor’s
office when they get a complaint on a home that has burned down and is no longer in place the
department can look at the area in question and get the actual square footage of that location.

Commissioner McCall asks Mr. Gary if this can be pulled up quick enough as they are on
route to the structure fire.

Lester Gary replies, yes, it can be pulled up immediately. All of the first route apparatus have
tough books in them. With the new phones and hot spots the department can get onto the
internet and get that data quickly. If we were to get called out to a fire today, it will also assist
us to be able to look at the arca and see if we will need to evacuate and put a shelter in place.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Gary what area of the budget this will be pulled from.

Lester Gary states that he has spoken to each of the Districts Fire Chiefs and a portion of the
funds will come from each of the districts. Once the project is complete it will be accessible by
each district.

Commissioner McCall asks how many flights we will be getting.

Jesse Lucero states that this is a 4 year payment plan and the first flyover will be in the fall of
this year. We will pay off the first flight and they will fly again in 2 years. Mr. Lucero states
that he spoke with Chairman Schwebach about this and explained that there will be a first fly

Page | 8



over and then when the second flyover is done in the same area for assessment purposes, it will
show the difference in value of that area. Torrance County is not booming, therefore we may
not see a lot of difference. Mr. Lucero Asked Chairman Schwebach for his recommendation,
the second flyovers will be done in the mountain areas. This will benefit the Fire and Sheriff
departments.

Commissioner MecCall ask if the purple areas on the map presented, are those the areas that
will have the first flyover.

Jesse Lucero states that those areas in purple are the municipalities. The pictometry is going to
flyover using two different resolutions. It will fly at a 9 inch resolution and then a 3 inch. The
reason for this is that the inch resolution will give us a view of the roof tops and the 3 inch will
allow us to see the structure as if we were right in front of it, it will give us a 3-D view of the
structure.

The benefit of this software to his office will help lead to desktop appraisals. We can also
overlay this data over the current GIS maps. This information will transfer over to the database
in the Assessor’s office that is used to appraise property.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Lucero what kind of training is necessary to process this data
once the imagery in available and who will be providing that training,

Jesse Lucero states that Eagleview will be doing the training. Mr. Lucero states that his deputy
has some experience using this software. In 2007 Torrance County had pictometry. The issue
was that the delivery system was not user friendly because it was only on the server. This
current system is used by the cloud and that is why the Sheriff and Fire departments are able to
use it out on the field. Nick Sedillo also has a little experience with pictometry as well.

Chairman Schwebach states that this is the way to go but he has a lot of questions he would
like answered before he can approve this. The budget is the main issue especially when it
comes to the money from the Fire Department based on what their needs are. There are several
things that we need to look at such as keeping the employees once they get trained, Chairman
Schwebach would like to speak with the company and see if there are other options. Is this the
best option? Have we bid this out to other companies or is this a sole company. Chairman
Schwebach would like all these things answered before he can feel comfortable moving money
around.

Jesse Lucero states that the money will come out of his department’s maintenance line item. It
is already in his budget for things of this sort. He cannot speak for the fire budget. Pictometry
is not the only software out there. What makes this this software unique is that that can put it
into the Assessor’s cama database. There is no other company around that can do this.

Chairman Schwebach states that the advantage to this is that you pictometry to verify
measuring because the software is in front of you. Unless a customer gets their new assessment
and says it’s incorrect. Are the measurements you see on the screen accurate?

Page | 9



Jesse Lucero states that they are hoping to incorporate another software into this call sketch
verification. In 2018 his office re-appraised the entire Moriarty area. When the appraisers are
in the field they can only go into properties that have open entry ways. If they are closed or say
no trespassing we cannot enter the property. We noticed that we have a lot of missing
information from the 2018 appraisal. The pictometry will allow for desktop review and be
more accurate. This will remove a lot of human error and help the office to run better. In the
end it will show a big return on the investment and that is what everyone wants to see.

Chairman Schwebach asks how many counties in New Mexico are currently using this
software.

Jesse Lucero states that he believes there are currently 15 counties using pictometry. Cibola
County is the most recent county that started to use pictometry.

Chairman Schwebach asks with the pay schedule, is the pay enough for the employees in
your office. Will they stay once they are trained? Have you thought that through? Once they
are trained, do we run the risk of them moving to another county because the salary is better?
Chairman Schwebach is focusing on investment of dollar spent and to make sure it operates
down the road. He is also concerned with the $23,674.42 coming from the fire budget for the
next four years.

Jesse Lucero states that he met with the Treasurer, Interim Finance Director, Ms. Garland and
the County Manager to discuss the budget and do discuss salary increases. They have a plan.
Getting this tool is not going to keep staff. What is going to keep the staff is a fair living wage.
Mr. Lucero states they will be coming before the Commission soon to discuss this plan.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Lucero if there are time constraints on this, is it critical that
we get this done today?

Jesse Lucero states that the company only flies twice a year. The fly in the spring and in the
fall, the reason for this is because they have to fly when there is no foliage. They will not put
Torrance County on the flight schedule until this contract is signed. The flight will be
anywhere from August through December. They need make sure they can see the structures
and there 1s not inclement weather. We won’t know the dates until we get the contract signed.
What he does know is that once the flyover is complete, they will have the information in their
hands within 30 days. We will also have access to imagery areas there are a mile beyond the
county line in any direction and this is also beneficial to fire and Sheriff.

Commissioner McCall asks Mr. Lucero what this would do for his staff. If you can sit at your
desk and measure a house as opposed to driving out to the property, are we looking at a
reduction in staff? How does this affect your staff budget?

Jesse Lucero states that it is not replacing jobs. This is an additional tool. It is going to reduce
the budget for fuel and maintenance cost on the vehicles. We will have more accurate
appraisals. We are in our protest period and we get a lot of questions. People state that we are
playing mental warfare and changing the value on his property. There is a lot of education we
do for the public, this is a measuring tool to assist in accuracy.

Page | 10



We just had an evaluation and went out to each of the commissioners properties and they
notice some discrepancies. This software will take away the human error, it will in no way take
away a person’s job. We will still have to do site visits. We are currently doing about 8
appraisals a day, with pictometry we can do 15-20 a day. We have 34,000 parcels in this
county, it will take us a lifetime to appraise the entire county. This is not a want this is a need
and that is why Mr. Lucero is urging the Commission to sign this today.

Commissioner McCall asks Mr. Lucero if his budget can give more than what is stated. He is
also concerned with the fire budget.

Jesse Lucero replies, no, it cannot.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Lucero if we wait until the next Commission meeting to get
this signed, will it put us out of the running this year.

Jesse Lucero states that it is hard to say. He is in constant communication with the
representative from pictometry. Mr. Lucero has asked him several times when he can be placed
on a space, but he has never gotten a clear answer. He doesn’t think it would be a deal breaker
if it is approved at this meeting or the next. We have done the research, Fire Chief Gary has
looked into his budget, and this will be beneficial to the county.

Chairman Schwebach states that he agrees with that, but he still would like some time to visit
with Mr. Gary and the County Manager to look at the budgetary items.

Commissioner Sanchez states that pictometry would be an asset to the county. He is also
concerned with the financial issues. What expenses will we save on and what revenues will we
gain on. He would like more information on this as well. Good points were raised, it’s a
tremendous impact, and well worth it to make the extra effort and look into what will be the
best way to fund it so we may move forward.

Chairman Schwebach states that in his opinion; yes, we can do this. He needs more
knowledge before the Commission begins moving money around in the fire budget. He has
very big concerns about it. He would like to approve this in two weeks with a plan of where the
money is coming from, how it is spent, and a time schedule. This can either be through a
special meeting or one on one conversations with the manager, fire chief, and one of the
Commissioners. Contact the company and let them know what is going on why this is not
signed yet.

Commissioner McCall requests that the Fire Chief put on record will he benefit and how he
would benefit from spending the $23,674.42.

Lester Gary replies, yes, his office would benefit from this. This will also benefit the fire
department and the citizens in the county by pre-fire planning. Last month he meet with
residents in Deer Canyon. Their biggest issues is with evacuation in the event of a fire. This is
also a concern with the mountain towns. With pictometry this can help us establish an
evacuation route. In other areas it will take time and training. We will be given 100 active
licenses and each one of the local jurisdictions will be given 1 license and will have the chance

Page | 11



to evaluate it and see its benefit. Once the second flyover takes place we will ask them if they
would help with the second payoff. Within the county we have 7 districts, and there will be
about $3.000.00 taken from each district from the safety budget. Mr. Gary chose this line item
because it is a safety issue for the county. It will be beneficial for the departments and fire
fighters, once we get into an area, we can use it to look at an evacuation route for the fire
fighters and the communities.

Chairman Schwebach states that Mr. Gary brought up another issue. With the licensing, we
have volunteer fire fighters with access to this information. What kind of background checks
will be done and how will we keep things private.

Lester Gary states that he is not sure. The access will only be placed in the Tough Books that
is in the First Out apparatus. This will not be accessed in the station computer. The
accessibility will have to be worked out. This will only be given to the fire chief and not the
individual fire fighters. He understands the concern of the Commission, as they used to have
access to the radio frequency of the Sheriff’s department, but due to security issues they are not
allowed that access anymore.

Commissioner McCall tells Mr. Lucero to ask the company if different users can have
different access to the software. Just have permission per user.

Chairman Schwebach states a chain of events and policy. This technology introduces a whole
different way of thinking.

Jesse Lucero states that this is not live imagery. It’s a flyover. He will bring up this concern.
He does believe he can set specific access and grant it how they want. This also went before
the EMW gas board, they were reluctant on giving assistance. Mr. Lucero states that they
would like to extend the use of a license to Eddie O’Brien to continue to show the benefit of
this. It is a considerable cost and a lot of unknown makes people nervous. He has done a lot of
research on this.

Chairman Schwebach states that he agrees with this and he understands it. He would like to
table this until the next meeting with intentions of moving forward. He would like to meet with
the salesman from the company, the County Manager, the Fire Chief and Mr. Lucero. There
are specific questions he wants lined out before moving forward.

Commissioner Sanchez states that we can move forward with this and two weeks should not
matter. In order to get all of the concerns cleared up, it is a good idea to wait the two weeks and
then proceed.

Jesse Lucero asks Chairman Schwebach to clarify if he wants the sales representative to come
down and met in person, or will a conference call suffice?

Chairman Schwebach states that he can meet with him one on one and have his concerns
answered and then bring it back to the table, if the other Commissioners are fine with that,
unless they have questions they would also like answered.

Page | 12



Wayne Johnson would like to remind the Commissioners that the Open Meetings Act applies,
so the sales representative would have to talk to the Commissioner individually.

Chairman Schwebach states that he has some questions that he can get answered on his own
and then at the next meeting or through the manager we can lay down the ground work on
some of the policies and the money. There may be better avenues than pulling from the fire
department and he wants to look at that.

Jesse Lucero stated that he thought there were other avenues. They road department, the gas
company, and a lot of other players saw the value in this. Having budget constraints did not
allow those entities to but up the money. Mr. Lucero and Chief Gary stated they would take the
brunt of this first project and show the benefit with hopes the others will jump on board for the
second half. Mr. Lucero states that he will set up a conference call and see if Mr. Garcia can
show up at the next meeting.

Commissioner McCall states that is a good idea. Get him here for the next meeting and in the
mean time we can look at the budgets and try to get all that ironed out. If we like what he has
to say we can move forward.

NO ACTION TAKEN, ITEM WILL BE TABLED UNTIL THE NEXT COMMISSION
MEETING ON APRIL 25%, 2019.

C.) Clerk: Proposal to establish Voting Convenience Centers in Torrance County

Linda Jaramillo states that the Commission has before them her proposal to move Torrance
County to Voting Convenience Centers in all polling places and to consolidate precincts. The
first set of documents are the current precincts and a map of their locations. She has also
enclosed a list of what the precincts will look like after they are consolidated. Ms. Jaramillo
states that she also included past voting information and how she came to the conclusion of
how to run elections in Torrance County more efficiently using VCC’s. Ms. Jaramillo states
that she will read for the record what the precincts will be just so that the public is aware.

Precincts 1 & 2, which are the Estancia High School and the Estancia Senior, and would like
consolidate them both the Estancia High School Gym. In the mountain towns we have
precincts 3, 4 & 16, which are Torreon, Manzano & Tajique and would like to consolidate
them to the Torreon Community Center. In precinct 5 there are so many voters in that area it
will stay the same as a stand-alone precinct. In precincts 6 & 13 we have the Moriarty Catholic
Center and the Moriarty Civic Center and would like to consolidate those to the Moriarty Civic
Center. In precincts 7, 14, & 15, which are the Mclntosh Senior Center and Calvary Chapel,
and would like to consolidate those to a new polling place, the McIntosh Fire Department.
Precinct 8, which is the Willard Community Center, will be a stand-alone VCC because of the
distance from the other precincts. Precincts 9 & 10 have already been consolidated to the Dr.
Saul Community Center.

Ms. Jaramillo states that she is proposing to make precincts 11 & 12, Encino and Duran, all
mail precincts. In her calculations she gives a reason why she wants them to be all mail. The

Page | 13



Absentee & early voting site location will be here at the Administrative Building and the
alternate voting site and the Moriarty Civic Center.

There is also new method of voting, this method is called mobile voting. We will take a ballot
on demand machine, a computer, and a voting machine and set up at a specific location. This
will happen during early voting and Ms. Jaramillo has proposed the site be set up at the Tajique
Community Center for 2 days, the Manzano Center for 1 day, and the Dr. Saul Community
Center in Mountainair for 2 days. The precinct workers will go to these areas, set up, and give
these people extra voting time. On Election Day everyone will go to their consolidated
precinct, but with VCC’s no matter where you live in the county you can go to that precinct
and vote as a ballot will be printed specifically for you at that precinct, which is exactly like it
is with early voting now.

Ms. Jaramillo states, for the record, that she has been running elections for 22 years and her
plan was to stay with traditional voting for the sake of the voters so that they could have their
traditional voting. Since this local election law passed she is required to move to VCC’s as this
1s the only way it will work. It is also time for change. There are only 5 counties that are not
traditional, Torrance County being one. It is a better way of voting and anyone can go to any
precinct to vote. People have said that it is tradition and she is all for tradition but when the law
makes you do something you have to do it.

Chairman Schwebach states that with precincts 11 & 12 being all mail, he is not sure that he
agrees with that. Chairman Schwebach asks Ms. Jaramillo to explain why she is proposing this.

Linda Jaramillo states that there are 171 registered voters in precincts 11 & 12, 93 in Encino
& 78 in Duran. When we deliver the voting machines to these precincts it take about 3 hours
for the whole process. Another thing is with the precinct workers, who she totally respects, it
will be more complicated to run Voting Convenience Centers. They will be running computers.
Ms. Jaramillo is changing the whole concept of voting. This will streamline everything. It will
make things easier for the office, 171 ballots will go out and return postage will be paid. Ms.
Jaramillo states that she will have to send out letters to the voters letting them know that she
will be making this change. If we don’t do them all mail they will have to stay traditional and
will not be able to vote at a VCC unless they vote provisional.

Chairman Schwebach asks Ms. Jaramillo to explain why they won’t be able to use the Voting
Convenience Centers.

Linda Jaramillo states that they can vote there, but they will be marked as traditional and will
have to vote on a provisional ballot. It will be counted, we will just use a different method.

Commissioner McCall asks Ms. Jaramillo if a mobile site can be taken to Encino and Duran.
This will allow them to have the option to physically vote as opposed to mail.

Linda Jaramillo replies, yes, we could do that.

Chairman Schwebach states that he is looking at the numbers and out of the 171 voters 103
went in to vote on Election Day. We will have to ignore the $2,200.00 vs. the $324.00. All the

Page | 14




other precincts have that option, what can we do to make sure that 11 & 12 have the same
option.

Linda Jaramillo states that she could send the mobile voting site to Encino and Duran after
it’s done in Mountainair. One day can be done in Encino and then the next day in Duran.

Chairman Schwebach states that it would be the right thing to do even if it is more costly and
we can look at that when it comes,

Wayne Johnson asks what the mobile voting site is doing on Election Day. Where will it be
located?

Linda Jaramillo states that it will be down. It doesn’t exist after the last Saturday before
Election Day.

Wayne Johnson asks if the equipment from that mobile voting site be used at either Encino or
Duran on Election Day. They won’t just have the early voting option, but use that equipment to
open up a VCC so that they have that option on Election Day as well.

Linda Jaramillo replies that the distance between the 2 is too far and that is why you have to
group them together.

Chairman Schwebach states that is ok with everything that was discussed with the exception
of precincts 11 & 12.

Linda Jaramillo states that we do need public input. It is mandated by law that we have a
public hearing so that the public gets to give their input.

Chairman Schwebach states that this is what Ms. Jaramillo is proposing and now a public
hearing will be needed in order for it to be approved, is this correct?

Linda Jaramillo replies, yes, that is correct. If the Commission agrees with this, Ms. Jaramillo
will place it on her website. This will give the public the option to go in and look at her
proposals.

Commissioner McCall states that a mobile voting site will be done at Encino & Duran and
asks if Ms. Jaramillo is going to change that in the proposal.

Linda Jaramillo replies, yes, that is correct.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Ms. Jaramillo why so many changes being made. It seems that
that there are a lot of meetings and headaches for just a savings of $4,775.95. It is very little
savings.

Linda Jaramillo states that it is because the legislatures passed the local election law. Ms.
Jaramillo states that the clerk is now going to be running all school district elections, municipal
elections, and all soil & water conservation district elections. In order for her to run these

Page | 15




elections she has to go to VCC’s. There is no way that a ballot can be created or stay traditional
with that many entities involved. We are mandated to go to VCC’s. She could have a VCC in
each precinct, but it requires a lot of training for her precinct workers that are used to the
traditional voting. This streamlines the process. She has run elections for 22 years and tried to
remain traditional. With herself and Linda Kayser retiring, it is best that they streamline this
process and have it in place for future clerks.

It is scary when a person comes into an office with no experience, or you could have a clerk
that comes in with experience. Elections are very difficult, it was the hardest thing she had to
do when she first took office. She is trying to set this up for future clerks and the people of the
county so that election process will continue to run in a smooth fashion.

Commissioner Sanchez asks Ms. Jaramillo to explain what this difference is between a
Polling Place and Voting Convenience Center.

Linda Jaramillo states that a Voting Convenience Center is a ballot on demand with a voting
machine and a computer at the site. When a voter comes in the poll worker will look the voter
up and the ballot on demand will print that voter’s specific ballot. No matter what area of the
county you are in the ballot on demand will print your specific ballot. This eliminates ballots
being stacked all over which is the traditional way of voting.

Commissioner Sanchez states that since this is mandated by law, and people would be able to
vote at any site, you will need to consolidate? Why do we need to consolidate precincts?

Linda Jaramillo states that for the local election the VCC’s have been mandated by law. A
copy is in you packet explaining the law and that the County Clerk shall have VCC’s for the
local election. We need to consolidate the precincts for efficiency.

Commissioner Sanchez states, for $4,700.00 efficiency is why we need to consolidate.

Linda Jaramillo states that she wasn’t going to put the cost in the packet but was asked by
someone to place it in the proposal. She was going with this because she is mandated to do so
by law.

Commissioner Sanchez states that it is important to him to make sure, even if it’s inefficient,
we need to maximize voting for the people. It seems that by having more polling places you
maximize that opportunity.

Linda Jaramillo states that she is giving Tajique 2 extra days of voting, an extra day for
Manzano, and 2 extra days for Mountainair. This is giving the people that opportunity to be
able to vote at their usual polling place, this will maximize the voting.

Commissioner Sanchez states that there could be come gray area. This could cause so much
confusion for the voters that they could decide they just don’t want to vote. They are used to
going to one area, if that changes it could discourage the people.

Page | 16



Linda Jaramillo states that it is her job to educate the people on this. She will go to every
precinct and have meetings with the people to inform them of the changes.

Commissioner Sanchez states that very few people will go to the meetings. The ones that
need to attend are the ones that won’t show up. People can count on the system that has worked
for the past 22 years, this new system requires a lot of leg work, and there could be a lot of
misunderstandings.

Chairman Schwebach says there is nothing that says we can’t stay with what we have and
also have the VCC’s. The staff, poll workers, and the budget would be overwhelmed. In Ms.
Jaramillo’s opinion it cannot be done efficiently and that why she needs to consolidate.

Linda Jaramillo states that this is brand new to her as well. Ms. Jaramillo and Linda Kayser
have kept things traditional for 22 years. As everyone else was moving forward with the
VCC’s, she chose to stay traditional because she did not trust the technology. Now that
everyone has been with VCC’s for many years she trusts it. Many people have asked her why
she has not gone to VCC’s, but it won’t be at every polling place. Ms. Jaramillo states that she
will be sending out letters to all the voters letting them know what is going on.

Wayne Johnson states that he was an early supporter of the VCC’s. They have been in use in
Bernalillo County for about 10 years. The people like this better because they like the
convenience of being able to go anywhere to vote. This did require some consolidation of
precincts because the equipment is very expensive. There are no pre-printed ballots for every
precincts. Your districts are different in certain areas of the county, therefore making your
ballot a little different from someone else’s. You had to have enough ballots in the precincts
plus order extra to make sure you have enough for that precinct. This is where you will see a
lot of the cost savings, not a big savings, but some. It is more technical for the volunteers and
poll workers, before you had a pre-printed ballot, you ran it through the machine, and you’re
done. In this case, you will look this person up on the computer, they sign, the ballot is printed,
and they vote it. Mr. Johnson believes that this provides greater access to voting than the
traditional way of voting, and the state is trying to move away from that.

Linda Jaramillo states that this is not the only thing that is complicated. We are now going to
be able to register people all the way up until the Saturday before the clection. Ms. Jaramillo
states that she has to compile this and get ready for all these changes. Ms. Jaramillo asks the
Commission to trust her on this and to trust that she knows what she is doing. She has had lots
of experience in this. The people will feel that they are being disenfranchised, but she has no
choice but to do this. The people will not be disenfranchised. She has gone over this plan over
and over so that Tajique, Manzano, Torreon, and Mountainair would get something out of this.
She thought that all mail would be good for Encino and Duran, but she is willing to take VCC
to them. She has a lot of friends in the county and does not want to hurt anyone, but she is the
clerk and she has to abide by the law.

Chairman Schwebach states that this in inevitable that we are going to the VCC’s and he
agrees with it. How much time will the conversion take and how many double precincts we
have while this happens. We have a large community, and on Election Day the voters will say
they have been voting at that precinct for so many years. The voters need time and sending out

Page | 17




a letter may not educate them enough. He would encourage more and information. In his
opinion it may take a couple of election cycles for the people to understand.

Linda Jaramillo states that there has been a lot of changes in the past. With school districts,
school elections, soil and water conservation elections, and municipal elections, the people are
always confused on where to go, this process will eliminate that. This will streamline all
elections in Torrance County.

Chairman Schwebach states that the bottom line is that we are looking to approve today is
advertise this and have a public meeting down the road.

Commissioner McCall states that voting is more convenient as it has ever been. He likes that
you can go into a precinct and vote whether it is your precinct or not. There is another issue
that after the census there may be new district lines. With this process they will go to the same
polling place and have their ballot printed.

Linda Jaramillo states that she has had to consolidate precincts before and got a lot of flak
from people. She has gone as far as making large signs at the old precinct so that people will
know that they have to vote at a new precinct. She is very thorough on educating the voters on
this. She understands that some won’t get it, but there will be signage everywhere. The
information will be on her website, and herself and Linda Kayser will start the campaign of
educating the voters of this process.

Wayne Johnson states that in the budget discussions, one of the things talked about was a
public education campaign for the changeover. We are going to look at some additional funds
for the Commission to approve for the public education campaign on behalf of the VCC’s. This
will come before the Commission during the budget process.

Commissioner Sanchez asks what the Commission is looking at today. There is a proposal on
the table. Are we approving all these changes in one shot?

Wayne Johnson states that the Commission has a proposal from the Clerk. She has heard your
concerns about the mail in portion of the plan. The motion could include a direction for her to
work on a VCC or mobile voting model and not do the mail in portion of the ballot.

Chairman Schwebach states that we are not approving this, we are approving the publication
of this to adopt an ordinance down the road, in which case we will approve, and then can be
amended and changed prior to adoption.

Linda Jaramillo states that she will make the changes that the Commission requested.

Chairman Schwebach asks what the time frame for when this needs to be adopted, when will
we need to have the public hearing?

Linda Jaramillo states that the Commission will need to approve the polling places in June or
July.

Page | 18



Michael Godey states that he has a few concerns with these VCC’s. What is the potential for
corruption and if someone could mess up the ballots. Manzano is about 10 miles from Torreon,
this could eliminate the possibility of that area voting because it is inconvenient for the people.
Is it possible to keep the Manzano Precinct open for voting because of the distance?

Commissioner Sanchez asks why can’t we keep all the current polling place and make them
as a VCC. This would maximize the voting because you can vote anywhere.

Linda Jaramillo states that it sounds great, but we’re dealing with precinct workers. This is a
whole new system and would like to train a smaller amount of precinct workers. Once they are
out and she is here at the office and voting people, she would like a staff at the places that are
tech savvy. Like herself, a lot of the poll workers are getting older. She needs poll workers that
are familiar with computers and technology. Stream lining this would make this more efficient.
When you have a new system and you also throw in registering people up until a few days
before elections, it’s a lot to handle. Ms. Jaramillo states that she has to learn this and she needs
to pass on this knowledge to her precinct workers. For the efficiency of voting she has come up
with this plan so that the voters aren’t disenfranchised and her precinct workers will be trained
for this.

She has a small staff of herself, Linda Kayser, Yvonne, Sylvia, Genell, and 100 precinct
workers that are good. She and Linda Kayser have ran very good elections. It takes a lot of
effort to run an election and she is here sometimes till 1 in the morning to make sure no one is
disenfranchised and everything runs smooth. We went through 9,800 voter registrations 1 by 1
to make sure everything was accurate.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he doesn’t think one public hearing will do to get all this
information out. There may need to be meetings at every precinct and try to get the voters
opinions. From his perspective, elections should not be efficient, in his opinion efficiency has
no impact on elections. If you were asking for more money for elections, then he would agree
with giving more money to run the elections. When it comes to the workers he does not think
they should inconvenience the voters for the benefit of election efficiency or ease of operation
for the poll workers. If we need more poll workers or more training then we should apply that
resource where it is needed. We need to maximize the participation of the voters. He is willing
to look at and sees the value of consolidating the precincts. He needs to understand the
mechanics more of what goes along with this system.

Linda Jaramillo states that efficiency is what elections are all about. Every single ballot must
count. That is her job and duty to the constituents.

Commissioner Sanchez states that the amount of money spent to count every vote should not
be measured by efficiency. Whatever it takes to get every vote to count is what needs to
happen.

Chairman Schwebach states that we need to put in the word accuracy. If the staff is
overwhelmed then there is inaccuracies and failures. There is an in between that can be meet.
A meeting in every precinct may not be necessary, maybe the Commissioners calling people in

Page | 19



the precinct and the education campaign will work. By approving this to be public doesn’t
mean we are approving this, it can be adapted to certain needs. We need to get some feedback.

Commissioner Sanchez states he agrees. The key is to gauge what impact it will have on the
voters. Some public meetings will be key. We need to ask those that have never been asked
voice their opinions. They will help us to understand what impact our decision will have on
them.

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to allow the clerk to continue on
establishing Voting Convenience Centers. Chairman Schwebach seconds the motion.
Commissioner Sanchez asks what the motion means. Chairman Schwebach states that there
is a motion and a second to allow the Clerk to move forward with her preliminary plan by
mandate. This will start the process where the Commission comes in within 3 months. Linda
Jaramillo states by June or July the Commission will approve the polling places. Chairman
Schwebach states that this will give the Commissioner the opportunity to say that this is a
working draft, this is how we want to tweak it, this is where we want to have the meetings, and
this is our concerns. Linda Jaramillo states that she is willing to go to every polling place. The
biggest change will be the mountain towns and Encino and Duran, and she is willing to go
there to talk to the voters. Commissioner Sanchez states that most of the changes are in his
district. He asks why Torreon was selected. Linda Jaramillo states because it was in between
Manzano (6 miles) and Tajique (2 miles), it is centrally located. Tajique is still getting 2 extra
days to vote, by the use of the mobile voting unit and Manzano is also getting 1 extra day to
vote. They also have the option of going to Torreon on Election Day to go vote if they missed
the mobile voting days. We just have to educate the people. There will be an election every
November from here on out and the polling places will be uniform from this point on.
Commissioner Sanchez states that is the need arises, can we change aspects of this? Linda
Jaramillo replies, yes. Chairman Schwebach replies, yes, that is why we need to move
forward with this. Linda Jaramillo states that she needs for the Commission to understand, in
her many years of experience, she know the ins and outs of elections, what work best for
efficiency, and accuracy. Chairman Schwebach states that as we move forward with this we
may need to look at a budget change or to facilitate what the Commissions wish is based on
Clerks ability and staff. Linda Jaramillo thanks the Commission for their consideration and it
is greatly appreciated. No further discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION
CARRIED

D.) FIRE: Approval of Volunteer Fire Fighters PERA Annual Reporting

Lester Gary states that the Commissioners have before them is the annual reporting for PERA
for the volunteer fire fighters. Mr. Gary states that he has been working with Mr. Joseph
Trujillo, from the PERA board. These forms are normally required to be turned in by March
31*. We have been granted an extension due fact that the forms were left to be filled out by the
individual districts, and after a random search we found that some of the peoples forms had not
been turned in for the past 15 years. The volunteers have missed out on their PERA retirement.
What PERA board is doing is researching on who they have PERA forms for and who they do
not. We are going back for those that have not had a PERA form turned in and getting the
forms in place for them.

Page | 20



Prior to Mr. Gary coming in, some of the PERA forms were being turned into the Torrance
County HR Department. When HR was doing the forms for the employees they were sending
in those forms for the volunteers at the same time. Once they got up to Santa Fe, because they
were two different forms, the forms for the volunteers were being kicked out and we were not
aware of that. We are now working with the PERA board to get all of our members back into
the system. There was legislation that was going to allow the fire department and the volunteer
fire departments to go back to 1982 to update everyone’s PERA forms, but is not sure if that
was passed. He is working on getting everyone back on board and if they can’t go back to 1982
they will be able to go back 2 years.

These forms are required and they are required to be signed by the Commission Chair so that
everything be submitted in a timely fashion and the volunteers can get what is coming to them.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve the Volunteer Fire
Fighters PERA Annual Reporting. Commissioner McCall seconds the motion. No discussion,
all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

E.) FINANCE: Approval to pay unauthorized Fire Apparatus mechanical work by NM
Apparatus.

Noah Sedillo states that he is seeking approval to pay unauthorized Fire Apparatus mechanical
work by NM Apparatus. Mr. Sedillo states why he is requesting this per the Torrance County
Purchasing Policy Resolution 2018-32. Mr. Sedillo states that section 1.6 reads “Unauthorized
and Questionable Purchases. Any purchase which is not legally and appropriately approved
within the County budget or by other County Commission action, or which does not
substantially comply with the provisions of the state statutes, particularly the state procurement
code, and the provision of this policy, shall be considered an unauthorized county purchase and
thereby not subject to payment by the county. The county hereby declares and establishes that
it will assume no responsibility for payment of unauthorized purchases. Furthermore, any
individual initiating or otherwise executing any unauthorized purchase is solely responsible for
payment. All questionable purchases shall be submitted by the County Manager for County
Commission review and determination under the provisions of this policy. Section 1.7 reads
“Commission Approval of Unauthorized Purchases. Any purchase determined to be
unauthorized shall be considered for approval of payment at the public meeting of the County
Commission. Unauthorized purchases shall not be approved or processed for payment prior to
Commission approval, and shall be attached to the purchasing transaction file for audit

purposes.

Mr. Sedillo states that there is a repair order in house from the Fire Department which is
approved by Chief Lester Gary. On the bottom left corner Chief Gary would sign off on these
orders to be able to obtain a purchase order from his office. This work was done in the amount
of $7,720.89 solely on the vendors end. We are attempting to make this right and move
forward. This will be documented and placed in the vendors procurement file in the event
future discrepancies occur.

Wayne Johnson states that he has requested Mr. Sedillo get quotes on the work that was being
done. Mr. Johnson asked Mr. Sedillo if he has received those in house yet.

Page | 21



Noah Sedillo replies, no, he has not. He is waiting on one vendor to reply and another vendor
on part numbers.

Wayne Johnson states that after discussion with the county attorney we have been enriched by
this work. It was work that needed to be done and was done outside of the procurement
process. Our policy states that we will not be responsible for this, but if we go to court over this
we are likely to lose. Mr. Johnson states that he is working with the vendor to abide by our
policy, and see if the county was ripped off, and provide payment for the amount of work done.

Noah Sedillo states that the initiation of the repair order was to be a quote. The work was done
without receiving the proper paperwork and that is what has brought us here.

Wayne Johnson states that had the vendor been able to provide us with any authorization from
a county employee, a signature, or some sort of verification/authorization, we would be having
a different discussion. This would not be about the vendor it would be about a county
employee not following policy.

Chairman Schwebach states that we owe a vendor money for services rendered. We don’t
have proper procurement or no bids. We are at a whim saying this is the proper amount with no
comparison, but we are working on this.

Noah Sedillo states, yes, that is correct.

Chairman Schwebach asks if we have the vehicle back in our possession and we need to get
this man some money, is that correct.

Noah Sedillo states that he would need to check with Mr. Gary to see if the vehicle is back in
our possession.

Chairman Schwebach states that it sounds like we do owe the man money, but how much do
we owe him. The more important question is where was the failure and why wasn’t it done
propetly in the first place. Chairman Schwebach asks if the vendor is present, if so does he/she
wish to speak.

Lance Brown from New Mexico Apparatus states that the vehicle was brought to him after it
had failed a pump test that was done by another company. There was a delay in getting repairs
done so someone realized the truck was still out of service so it was brought to Mr. Brown’s
attention and was told to get the truck working That was the directive he was given. As far as
no one knowing the repairs were being done and no one authorizing the repairs, it was
authorized verbally over the phone. Mr. Brown states that he informed the County Manager of
this. This happens frequently in his experience.

The parts for these trucks are not easy to get. Mr. Brown states that he spoke with fire
administration and stated that they needed to get moving with the repairs. The parts needed to
be sent off to make sure they received the correct parts back. The fire administration said that it
was fine let’s just get this done. Mr. Brown went ahead with the repairs. He has several text

Page | 22



messages from fire administration as well as the district fire chief asking when the truck was
going to be completed. As for no one stating they knew nothing of this, Mr. Brown had to
contact Noah and ask him what the status with the payment was, this was the first time he had
heard there was an issue. When they picked up the truck no one said to stop and say there was
a problem. His company proceeded with the repairs and got the truck back in service.

When someone brings him a vehicle to be repaired, he repairs it. Mr. Brown states that it is not
his responsibility to follow procurement procedures that is for the employees.

Commissioner McCall asks Mr. Brown the reason the vehicle was brought to him, what
needed to be repaired.

Lance Brown states that there were some drive shaft issues. Due to the lack of maintenance on
the trucks it popped a U-Joint during the pump test. They also dropped off a list of various
other repairs that needed to be done on the truck. After the repairs were completed his
company did another pump test and discovered a whole other list of problems. Those issues
were fixed and a pump test was done again before the vehicle has to be placed back into
service.

Commissioner McCall asks Mr. Brown who authorized the oil change, the fuel filter change,
anew tire, etc.

Lance Brown states that the district fire chief requested a full pm as well as a bad tire on the
truck. The U-Joints there include the whole drove shaft assembly and 3 carriers. Mr. Brown
has a text message stating that he should replace the other issues, what do you think of this. To
clarify he said he text the fire personnel and asked if he should follow through with repairs, and
he said yes.

Chairman Schwebach asks Mr. Brown if he has done this type of work in the past without the
proper paperwork that this is just standard course of business for him.

Lance Brown states that he previously had a contract with the county. They would drop off a
repair order or work request, fix it, and then submit the invoice to the county for payment. In
this situation he called to make sure that it was ok for him to proceed with the repairs. He
didn’t want to put in time and energy for repairs if he was not going to get paid for his work.

Chairman Schwebach states that we need to pay him but there is a question on whether or not
the paperwork is correct because of proper procurement.

Wavyne Johnson states that they are working on correcting the procurement issue. He has to
protect public dollars, so that means authorization. We did not have a current contract in place,
which is where a lot of this is coming from. This is an attempt to make sure that the county got
the value for the dollars that they were supposed to get. In the future if there is not a contract in
place this could fall on the vendor. According to the policy the county should not pay him, but
we do not want to go down that road.

Page | 23



Lance Brown states that he understands that policies are in place for employees on the
county’s end.

Wayne Johnson states that this could be on the county’s part but he doesn’t know who made
the authorization, be it verbal or written.

Commissioner Sanchez asks about the text messages.

Wayne Johnson states that the texts are post approval. They were asking when the truck was
going to be completed not giving authorization.

Lance Brown states that the texts are acknowledgement that the repairs are being performed
with them not knowing that they do not have the proper paperwork.

Wayne Johnson states that the whole point is to get the authorization to fix the procurement
problem. We need to make sure that the county is getting the value for the dollars spent that we
are supposed to protect as fiduciaries of this county. We are here today because the intent is to
pay the vendor. It is Mr. Johnson’s obligation to make sure that this does not happen again, on
the county side as well as the vendor side.

Commissioner Sanchez asks how this will be done.

Wayne Johnson states that at this point the Commission will need to authorize him to proceed
with payment on this invoice. It is not at his discretion as the County Manager to authorize this
per our policy. He will continue to get the quotes from the other vendor and add it to the paper
trail. If we are audited we have to go through the correct process. Mr. Johnson does
recommend payment on this. He also wants to make sure that this procurement violation does
not happen again.

Commissioner MeCall asks if we are subject for this turning up on an audit.

Wayne Johnson states that this process will help cure that.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve payment.
Commissioner Sanchez seconds the motion. No further discussion, all Commissioners in
favor. MOTION CARRIED

F.) MANAGER: Approval of Travel Reimbursement for training to Ft. Collins, CO for Tracey
Master.

Wayne Johnson states that this was the approval issue that we spoke about earlier. This is to
approve the reimbursement to Tracey Master for actual costs. All of her paperwork is in order,
all the receipts have been received by the county, and all of her documentation is appropriate.
Ms. Master has acted in good faith on her approval to travel. This is like the previous item
where it is a good way to cure that particular policy violation.

Page | 24



ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to approve the Travel
Reimbursement for training to Ft. Collins, CO for Tracey Master. Commissioner Sanchez
seconds the motion. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

G.) COMMISSION: Discussion of and possible action regarding county New Mexico True
Certification (Commissioner Sanchez)

Commissioner Sanchez states the during the course of trying to find a funding source for the
grant application that the Commission approved at the last mecting, he had the opportunity to
look into the New Mexico True Certification. There is a grant available through them called
the Cooperative Marketing Grant. This grant could be used to supplement an idea that will be
forthcoming.

They will be holding some work sessions to be talk to potential applicants about this grant. It
may be something that the county should attend so that we are aware of what it offers. The
application period for this grant just opened and it closes in May. The next meeting will be
held April 24", 2019 in Albuquerque. This would be a suitable opportunity for us to send a
representative from the county to get information on this grant.

This grant is very intricate and you have a specific service in mind that you want to market.
They will have a team come to assist that county leverage and partner up with the New Mexico
True label.

Commissioner McCall asks if this is a matching grant.

Commissioner Sanchez states that he is not sure. From what he has researched so far it does
not look like it is a matching grant. If anyone has an opportunity to attend this meeting and get
the information to see if it will be helpful to the county, it would be appreciated.

Commissioner MeCall asks if Cheryl Allen knows anything about this grant.

Cheryl Allen states that she does not know anything about this. Trying to put something
together with a May deadline is not a good idea. Going to the meeting and getting all the
information would be useful so that something can be put together for next year. That is a
better idea.

Commissioner Sanchez states that this is a good idea as well. He doesn’t think that we have
anything to request at this time. It would be useful to get the information and work it into
something for next year.

Commissioner McCall asks if this grant has to do with tourism because that is what New
Mexico True is, correct.

Commissioner Sanchez states that this does not have to be tourism related. It can be any
product or service.

Page | 25



Commissioner McCall asks who will benefit from this, will it be the county, private business,
government, who exactly will this benefit.

Commissioner Sanchez states that it can be done a few different ways. Private businesses can
apply but so can government and municipalities.

Chairman Schwebach states that he would encourage Ms. Allen to attend the meeting and get
all the information she can on this. Chairman Schwebach states that he knows very little about
the New Mexico True Certificate, but what he does know it could be beneficial to the county.
He instructs the County Manager to select a representative to attend the meeting on behalf of
the county

NO ACTION TAKEN, DISCUSSION ONLY.
13.) DISCUSSION
A.) P&Z: Staff report, P&Z recommendation on the Orion Wind Resources, LLC

Steve Guetschow states that on April 3" 2019 Torrance County P&Z Board heard a
representation from representatives from Orion Wind Resources, LLC a division of Orion
Renewable Energy Group, LLC regarding a Special Use change in zoning application for the
development of a wind powered electric generating facility (wind farm) in multiples sections
and portions in Township 5 North, Ranges 14 & 15 East, Township 6 North, Ranges 14 & 15
East, and Township 7 North Range 15 East, N.M.P.M. Public opinion both in support of the
application and opposed to the application were also heard. The board was unanimous in a “do
pass” recommendation with the following condition:

“A determination 1s made as to the proposed location of the transmission line in time for the
proper notice to be given to stakeholders prior to the Commission meeting (public hearing).”

The applicants agreed to notify P&Z in writing by April 9" by the end of the day as to where
their transmission line route to link the proposed wind pattern project “Western Spirit”
transmission line to be determined or was determined or a request to defer the public hearing to
another date beyond the May 8™, 2019 Commission meeting. As of yet Mr. Guetschow has not
heard back from them.

On April 10", Mr. Guetschow received an email from Dale Lyon, project manager from
Souder Miller & Associates requesting the date of the public hearing to be deferred until the
June 12® Commission meeting. NO ACTION TAKEN, DISCUSSION ONLY.

14.) EXECUTIVE SESSION

A.) Limited personnel matters: Selection of County Attorney.
(Closed pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 10-15-1(H)(2).)

Page | 26



ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to enter into Executive Session.
Commissioner McCall seconds the motion. Roll Call Vote: District 1-Yes, District 2-Yes,
District 3-Yes. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

EXECUTIVE SESSION BEGINS AT 11:11 AM

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner McCall makes a motion to reconvene from Executive
Session. Chairman Schwebach seconds the motion. Roll Call Vote: District 1-Yes, District 2-
Yes, District 3-Yes. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 1:50 PM

Chairman Schwebach states that during executive session he is asking for a motion to direct
the County Manager to enter into negotiations with the hiring of the new county attorney.

ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to direct the County Manager to
enter into negotiations with the hiring of the new county attorney. Commissioner McCall
seconds the motion. No discussion, all Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

15.) Announcement of next Board of County Commissioners Meeting

Chairman Schwebach states that the next Commission Meeting will be held on April 24,
2019, 2019 in the Torrance County Administrative Chambers

*ADJOURN

Chairman Schwebach asks for a motion to adjourn the April 10®, 2019 Commission Meeting.
ACTION TAKEN: Chairman Schwebach makes a motion to adjourn the March 13%, 2019
Commission Meeting. Commissioner Sanchez seconds the motion. No further discussion, all
Commissioners in favor. MOTION CARRIED

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 1:51 PM

Chairman Ryan Schwebach Yvonne Otero-Administrative Assistant

Date

Page | 27



The video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance County NM
website, Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance County Clerk’s
office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on our local radio station KXNM.

Page | 28



Agenda Item
No. 9-4



Date: 4/18/19 10:01:45 (CHEC61)
CERTIFICATION

TOTAL CHECKS PRINTED 69

THE UNDERSIGNED MEMBERS OF THE TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS DO CERTIFY THAT THE CLAIMS ENUMERATED ABOVE WERE APPROVED
ALLOWED & DO AUTHORIZE THE WARRANTS AGAINST THE FUNDS OF TORRANCE COUNTY FOR THE SUM OF 142,883.61 ON ACCOUNT OF OBLIGATIONS IN-
CURRED FOR THE SERVICES AS SHOWN ABOVE FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 04/18/2019 WE CERTIFY THAT THE WITHIN NAMED PERSONS ARE LEGALLY
ENTITLED UNDER THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATUTES OF NEW MEXICO TO RECEIVE THE COMPENSATION STATED HEREIN. THAT THE SERVICES HAVE BEEN
PERFORMED AS STATED IN THE ACCOUNTS HEREIN, THAT THEY ARE NECESSARY AND PROPER, THAT THIS VOUCHER HAS BEEN EXAMINED, THAT THE
AMOUNTS CLAIMED ARE JUST, REASONABLE, AND AS AGREED AND THAT NO PART HAS BEEN PAID BY TORRANCE COUNTY.

SIGNED ATTEST BY

Kevin McCall Javier Sanchez Ryan Schwebach

Linda Jaramillo

THE UNDERSIGNED COUNTY TREASURER DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SUFFICIENT FUNDS EXIST FOR THESE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS TO BE ISSUED
ON THIS DATE AND DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT TO PROCESS THESE CHECKS

Tracy L. Sedillo



L0CZ-09-20%

SNOILYO INNWWODITAL
LNIWLHAYdEd dvod AINNOD

L9 LST

00°

LIAdHT v+

€T 00L ET

o0

TYLOL+ =

aNnd avoy

0S°TL6'ET

00°

ZLCT-28-T07%
L0ZT-28-10%
c0cz-28-10%

SADIAYIS TYNOISSHIOHA

00 LZ0'T
SST¥LT
Ly 6¥%Z

00"

SNOTLYD INQWNODATAL

00"

1304 FTIOIHIA
AILTIHS TYWINY

00"
00

Idd0x«

TO'TISS'T

8TEZ-S9~-T0%

YIVAYE/IONYNALNIYA INIWd TNOI

B6LEE

00-

€£022-59-10%

SLOYILNOD FONVNILNIVN

NIWLIVIIT ADOTONHOTL NOILYWAOANI

0T°0¥%5°S
80 8E6°S

00"
00"’

LITT+ *

6122-S5~-T0%
LOZZ-55-T0¥%

SHITIANS IDIJIIO0

SNOIIVYOINNWWODETIEL
INANLEYdET IINYNIA

6E°SL
85°8%

oo-

00"

IddId* »

L6°€2T

00

cLTZ-0s-107

SHOIAYES TUYNOISSEICHd

00°61TZ'T
9Z°60L'T

00

L0ZZ-0S-TO0V

SNOILYOINQWWODITAL

00

€0gZ-0S-10%

T3INd JTOIHAA
JITIIHS EINACD

T8 LZT L

00"

LITA »

L0°9S0°0T

00"

20TZ-0%-T0%

SHIYYIVS AWIL T1INd

S9°68T
S9°68T1

00"

LdIdx»

YOSSISSY ALNNOD

00

LOEZZ-0E-TOV

SNOILYDINNWWODITAL

SIOVILNOD HONYNILNIVIW

ST"921T
887082
S9°6L

00-
00

€0Z2-0€-1T0%

c0ZZ-0€-10%

TanNd JTOIHIA

FHANSYIYL ALNNOD

00"
00"

LAdAd» »

89°98%

SNOILYOINAWWOOETIL

L0ZZ-02-10%

€8°SS

0o
00

Ld3dx *

MAFTO ALNNOOD

Z8°SS

VYIVAEI/IONYNAINIVW DNIATIING

S1ZC-ST-T10%

S8°90L
6L°S9

00"

¢0TT-S1-10¥%

TaNd dTO0IHAA

NYNZINIVW SADIAI0 FAILVILSINIWAY

00"

LIdTdAunx

y9°¢LL

00~

SNOTILYDINNWWOOITAL LOZZ-01-107

€T LYE
LO" 67

00"

€0EC-0T-T0%

Tand JTOIHAA

YIADYNYW ALNIOD

0o*

Idd0x=

0Z°96¢

00"

6TZZ-80-10V%
20ZZ-80-107%

S3I174408 ADIJJI0

8T LY
»S°¥S

00"

TINd JATOTIHAA
ONINOZ ¥ ONINNVYId

00"
00

LAdEAxx

TL TOT

SLZT-SO0-T10%
tL2T-50-10%

SADIAYES T¥OHT

SIOIAYIS TV¥OIT €I
SEDIAYAS TYNOISSIIONd

£0T0S NOILVANNOA ALNNWWOD WNXI

T6°L000T
2% S0T‘€E

00"
00"
00"
00°
00"

ZLTZ-S0-TO¥

€0°v60°€
00°0S2’T
6E°SL

£V22-S0-10%
612Z-S0-10%
CTZE-S0-10%

SAITAANS IDIJLI0

HONVINSNI XIITIAVIT/AL¥EJ0OEd

0000002
LL TVE

00°
00"
00"

L0ZC-5S0-10V

SNOILYO INOWWODITAL

LAdTTAx» «

NOISSIWWOD XINNOD

2GS SLBLE

TILOL >+

aNfd TYIENED

LEL¥S'LS

00

*x TIYLOL ANYHED x=x

19 €68'2%T

00"

S1193d
6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 6102/S0/%0 TALNIdd SADTHD

SLIATAD

6T/81/% :93eQ

LP:T0:0T

NOIINEgIVYLSIA



402-60-2219 OFFICE SUPPLIES 253.17 00
402-60-2244 MACHINERY MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 10,240.00 .00



Lddd*

INFWLOTTY H¥Id FLVIS

88 £€Z'T

00"

AVLOL* »

NINAY LNEWIYYdEd TIId

88 £€Z°'2

00"

8VZC-26-11%

INIWdIN0T ALIIYS
XYl dASIOXHE UL $%/71

00°66¥%°2
00°66%°2

00°
00"

LA » »

NN NOILOALOUd HUIA ALNNOD

00°66%°'C

00

SHOIAYAS TYNOISSTIOUA CLZT-T6-60V

S1°18

00"

LOZZ-T6~-607

SNOILYOINANWNODITHL
INAWLOTIVY JYId JIVLS

L9991
Z8°LvT

00"

LA« *

a0~

IYLOL++

ddA ¥ LOTALSIA

287 L%

00"

CLZT-16-80%

SHADITAYIS TYNOISSTIOUG

ST°9ST
ST 8ST
¥8°t0€
Z8°0¥Z
00°gegz

00"

0€EZZ-T6-80%

SdITddNS TYDIJHN
SNOILVDINOQWWODITIL

00"
00"

L0ZZ-16-80%

Z02Z-16-80%

TaNd JTOIHIA

YIVAEY/HONYNIINIYW FTOIHEA

00"

T022-T6-80%

00

LdEd * +

INFHWLOTIY J¥Id dLYLS

90°9L0'T

00"

TYLOL » +

dia £ LOI¥YLSId

90°9L0°T

00"

602Z-T6-L0Y

ENVdO¥d /SYD/ONILYIH

T8 Tv0 ‘2

¥1°16

0o’

20ZZ-16-L07

TaNd FTOIHIA

INAWILOTIV J¥Td JLYLS

00"
00-

LdET# »

S6€°EZEL'T

TELOL* =

aia 1T LOTULSIA

S6°CET'T

00"

TLEZ-16-90%

SHOIAMES TYNOISSHACHA

a1 9L
887 €91

v6 18

00

8922-16-90%

INIWGINDE ALIIVS

00"

61ZZ-T6-930%

SHITTddNS FDIZJ0
SNOILYOINOWWNCOHETHL

00
00

L0ZT~-T16-90%

AN 24
S5 26T
90°€9L

2022-16-90%

TdNd JTOIHAA

LNAWLOTIY HAId HLVLS

00"

IdTdx»

00"

TYLOL *

ada ¢ ILOI¥LSIdA

90°€9L

00

CTLTZ-T6-S0%

SADIAYES TYNOISSEAIOUT

ST 18

00°

0€CZ-16-S0¥

SEITIANS TYDIAEN
HSVYHL/YEMIS /4ILYM
SNOILYD INNWWODETHL

€6 °SET
0€°2s¢
TS ST%
0L LTS

00"
00
00

0IZZ-T6-S0%

L0EZ-T6-590%

¢022-16-507
1022~-T6-S0%

TANg HTOIHAA

AIVAFY /IONVNIINIYA ZTOTHIA

00°
00

6€°0ZT'0T
66°22L'TT

LAdEd* =

INIWLOTIVY HUId ALVIS

00"

TYLOL »

qda s IDI¥ALSIA

66°TTL'TT

00"

BLCT-99-E0¥%

TOULNOD FOVWYA TYWINY

Y6 %02°6
¥6°%02°6

00

LITT* »

HONVE % Wavd

00"

TYLOL«*

HONYT ¥ WAV

¥6°%02°6

00°

0S2¢Z-19-20v

SHITddNS dOHS
dOHS Q¥0¥ ALNOOD

Lz 1Le
LZ TLT

00"
00"

Idd3dx+

95ZZ-09-20%

STYIYHELYW aVOod

SIIIATIND /SAYINDITLIVD

8E"TIS6°T
IT1°866

00"

95Z¢-09-20%

00"

sLIgaa
610Z/8T/%0 OL 6102/50/%0 TALNI¥Yd SADIHD

SLIAIED

ER=ln0°1a

6T/81/%

L¥P T0°0T

NOIILINaIJITYLSIAa



413-91-2202
413-91-2207

VEHICLE FUEL
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

668.09
420.30

00
00



T1T19Z-96-129

SINANZACYAWI ¥ SONIATING/QD
X1 S14I3D03¥ SS0¥D AVILNO ‘I¥LIdWD

26°260°2
TS €6T'S

00

LATqx»

00

XL SLAIFDEY SSO¥D AVILNO TVLIAVD

TS E6T'S

TELOL» »

00

819¢-%6-029
STZZ-¥6-029

SETDIHIA/OD

YIVATY/IONUNIINIYWN ONIATING
XL SLAIHOHAY SSOUD FUNLONALSYAINT

00 LLE'9Z
0% ZTES

00

00"

0% 606°9¢

LAdTAx »

00

LD FANLONYISYIANT ALNNOD

0%"606°92

TZLOL > »

00

8TZT-0Z-219

YIVATE/ADNYNIINIVH INIWG INDT

0L 0TT
0L 0TT

00"

A¥ITO ALNNOD

Ldd30+»

00"

aNNd INFWATA0T S.IUITO

TYLOL+ »

0L°0TT

00"

c0ZZ-0%-0T9

Tand FTOIHIA
JOSSASSY ALNNCD

96°69
96769

00"

EdTd*»

00"

TILOL* »

dNN4d NOILYNTIVYA AL¥Id0¥d

96°69

00"

20ZZ-75-509

0g-"S¢E T3N3 FTOIHIA
HOIOHD LIVYWS

00 -
00~

Iddd»»

0z’ st

S0ZZ-£1-G09

WAIA ¥3d/FOVITIN

6TXd INWED NOILNEIVLSIA IMJ

6978911

00"

69°891°1

LdAT* =

00°

68°€02°T

AYLOL* =

dANNd WRID0Yd ImMd

00"

LOZTZT-£8-%09
202Z-¢£68-%09

SNOILYOINNWWODITAL

[ o

o]0l
00

T304 ATOIHIA

XYL SWH/SNOILYDINANNOD

€8 9%

LddAx»

9¢£°06

00

anNfd ISNIJdId TIAID TEIOL* +

9€° 06

00"

6922-90-009

SNOILLAI¥DSENS/SANAd dIHSYTTWAN

00°SL

00

INAWIIN0E ALAAVS 8¥2Z-90-009

SZ LeT
SZ ZLE

0o

Ld3ds++

INIWIOYNYIW JASTH

00-

IELOLx +

WIO0dd ALIAVS

Sz 2ZLE

0o

202Z-€L-02%

TInd FTOIHAA

ONIHOLINOW ALINNWNOD

9T°¢s
3T €S

00
00

LdFq* »

SNOILYDINNWWODETAL LOZZ-0L-02Z%

8T L¥S
BT L¥S

00

LdHA*

HIVYD FLVWNI L1047

00-

FIYLOL* »

aNnd TIIYC

ve 665

v

0TZZ-16-81%
L02Z-16-81%

HSYIL/AAMIS / FLYM
SNOILYDINNWHOITTAL

9Z°'S9

00

9y oee
L8 LE

00

Z02T-16-8T¥

TaNd ITOIHIA

LNIWLOTIY F¥Id HIWLS

00"

LA« =

697 €CE

00

TELOL* »

ada 9 IOI¥LSIA

69°€TE

00-

ZLZT-T6-E1Y
8¥ZZ-T16-£T¥
QTZZ-T6-€T¥

SHOIAY¥IAS TYNOISSTIONd

ST°9¢
LO ¥OL
LZ SO0V

0o
00
00

LNAWNdINDE A1HAYS
HSYIL/JaMES /MELYM

51199a
6T02/81/%0 OL 610%/S0/%0 QALNINd SMOEHD

SLIIED

61/8T/% :93ed

ot

LY:TO

NOILINHITLSIA



TYLOL* »

ONISSAIAAY THEINA

SSTv¥P

00"

£T92T-96~-1¢9

LONYLSNODFY /NOTILONUILSNQD a¥0¥ /0D

09°00Z°¢€

00"



»+ STYLIOL ANYL »x

19 €68'2%1
19 €68°2%1

00
0g-

TOANVE

JANYE S0

oLee-08-116

SHOIA¥ES IYNOISSTA0Nd

SNOILJIYDSENS/SEANA dIHSHATWIN

L0°8YT

00
00

692ZZ-08-116

¥6°8G65'T
T0°959°¢€
TS5°9¢T
¥S°0%S
2e°8C

812C-08-TT6

JIVdTE/IDNYNIINIVIN LNIWIINDE

00°

S1ZZ2-08-116
L0TZ-08-116

JIVASTA/IDONYNIINIVIN DNIATING

00

SNOILVOINNWAODITIL

00

Z0CZ-08-116

TINA JTITHIA

YILNID HOLVYISIA-TLI6

00-

LATT« »

6€°890°9

00"

TYLOL« +

ANOd TT16-AONIDIINT

6E°890'9

00-

£8Z2-8€-169

LA0ddNS WILOIA
NOILALILSHY WIIOIA

00°09
00°0S

00"

LdFdx »

00°

ITYLOL+ »

NOILALILSIY S WILJIA AQ

00°0S

00°

$822-60-069

SESYIT LNINdINDE

08 L6T
9012
98°81¢2

00"

2022-60-069

Tand dTOIHIA

00"
00"

LdFq» »

I1Id aNIM

TTLOLx »

LNYED HONITOIA DILSIWOT

9B B1¢

00°

z0ZT-80-S89

TENA JTIOIHIA
ONINOZ 3 ONINNYId

£ET 6ET
€EC6ET

00

LAdEx»

00

TYLOLx x

SHI4 LINOD Z¥d

£2°6ET

00"

€0ZT-L0~5L9

THINd FTOIHIA

ONISSTIAAY TYdNd

S5 vY

00"

LT«

99 %P

00

S.LIgHad
6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 610Z/50/%0 QALNIVA SADIHD

SIITHAD

ajleq

61/81/%

210: 0T

LY

NOTITJILNHIJIILSIA



Date: 4/18/19% 10:00:23 (CHEC60)} CHECK LISTING CHECKS PRINTED 04/05/2019 TO 04/18/2019 Page: 1

CK# DATE Name Description Line Item Invoice # DATE PO # Amount
01 R 107218 WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL MANAGER FUEL BILL 12/18 REPLACE- 401-10-2202 141119 04/10/2019 49.07
9368.57 MENT BILL
04/10/2019% MAINTENANCE FUEL BILL 401-~15-2202 /7 65.79
TREASURER FUEL BILL 401-30-2202 / / 79.865
ASSESSOR FUEL BILL 610-40-2202 /7 69.96
SHERIFF FUEL BILL 401-50-2202 /7 7127.81
TCFD5 FUEL BILL 405-91-2202 /7 517.70
TCFD2 FUEL BILL 406-91-2202 /7 192.55
TCFD1 FUEL BILL 407-91-2202 /7 91.14
TCFD3 FUEL BILL 408-91-2202 /7 240.82
FIRE ADMIN 413-91-2202 / 668.09
TCFD6 FUEL BILL 418-91-2202 /7 37.87
ELECTRONIC MONITORING FUEL BILL 420-73-2202 / / 52.16
EMERGENCY MANAGER FUEL BILL 604-83-2202 /7 / 26.83
DWI FUEL BILL 605-54-2202 /7 35.20
RURAL ADDRESSING FUEL BILL 675-07-2202 / / 44 .55
DV FUEL BILL 690-09-2202 /7 21.06
DISPATCH FUEL BILL 911-80-2202 / /7 28.32
COUNTY MANAGER 49.07 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 65.79 COUNTY TREASURER 79.65
COUNTY ASSESSOR 69.96 COUNTY SHERIFF 7127.81 STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT 1748.17
COMMUNITY MONITORING 52.16 COMMUNICATIONS/EMS TAX 46.83 SMART CHOICE 35.20
RURAL ADDRESSING 44.55 WIND PILT 21.06 911-DISPATCH CENTER 28.32
01 O 107219 AIRGAS USA LLC CYLINDER RENTAL FEE MAR-19 405-91-2230 1741119 04/11/201% 135.93
291.18 INVOICE #9960996398 ACCT #
04/11/2019 2287851
CYLINDER RENTAL FEE MAR-19 408-91-2230 1841119 04/11/2019 155.25
INVOICE #9961036881 ACCTH#
2296717
STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT 291.18
01 0 10722 AMBITIONS TECHNOLOGY GROUP LLC 3 YEAR SONICWALL TZ400 GATEWAY  911-80-2269 5741119 04/11/2019 33318 1558.94
1558.94 SECURITY RENEWAL 33318
04/11/2019 DELI SONIC WALL TZ400 AGSS
(3 YEAR) T2019.0023 BLOCK HR
CONSULTING 12 HRS ADVANCED
GATEWAY SECURITY SUITE BUNDLE
RENEWAL FOR YOUR CURRENT TZ400
INVOICE #7574
911-DISPATCH CENTER 1558.94
01 O 107221 AT & T MOBILITY LLC ACCT #287281210062 B.GARLAND 401-10-2207 2841119 04/11/2019 97.38
97.38 INVOICE #287281210062X032821%
04/11/2018
COUNTY MANAGER 97.38
01 0 107222 BOB TURNER'S FORD COUNTRY 2019 FORD F150 4X4 SHORT BED 620-94-2618 4941119 04/11/2019 33219 22098.00
25722.00 H. BED LINER/SPRAY-ON 620-94-2618 /7 33219 495.00
04/11/2019 AC. MIRRORS/POWER 620-94-2618 / / 33219 3985.00
AQ. SPOTLIGHT 620-94-2618 /7 33219 595.00
AY. TOOLBOX DUAL LID 620-94-2618 /7 33219 895.00
BE. TRAILER TOWING CLASS 3 620-94-2618 / / 33219 595.00
BS. HEADACHE RACK 620-94-2618 / / 33219 649.00

2019 FORD F-150 XL 4WD SUPERCAB



6.5' BOX VIN#1FTEX1EB4KKDO6157
INVOICE#6157



YOSSASSY ALNNOD

9 0PT

SLIJEANZED

NYIYILAESTEd 40 LNIWAVIIIAO

SLIAANET TYINIA 40 INTWAYIIIAO
SLIAANTE NOISIA 40 INIWAVIIAAQ

610Z/TT/%0
¥9°0%T

O 10

62ZLOT

‘WOTILSYD

NIgnA

201Z-0%-10%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTIVLS

v9 0%T

S3EOIAJ0 FAILVILSINIWAY

7 PST

6688C# HDIOANI

6T0Z/TT/%0
¥V ¥ST

"6TO0Z HOYUYMW

“HONVYNILNIYW ONIAIING d04

STTZT-ST-10¥% SEITAANS ONIFSWNTd ANV TVOI¥LOITH

v0S€e
Y0SEE

TO

o

822LOT

MIAIALSVE

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTLVES

¥0StEE

vy VST

XYL #ASIOXE HATI $¥/T

00°66V2

¥ S50¥D TUNLONALSYIAANI

00°5659

20Y¥ LINO
# 1ISSY 4008

TYOEA ALIAYS/HIVDTIVL

gLzZeE
€LZEE
€LTEE

# LISSY/¥OANII INO¥I

ELZEE
€LZEE

SIY03d ¥OOd ALNNOD
VIZTI# IODY TILPEH FDIOANI

81%2-%6-0C9

6T0Z/TT/¥0 &TTIVOS

00°5S9

610Z/TT/%0
00" ¥STE

0Tdd-J3d 40 SANI HLOH

v6S€E

‘3009
‘SEAIS 40 ONIAIALS

TT6e TYIAd ADNIONIWH

JLYOTVL

#6S€€
v6SEE

T0

o]

LECLOT

SYHAINIYd NAJIDS ATIS NDISIA

8%Z2-26-1T1¥%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TITIH0C

00°66%C

ININLIYdHA a¥0d AINNQOD

1T 866

LOTSBEQOLZSOEZH# 1LDDVY

80TB6T8T# HDIOANI SONIM-O ANY

6T0Z/TT/%0
11 866

SaNvd

SLITATND 0ZX8T

999¢¢
999¢¢

o 10

9ZZLOT

SNOILNIOS HIYTANIONT HOFLNOD

SSEZ-09-20%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIVET

T1° 866

ADOTONHOAL NOILYWIOJINI

86 L6E

6T0Z/TT/%0
86°LEE

TELTIVPEH IDOV S98ZLIH# HDIOANI
SdN YIMOL 00ST O¥d SdN-MI¥E DAY

o TO

SZTZLOT

ONI ¥IANJOD YILNAWOD

8122-59-10%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTTIPSS

159¢¢€

B6 L6E

¥ SS0¥UD AVILNO TYLIAYD

09°002¢

000-0T88SLO# LODVY 90SLTLET
# HOIOANI INAWAVd HOH dOVH

£19Z-96~129

6102/TT/%0 6TITTIHI9

S.°288

000-88%L# IDOW

6T009L6TH# HDIOANI YIAVOT

6102/TT/%0

09°00Z¢

€T92-96-129

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTH09

¥6 ZBLT

000-88%LH# LDOV 6T009L6T
# FDIOANI SHADYVHD FLVI-dIAVOTIE0D $OAS TYIINYNIA YVTTIAVAIVD

€192-96-1292 ¥ZZLOT O 1O

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TITIPTT

06 " ¥ES

d SSO¥O FTUNLONILSVHINI

66 8Z¢

9ELCYPPH# LOOV 009SE6TY

# HDOIOANI ONIJAIHS WILSIATOL 8XS

6T0Z/TT/%0
66°8Z¢

ONITANYH ® ONIddIHS

(¥O0A.LNO) $OVId SALVLS UILINA

STCC-¥6-029
SITZ-¥6-0Z9

0P9te
0%9€€

6Z°¢C

O TO

€2TLOT

SAIYLSNANI JOL-LOYATD

6102/TT/¥0 6TTIFIT

0L S0E

007 ZZLSZ ¥ SSO¥D FINIDINMISVAINI

JIVA #J0

SWeN

uotadraosasa

wa3I BUIT

# @oTOAUT

ALYa

# od

Junowy

a3ea

£2:00°0T 61/81/%

(09DEHD)

ONILSIT MOFHO

6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 610%/50/%0 QIALNI¥d SADIHD

1 abeq



01 G 107230 GUSTIN HARDWARE INC. STRAPS, SHOVELS, FITTINGS, NUTS, 402-61-2250 6241119 04/11/2019 33631 271.27
831.34 BOLTS AND SHOP SUPPLIES 33631



610Z/TIT/%0

69°89TT

ONINIVAL TIWIOANI VWNVAL ANV AW

9€ZL0T O 10

‘YALSYH

AJOVEL

OdYIOTOD SNITIOD Ld0d OL THAVHEL

S022-£1-50¢8

6T0Z/TT/¥0 6TITIVPLS

69 BITT

LNHWLOTIY JYId HIVLS

VALNID HOLYASIA-116 SLTO0EY

L0 8V1

8G60T# 1DOY

66ECTTH HDICANI SHXYL HOUYW
d0d SHDIA¥ES ILANJAILNI LIN OH0T

ZLZZT-08-1T6

610Z/TT/%0 6TTITI¥9%

LO"8%T
ST 9t

]
»
~
=
[
~
o
(=]
=
0
H H
5 Q0
|
o] =]
H
0 N
= N
w
* -
- LS
i N
[¥] n
w N
o
[ L
P ]
[9) [l
9] a
H =]
E.3
5 B
[=]
0 <3
N H
o =4
R R
H O o o
[T V)
] 1 ) 1
[CRR-IRCRRT]
I
i 1 ] U
[SESIESIEN]
(SN
[ RN |
NN W N
NN NN
NN N N

ST°9L
ST°18
ST T8

Z8°BLS

10-50-6102 QL

ZLIT-16-80% T0-%¥0-610Z TIT1IH LENIAINI XATHLNOW

10

SECLOT O

aLT SIADIAYIAS LANJALNI OH01

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTIPED

ST 98T

NOISSIWWOD AINAOD

00°0S€T

6T0C/TT/%0
00°0S2T

Z86 THEDIOANT

S:1¥5d ONY SONILIIW NOISSIWWOD

TEZLOT O TO

L°88 WJ-KNXA

JOod LSYOAYOUd 6102 "1IddY

€vZ2-50-T0%

610Z/TT/%0 6ITTIPIE

00°0S2T

MIATD XLNAOD

0L 01T

6T0Z/T1/%0
0L 0TT

6LP88SC-¢T

# LOOY PY9LS8TOZHIDIOANT
WIIJAO¥OIW ¥Od Jdd IAOTIOLENAWIDYNYW STIOOHE NIV.INNOW NOUI

O TO

EETLOT

8T2Z-02~-2T19

6102/11/%0 6TTLVEL

TELZE

0L°0TT

FALTIHS IYNINY

LY 6%2Z

DNINOZ ¥ ONINNVId

LL €61

Z2SZ2Z2# FEIIOANI

61/sz/¢
61/81/¢€
61/82/¢
61/52/¢

61/8T/¢ TANd 23d

202e-80-10%
20ZZ-80-10%
20cZ-80-589
20ZZ-80-5989

NN N

NN NN

1z°9¢
£e 82

987 e¥
£€° 8%

RPN

202Z-80-589 -

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTI¥BL

SO°LY

&6T0Z/TT/%0

vZIEvY

TIHS INYOL

/SYyTH IDOOV TSZZZZH# HOIOANT

ZETLOT

0O 1IC NIJ3LSNOH

ZSTTZZHANI TANI FTOIHIA

Z0ET-28-T0%

6T0Z/TL/¥0 6TTIPLY

LY 6%C

INIWLOTIVY HYId ILYLS

§9°€T

6T02/11/%0
S9°¢ET

610T

HO¥VYW TIIE ¥ILYM S IOIMULSIA

C T0

TEZLOT

0D ¥HIVYM AYALSIWOH

0TZZ-T6-S0%

6T0Z/TT/¥0 6TITTPTIC

S9° €T

¥ S50¥O FINLONYLSYHANI 99799t SHOIAA0 FAILVILSINIWAY LT TLT JOHS dv¥o¥ ALNNOD

Ty €02

STI# IDOV
"NINAY IV SAYMITIYH

404 SIHOIT ddT INAWADYIdAA

BESEL
865€€

S12Z-%6-029

6T0Z/TT/¥0 6TITIHSY

v €02

STT# 1DOVW

N¥L Od ATHLNOW “610Z HDUVRW

6T,

£0s¢ee
£0SEE
€0SEE

" ONYNILNITN

2071d ¥0d SHITddNS JYVMAQAYH %

'DNIJO0H

TIYDI¥IDETE

‘ONIFGWNTd

9TZZ-ST-10¥%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTI®P9

£0S€EE

99°9S¢

9TTH IOOV

61-1€-€ ALVd TIIg# IDIOANI

6T0Z/TT/%0

qILYA #JD

2WeN

uotidransag

wa3ll =uTl

# 20TOAUT

anva

# od

Junowy

€Z:00:0T 6T/8T/% :33ed

(09DFHD)

ONILSIT XOFHO

610Z/8T/%0 OL 6T02/50/%0 QAINIEL SMOTHD

:abeg



DWI DISTRIBUTION GRANT 1168 69



00°0000¢

o]

TPCL0T

'ZI1¥0

ALLINNY

LINAWIZIOV INIWITLLIS HFIXAOTAWI

ZT2Z-50-T0%

610Z/TT/%0 GTITH6L

00°00002

YILNID HOLVASIA-T1TIé6

Te-9¢€1

TvyLO0P9SEH

LOD¥ L99216E€8T# HDIOANI
SEXVI HOYUVW ¥0d TOYLNOD LSHA

610Z/11/%0
157 9¢T1

G 1O

€¥ZLOT

TONI NINAO

S1ZZ-08-1T6

6102/TT/%0 6TITPSH

TS 9¢€T

YALTIHS TYWINY

Q0S¥

610Z/11/%0

00°S¥

SE6DH# 1DDY
STBLO6TH# HESWO

(6T-£-800)
SHIHVY YOI SNOILVLIAVOHA (S)

[ 1]

' NSKN Z¥eLOT

J0 SINIDIY

ZLZZ-28-TO0V

6T0Z/TT/%0 61TTI¥E

qTILZE

00°S¥%

LNIWZOUNVYIN ASTH

00" 8L

6T0Z/1T/%0

00°SL

SH3d ONILITIW HIVITILAY

0g0Z INNCL-6T0Z XIOL SANA
HLVITILAAY INIWIOUNYN MSI¥ OVAN HLVITIAAVY INIWIOUNYHW ASId OVRAN

o 10

T¥ZL0T

692CZ~90-009

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIPIS

00°SL

LNAWLOTIV FUId FIVLS

18 '1%0C

¥9Z089ZOCZH LODY £6966V060€
/56966%060E# FDIOANI NOIIVIS €NS

aN¥Y NIVW T LSIJ ¥04 XYL S3TYS
ALID ® XILNOOD IIVLS/IFI
TIVD-TTIM/TEI XYIACDEN THNT /IFI

LYWSVH/ENYdO¥d SNOTIVD 1°'00% XWL

“ANCD

6102/11/%0

T8 1702

SATYS ALID ¥ AINOQOD HILVLS/I34

60ZZ-T6-L0% ANOD ‘TIVD-TTIIM/IFI A¥IACDIY T3INJ
60Z2-T6-L0% TId IVWIVH/ENVAOUd SNOTTYD 0°0LTI

[\ AN A4 AN
19°612

o 10

Q0veL0t

ANY40dd KN

6T0Z/1T/%0 6TITTI¥P¥

INIWLOTIV TJId TIVLS

96 ' vZ¥8

0SETH# HOIOANI XVL

YOEYT SL¥Yd § ANIONH NO dIVdIA

T0ZZ-16-S0V

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTL¥89

68 0ZLL

6SE€TH FDIOANT

YOAY'T NO XYL

8¥2Z-T6-€1¥

€L62E

yeE"LT

8¥ZZ-T6-ETV
8VYZZ-T6-€T¥%

€LETE

SE€° 8T

HATOSNOD TIYLSNI OL S¥NOH J0HVT

eLece
€L6TE

00 S0%
00° 0§

6T0Z/11/%0

SININOIWOD ONIHIM
INOOW ¥OOTA HTOSNOD 96 "vZve

BYZZ2-16-E1P
BY2Z-T6~-€TY

b
Lad

€L6TE
EL6ZE

g8e g6l

6€2L0T O TO

OTT SNIVIVYAAY WN

6TTTY6T

INIWLIYITA aYOd ALNNOD

8€°1S6T

6102/11/%0
8E€°TG6T

OL# LODVY NI-T8LPZOOH# FDIOANI

S€0L8 WN ALIVIVOW

0l d3YIAITIA L'I¥S HDO0¥ NOL 0€

{3 4%
vevee

o T0

8EZTLOT

STVIININ 3 ILIYS COIXEW MAN

952Z-09-20%

6102/TT/%0 6TTLIH0L

8E TG61

NOILNLILSIY WILDIA

00°0s

S9S# LDV

LI0ddNS WILOIA Ad

6T0Z/TT/%0

007 0§

vzZoee
¥Z0EE
vZote

'SILONUO¥d INIIDXH
‘do0d FTIYHSIYHJ - NON

SaO0D ¥y3AYd
ANININITI

O 10

LETLOT

SUO0d ALIYIYOW

£82Z2-8€-169

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TLIV69

00°0S

HIYA #30

[wenN

uotidraonsaq

wslI 2UTT

# s0TOAUT

aL¥q

# od

Junowy

£2:00:0T 61/81/% :@3eq

(092FHD)

ONIISIT XMDHFHD

6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 610Z/S0/¥0 CTIINI¥A SMITHD

:3beg



04/11/2019

COUNTY COMMISSION 20000.00



9% 0€C

6T0Z'LZ TIHAVY OL 6T0Z°'8Z HOUVW

o 10

€SZL0T

NOILVIOd¥0D LSIMD

JdAS ISIA SEDYVHD ATHINOW

LOZZ-16-81%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTVIL

9% 0¢e2

NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD

LL"Z¥E

g%0Z S88Z-L¥8

=505 ¥YIINID YOINIS VYIYNIVLNOOW

g566 0105

-$#8E-505 HALNID ¥OINIS VIDNVLISIE

6102/TT/%0
LL ZPE

de9T SZvv

-ZEB8-505 AJLNID JVOINITS ALIYIVOW

o 10

ZSTLOT

NOILVIOJdHOD LSHAMD

LOZZ-S0-T0%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTTHSE

LL TPE

YIDUNVYIW ALNNOD

£€8°161

6T0Z/TT/%0

£8°T6T

gZ80 ¥6ZS-v8E~S0G# LOOV HANIT XVd

O 10

TSZLOT

NOILYIOdH0D I1SaMD

S UIADYNYW 9280 V6Z5-¥8E£-509

L0Z2-0T-T0%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTPHE

£8°T6T

HALNEO HOLVYISIA-TI6

ST 0vS

6102/TT/%0
S 0¥S

GT8STE96-¥8E-S0SH# LOOV
HOJYYW ¥O04d TTIE INOHd ATHINOW

O T0

0SZLOT

NOTLWIO4HOD LSEAMD

LOZZ-08-T16&

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TII¥9C

¥S°0¥S

MAITO ALNAOD

[4: -3

610Z/TT/%0

28785

qge8¢

-080%-¥8E# LODV 'ITILE INIT XVd

0o 10

6%ZL0T

NOILWIOdH¥OD LSaMD

LOZZ-02Z-10%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTI¥¥C

€899

LNINLIYIIA dO¥0d ALNAOD

€2°L6

6T0Z/IT/%0

€27 L6

9280

-055Z-80€-505# 1DOVY 61-8Z2-¢
ALYQ 1719 IDIOANI INIHOVW XVd

8%ZL0T O 10

NOILVIOdR0D LSIMD

L0ZZ-09-20%

610Z/11/%0 6TTIVCT

€27 L6

HILTAHS TYWINY

997 ¥LZ

6T0Z/TIT/%0

S vLe

g "GLTTLTITSYBESOS

#LOOY HOWVW J0 HINOW
dHL ¥04 TTIIE€ FINOHd XTHINOW

O 10

LvZLOT

NOIIVIOdN0D LSEAMD

L0ZZ-28-T0%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTTIVE

SS vLE

INIWIOVNYN JASIY

SZ'L6T

P0-0SPLTIE00H# IOOY
9Z0L¥Z9# HDIOANI DNITANYH

aN¥ ONIJJIHS IOUYHO dN LIS SSHAd

HOLVYdSIa TTé

61dd

@YD NIYHD X34:

6I0Z/1IT/%0

ST LeT

ONITANYH % DNIddIHS

J4¥D HLIM NIVHD AIN dYOIVdYd
ANIT 709 SIHL ‘SHHOLY4SIA IT6

8¥¢Z-90-009

289¢¢

SZ°82

z59¢¢t
ZS9€¢E

0 10

9%ZLOT

SNOILOWOdd FAILISOd

8¥2Z-90-009

6T0Z/TT/%0 6T1TIT#%S

007692

ADOTONHOEL NOLLYWHOJINI

ST 0LZT

6T02/TIT/%0
ST 0Let

PE6T90EH LOOY
610Z/0€/%-6102/T0/%

OIEdO¥EdId d04 SANIT LINDAID

O TO

S¥ZLOT

SSTTIAIM NVIALYIA

€0TT-599-107%

6102/TIT/%0 6TTTVCE

ST 0LZT

JLVa #30

SWeN

uotadIaosag

wsI AUTT

# 8otToAUT

q2LYA

Od

Junowy

6T/81T/% :°3eq

*00°0T

€T

(09D3HD)

ONILSIT ADAHD

6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 6T0Z/S0/%0 QALNI¥L SMIOTHD

:abed



04/11/2019 ACCT #505-384-0048 901B

STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT 230.46



6102/1T/%0
00" 0¥%20T

g4£800-00-000-02#
LNIWAIEOVY JOT¥d ILVLS WN

TSHYIL IWES MOVW ¥N0d ¥0d SHYIL

SE9EE

SE9EE
SE9tt

o]

Z92L0T

T00 HYIL NANEAFA

vvcz-09-207%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIPES

00" 0Pe0T

YIENSTIIL ALNNOD

82" LS

H€688018€EY

¥8€-90G9H# LOOV 6T1°LZ % OL 61°82°€

6T0Z/11/%0

82 LS

SEADUVHD 6T-UYW-8T SITDIYHO
ANIT X¥d JOIJJ0 S, dFTANSVYIUL

o 10

192L0T

NOILYIOJI0D LSIAMD

L0CZT-0E-TOV

6T0Z/TT/%0 61T1%Z8

82 LS

FAYO HLVANI I1I0dY

8T L¥S

6T0Z/TT/%0
8T°LPS

W6¥L ZTO0-Z€£8-S0S5 N# 1DOV
6T-dYW HDIOANI LNINAND AJTHAHS

LOZZ-0L-0Z¥%
LOZTZ-0L-0C%

65 ELT
69 ELT

10

092L0T O

NOIIVYOdd0d LSIMO

INd LSYd JdI¥3IHS

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTI#T8

ddTHITHS ALNONOD

60°0¢

6102/11/%0

60°0¢

dLE6L LZTPBESOSH IDDY

L0TZT-0S-TO07 6T-UVW# HOIOANI JJIVUTHS HENIT XVd

o 10

6SCLOT

NOILYIOJEOD LSIMD

6T0Z/TT/P0 6TTI¥O8

60°0¢

INIWNLOTIVY J¥Id JLVLS

TL°682

NIWNGY

HYId 98ES 9096-7€8-S05# dS€6
L90T-98E-G05# ILODY 6102°LZ 'TI¥AVY

L0ZZ-T6~ETF OL 6T0Z°'8Z HOUVW STDUVHD ATHLNOW

6T02/11/%0
TL° 682

10

o]

892L0T

NOILVIOJI0D ILSIAMD

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTI®9L

TL 68Z

LNFWLOTIY HAId JIWIS

66 TLE

6102

'LZ TI¥dY OL 6T0Z'8Z HOWYW HE£Z9
»0TS-2€8-50S# °@906 890%-CEB-SOSH

610Z/11/%0
66 TLE

dve® 0000-Z€8-S50S# 1DDVY
JdAS LSIJ SEDIVHD XTHILNOW

T0

LSELOT ©O

NOILWE04d¥0D LSEMD

LOZZ-T6-90%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIT¥SL

66°TLE

LNIWLOTTIVY FHId ALYLS

L9991

6102/11/%0
L9°991

gv¥0 €SE€Z-¥8E-S0SH# IDDVY

6T02°'LZ IIYAY OL 610Z°8Z HOUYW

9S2L0T O 10O

NOILYYOd¥0D LSIMD

QdAY LSIA SADYVHD XTHINOW

LOZZ-16-607

6TO0Z/TT/%0 6ITTHPL

L9°99T

INFWNLOTTIY JFAId ITLWLS

¥8 €0€

6102°LZ TI¥AY OL

610282 HOWVKW 9865 116¥-2E8-50G#

6T0Z/TIT/%0

v8°€0¢€

g%ST 0T8Z-¥8E-50S# LDDVW
qdae LSIA SIOPYHD ATHINOW

SSZLOT O IO

NOILWIOJU0D LSAMD

LOZZ-T6-80V

6T0Z/T11/%0 6TTTHEL

¥8°£0E

LNAWIOTIV J¥Id dIVIS

107502

adna

¢ LSId 9668 0V0P-ZEB-SOSH IODV
g668 0¥0P-2E€8-505 6T0Z°LZ TIdAY

LOZZ-16-90% OL 6T0Z‘8Z HOUVYW SHOYVHD ATHLNOW

6102/1T/%0

10°S02

T0

o]

PSCLOT

NOILVY0d¥0D LSEAMO

6T0Z/TT/¥0 6TTIVTL

10°s0¢

HLLYA #3D

SweN

uotadTIosag

welI SUTT

# 2oTOAUT

# od ALYA

Jjunowy

€2:00:0T 61/81/% :®3eQ

ONILSIT MOEHD (09DEHD)

6102/8T/%0 OL 6102/S0/%0 QIINIVE SADIHD

: 9beg



INVOICE #50106356 ACCT #88034

COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 10240.00



’'8a0d

‘EZ440D0 JOHS InNNOJd

LSY0d ddW
SUVANIIYD ASHT 6102

9LSEE
SLSEE

dNd - DIFNTAA

8YZC-T6-30F%
6TZZ-T6-30¥

26" 1S

SLSEE
9LSEE
gLSEE
9LSEE
9LGEE

9L'82

NAEd INIOd

TIVd dTAVIDVILEY d1¥9-Z2 YI9dZ

610Z/TT/%0

00°t6ez

6T1ZZ-16-90%

0z 01
89° 1T
0e"1¢E

6TZT-T6-907 SUINYVYW ISYHT A¥0 XHVYWIH STIAVIS

6TZZ2-16-90%

10

HOVINVAQY SSANISNE SATAVILS 0LZLOT O

wTTXuS" 8 SHETIVLS

dAGYd AJOD

610Z/IT/%0 6TTTI#8BE

INFNLIV4Id a¥0d ALNNOD

LT €S2

S860TOLH IDDOVY £959€680%¢€

-¥959Z680VE# FDIOANI

6T0Z/TIT/%0
LT €92

"HIVHD

£E9EE

‘YHANIE ONIY¥ FIUHL

ASHEA ANy
"HINLXTIA IHOIT

£E€9EE
£e9ce

O 10

692L0T

HOVINVAQY SSANISNE SATIYLS

'SA¥VYD SSINISNY

612Z-09-20%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIFYT

[ 14

YOSSISSY XINNCD

10°6¥%

610Z/11/%C
T0°6¥%

d Io

892L0T

‘011IaEs

NN, d

OYTAY WO¥d ADIHD aANNJIHA

Z0TZ-0%-T0¥%

610¢/TT/%0 6TIIVL

10 6%

NOISSIWWOD XINNOD

e vve

6T0Z/TT/%0
AN 224

Ze9eH# LIDDV TVSEPTH# FDIOANI

SHEL/SIXYL dId ILYLS dAK
ONIYOLINOW dESNADIT SYTATAA

O T0

L9ZLOT

'SONIATOH YEWVS

“ONT

TLET-S0-10%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTIIV6T

€59€¢€

ve vve

NOISSIWRWOD ALNOOD

69°%0LZ

6T0Z/TT/%0
69°%0LE

XYL SI4dIZDEE SSO¥D WN 6TOZ
TI¥dVY ¥0d SEITAYAS TYNOISSTIOHEd

O 10

992LOT

ANVAWOD % IMSIAXY

ZL2ZZ-50-10%

610Z/TT/%0 6TTIVEE

69°v0LE

26°2602 ¥ SSO¥D XV¥ILNO TYLIAVD

SIOTIAJ0 FAILVILSININAY

T% TOT

906¥%# TDIOANI

YHLTIHS TYWINY LV JIALNIATII

T6C¢EL
T62tE

MOTd MOVE HOVIddY ¥ YIVdad

S122-S1-10%

610Z/T1/%0 6TTIH8S

I 10T

886E/LBGEH# HDIOANI

6T0C HOUVMW

JONYNILNIVA DVAH

TLIEE
TL9EE
TLOEE
TL9¢ee

610Z2/TL/¥%0
€L VETT

TYIDIaNr

1192-96-12%9

I6°0L8B

6102 HOUWW

FONYNIINIVH OVAH

O 10

§9ZLOT

SADIAYAS SWA

NINAY -

TI9C-96-129

6T02/TT/%0 6TIIVLE

T0° 2221

LTId dNIM

g8 Let

6T02/1T/%0
08°L6T

0880v6CH# 10DV

€ZEESSTEH TDIOANI 6T/0€/¥

O 10

P92LOT

‘¥5n HODI™

ONI

-61/1/% INIWAYL DI1QOIdad

¥822-60-063

610Z/TT/%0 6TTT¥99

08" L6l

YTANSVILL ALNOOD

88°08¢

ONS9ZLTOT

-69508# LODOV PZE6VETOTH FDIOANI

6LT0Z/TIT/%0
88°08C

X¥WI AINOOD XYL ALID XYL dLVLS
SHOYWI TYNOILIQAY INIY¥ 6102/22/2

o 10

£€92L0T

‘¥Sn HODIN

OL 6T/£2/T 6P60€198D dASPSELAN ONI

£E0CZ-0€-TOV

6102/TT/%0 6TTI¥SE

887082

ALYA #3D

JweN

uot1drInsaq

wa3I JUTT

# 90T1OAUI

H1vd

od

Junowy

£2:00:0T 61/81/% :23edq

(090dHD)

ONILSIT XMDdHD

6T02/8T/%0 OL 6T0Z/S0/%0 QEININA SMDIHD

:abeg



DEFENDER HD 120 FT. EXTENSION 406-91-2248 /7 33576 111.96
CABLE 33576



Date: 4/18/19 10:00:23 (CHEC60Q) CHECK LISTING CHECKS PRINTED 04/05/2019 TO 04/18/2019

CK# DATE Name Description Line Item

ACCT #394849

STORAGE BOXES 10 CT. 401-08-2219
STENO NOTEBOOK 12 CT. 401-08-2219
SMALL BINDER CLIPS 144 PK 401-08-2219

INVOICE #3398447086 ACCT #394849

STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT 245.82 PLANNING & ZONING 47.18
01 0 107271 T-MOBILE USA, INC WIFI HOT SPOT MONTHLY CHARGE 401-30-2207
2276.06 TREASURERS
04/11/2019 SO WIRELESS MAR-19 401-50-2207
ACCT #1471887
HOT SPOT FINANCE 401-55-2207
HOT SPOT CIVIL DEFENSE 604-83-2207
MANAGER MONTHLY BILL 401-10-2207

MARCH/APRIL 2019 339-7900 MOBILE 413-91-2207
HOT SPOT 339-790% MOBILE HOT

SPOT 339-7923 MOBILE HOT SPOT

FIRE ADMIN

MONTHLY CHARGES DIST 2VFD 910- 406-91-2207
0743

MONTHLY CHARGES 582-6058 DIST 405-91-2207
5 VFD 582-6058

Page:

ROAD PHONE 402-60-2207
COUNTY TREASURER 68.87 COUNTY SHERIFF 1679.17 FINANCE DEPARTMENT
COMMUNICATIONS/EMS TAX 43.53 COUNTY MANAGER 57.92 STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT
COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 160.34
01 O 107272 TJ ENTERPRISES AUTO SUPPLY AUTO PARTS, HARDWARE BUILDING 401-15-2215
94 .34 AND VEHICLE MAINTENANCE.
04/11/2019 MARCH 2019.ACCT #32156
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 94 .34
01 0 107273 TRIADIC INC. TAX INVOICE #27:00.5 401-65-2203
4420.73 ACCT #1425
0D4/11/2019 4 REAMS OF BLUE CHECK STOCK 401-55-2219
INVOICE #1701004 401-05-221%9
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 4269.895 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 75.39 COUNTY COMMISSION
01 O 107274 TWO GUNZ CUSTOMZ & HYDROGRAPHICSQUAD 5
271%.50 R&R FRONT WHEEL BEARINGS (BOTH 405-91-2201
04/11/2019 SIDES)
R&R TIE ROD END (INNER) 405-21-2201
R&R TIE ROD END (QUTER) 405-91-2201
R&R CENTER (DRAG) LINK 405-921-2201
R&R PITMAN ARM 405-91-2201
R&R STEERING STABALIZER SHOCKS 405-91-2201
PARTS ESTIMATE 405-91-2201

INVOICE #1490

ATTACK 3-1

PM TO INCLUDE SYNTHETIC OIL, 408-91-2201
AIR FILTER, CIL FILTER AND PM ON

TRANSFER CASE

HOURS LABCR

INVOICE #1499

Invoice # DATE PO # Amount
7741119 04/11/2019 33243 16.82
/o 33243 13.11
/7 33243 17.25
5241119 04/11/2019 68.87
/7 1679.17
/7 48.58
/7 43.53
/7 57.92
/7 130.59
/7 43.53
/o 43.53
/7 160.34
1541119 04/11/2019 33502 94.34
33502
33502
3041119 04/11/2019 4269.95
4841119 04/11/2019 33431 75.39
/7 33431 75.39
3941119 33525
/o 33525 525.00
33525
/ 33525 275.00
/7 33525 275.00
/7 33525 312.50
/7 33525 250.00
/7 33525 100.00
/7 33525 762.00
4041119 33435
/7 33435 220.00
33435
33435
33435



STATE FIRE ALLOTMENT 2719.50



LNEWLOTIV Jd41d HALYLS

Z6'E¥L

600¥T-£218B0-THLODOY 0-£LS0
-8069598# HDIOANI 6T0Z/0€/%0

0L 6T0Z/T0/%0 ¥IALSAWNG
qQIYA 8-1 SHOYYHD ATHINOW

01ZZ-16-€1P

6T0Z/TIT/%0 6TTTHEY

LZ S0Y

€£00€€

-0€T86-8TH IDDV €-€LS0-95TLS98#H

IDIOANI 6T0Z/0E£/%0 OL 6102/10/%0

6T0Z/TIT/¥%0

6 EVL

O To

6LZLOT

“ONI WN J0 INIWIOUYNVW HLSVM

YILSdWNA CIYA 8 SIDIYHD ATHINOW

0TZZ-16-50V

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTI®T%

S9°8EE

NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD

€ETETITET

9868# JDTOANI
XYL 61/22/€ ® 61/L/¢€

SHDIAYAS TYNOISSHACHUd VIAILXIAN

SLTZ-50-10V

610C/TT/%0 6TTTHOT

L0°812

L868#

FDIOANI XYL 61/02/€-61/5/¢

SHOIAYES TYNOISSIIOYd UWNA

SLTZ-S0-10%

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTI¥6

987 9%9¢€T

S868# HDIOANI

SEADIVHO TYNOILIAAY XWL 61/8Z/¢

-6T/L/€ SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIIQHEI

IVIddY OTgdNd TId dIDYIN

Z2868# HDIOANI SIEDYVYHO ‘TYNOILIAQY

SLTZ-S0-T0%

6T0Z/T1/%0 6TTIVS

TL €LS

XYL 61/22/£-61/5/¢ QIVONYAY

€LTT-50-TO0V

6T0Z/1T/%0 6TTITI¥L

£L70¢€TT

y868# TDIOANI

SEDUVHD TYNOILIAAY XYL
61/8/€-61/S/¢ YIOYQWILL

€LTCT-S0-T0%

610Z/TL/%0 6TTTIP9

639°PL6

610Z/TT/%0
€CTETTILT

£868

# FDIOANI SHEOWVHD TYNOILICAY XWL

SL2Z-S0-T0V 61/62/€-61/50/€ SSINISNH TVHINTD

Q 10

8LZLOT

‘WEId MY'T NITIVM

dHL

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TITI¥S

LT 698L

HILNID HOLVASIA-TT6

T0 999¢

SBYELLOMSTISHADIOANT

TADNN
‘WA TYNNNY

ONI¥NA 1S YOLVHAENTD dITHOA

IDNADYIANE IOOHSATINOUWL FLVWILST

6L0CE
6LOEE
6L0€EE
6LOEE
6LOLE
6LOEE

610Z/TT/%0

T0°959¢

AVYEd VITI4dYO

LV dLIS NO IOIA¥ES Z-Wd WHOJdHd

o 10

LLzZLoT

‘00 INAWdINOE WANDYM

8122-08-1T6

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTIIVES

10°959¢€

ONVE ¥ WaVd

v6°¥02T6

6102/11/%0
¥6°%026

IPSTTO9# LDOV

9928150E00E# HDIOANI L304dANS

WYID0Ud NOILYSNIdWCOD 'TENNOSIII

O T0

9LTLOT

SADIANAS HJITATIM SIHAVY '¥ASH

BLTT-99-£07%

610Z/11/%0 6TLIV®

¥6 %0Z6

NOISSIWWOD ALNNOD

00°S¥%T

STPELT10€06T02# HDIOANI

W

NOLSMNHL 3 'XETIY

'ddo¥d "W'o¥adNT 3

‘oIdyvo " d

610Z/TT/%0
00°S¥T

ONILSHL DNHJ LNIWAOTAWH-Fdd

¥ NDFHD ANQO¥NOVH LNIAWAOTIWE-Tdd
€LZZ-50-10% SLSHL ON¥Q ONY SADEHD ANNOIDNOVE ONINIFYIS ANACHUONOVE TYSUAAAINN

10

[¢]

SLZLOT

6T0Z/TT/%0 6TTTHLE

608Z¢

00°SPT

LY #AD

aweN

uotadraosaa

walr /T

# 9oTOAUT

CRA-{¢k

od

Junowy

te@3edq

61T/8T/%

0T

€Z2:00

(092EHD)

ONILSIT MDFHD

6TO0Z/8T/%0 OL 6I0Z/50/%0 UALNIYA SADTHD

:obeg



01 O 107280 WESTERN TRAILS VETERINARY INC. 7 LARGE STERILIZATIONS INV# 401-82-2272 3641119 04/11/2019 982.00
982.00 134766,136590 11 SMALL



19°¢682%T 69

/

/

TYLOL

AATEHHS ALNNOD

08 €¥2

6102/S1/%0

08 €£%2Z

€0T# EDIOANI

6L/91/¢

NO FONVISISSY dN dNAOY INWIIYM

SL9EE
SL9EE

o 10

98ZLOT

' HYHS

AIWYS

ZLTZ-0S-TOP

6T0Z/ST/¥0 6TST¥E

08" €E%C

JITYIHS ALNNOD

08-¢ve

6102/51/%0

08 ¢¥%Z

TOT# FOIOANI

61/91/2

NO FONVLSISSY di dNNOY INYAITM

€L9EE
€L9EE

T0

o}

S8ZLOT

'ATEIJYELLYS

AIYN

TLTZ-0S-T0¥

610Z/5T/%0 6TST®Y

08 E%C

JATITHS ALNNOD

08 eve

6T0Z/ST/%0

08 E¥C

00TH# IDIOANTI

61/91/2

NO FONVLSISSY dfl aNANOY¥ INTIAYM

vLoce
vLI9EE

O 10

¥82L0T

' OYELNOW

TYWO

TLZZ-0S-TO0Y

6T02/ST/%0 61ST¥HEC

08 €%

JATYIHS ALNNOCD

08 €ve

6T0Z/ST/%0

08" E¥Z

ZOT# FOIOANI

61/91/2

NO FONVISSISSY dNl ANNOYH INTIIYM

TLIEE
ZLote

C 10

£8ZLOT

‘YIDYEYD

0aIvdan

CTLZZ-0S5-10%

610Z/ST/%0 6TSTHT

08 €T

JATITHS AINNOD

08 €¥%C

6T0C/ST/¥0

08 €¥2

POTH# HOIOANI

61/91/2

NO FONVLSISSY dN dNNOY LNTIIVM

gL9tE
aL9EL

10

o]

‘YLS0D Z8TLOT

UIHAOLSTUHD

CLZZ-0S-T0%

610Z/ST/%0 6ISTYS

08°€¥%C

INIWLOTIY HYIL FLVLS

9Z°SS

6T0Z/TT/%0

8¢°ss

61/52/¢ 0L 61

0TZZ-T6-8T¥ SZ/Z 9EAMAS ¥ALYM SHADEVYHD KTHINOW

0 10

TBZLOT

‘QUYTTIM

40 EDHYTIIA

6T0C/TT/¥0 6ITLIVEZCT

9€° S5

JALTIHS TVWINY

00°286

HANT MIOMAOOTH/INTWIVIIL /WIXT

99LVETHANI SNOILYNIDOVA SHIEVYH
68S9ET '99LFPETHANI SNOIXIVZITIYILS

6T0Z/TT/%0

qiva #3102

Jwen

uotadiaosaa

walI 2uIl

# @dt1oAul

aLva

# od

Jjunowuy

€T:00:0T 6T1/81/% :=3ed

(092dHD)

DEHD

DNILSIT X

6T0Z/8T/%0 OL 610Z/50/%0 QHININd SHUDIHD

:abed

0T



Agenda Item
No. 10-4



FINAL

TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ORDINANCE NO.

A MASTER ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL
REVENUE BONDS (LA JOYA WIND PROJECTS) TO BE ISSUED
PURSUANT TO THE MASTER ORDINANCE AND SUPPLEMENTAL
ORDINANCES IN THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
OF $675,000,000 TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION,
CONSTRUCTION, EQUIPPING AND INSTALLATION OF WIND ENERGY
GENERATION FACILITIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF GENERATING
ELECTRICITY; ESTABLISHING THE PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES
AND OTHER PARAMETERS FOR THE ISSUANCE OF TAXABLE
INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS FOR EACH PHASE OF THE LA JOYA
PROJECT; PROVIDING FOR SUPPLEMENTAL ORDINANCES TO BE
ADOPTED UNDER THE MASTER ORDINANCE FOR EACH PHASE OF
THE PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO TAXABLE INDUSTRIAL REVENUE
BONDS (LA JOYA WIND LLC PROJECT), SERIES 2019A FOR THE FIRST
PHASE OF THE PROJECT IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$290,000,000; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN
INDENTURE, A LEASE AGREEMENT, A BOND PURCHASE
AGREEMENT, THE BONDS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE SERIES 2019A BONDS
AND THE PROJECT; MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS AND
FINDINGS RELATING TO THE BONDS AND THE PROJECT; RATIFYING
CERTAIN ACTIONS TAKEN PREVIOUSLY; AND REPEALING ALL
ACTIONS INCONSISTENT WITH THIS ORDINANCE.

WHEREAS, Torrance County (the “County”) is a legally and regularly created,
established, organized and existing political subdivision of the State of New Mexico (the “State”)
created pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-30-1 through -2 (1917); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 4-59-1 through -16 (1975, as amended
through 2015) (the “Act”), the County is authorized to acquire industrial revenue projects to be
located within the County, to issue industrial revenue bonds and to use the proceeds of such
bonds for the purpose of promoting the use of the natural resources of the State and promoting
industry and developing trade or other economic activity to secure and maintain a balanced and
stable economy in the County to promote public health, welfare, safety, convenience and
prosperity; and

WHEREAS, Avangrid Renewables, LLC is an Oregon limited liability company (the
“Parent Company™);



WHEREAS, the Parent Company has presented to the Board of County Commissioners
(the “Commission™) of Torrance County, New Mexico a proposal whereby the County would
establish parameters for the issuance of Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A and
Series 2019B (collectively, the “Bonds™) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$675,000,000 for two or more phases of a La Joya Wind Project (described as La Joya I and La
Joya II, and collectively referred to herein as the “La Joya Wind Project”) pursuant to which
companies formed by the Parent Company (collectively, the “Project Company™) shall acquire,
construct, and install wind energy generation facilities and associated electrical generating
equipment and real property used to generate electricity from wind energy (the “Project
Property™), located within the County and outside the corporate limits of any municipality in the
County (the “Project Site”), to be used by the Company for the generation and transportation of
electricity; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that it is necessary and in the best interests
of the County and the residents that the Bonds be issued in one or more series pursuant to the Act
and that the specific terms, other than the terms of the 2019A Bonds (as herein defined) which
are established herein, for the subsequent series of Bonds for the La Joya II Project (the “2019B
Bonds™) be specified in a supplemental ordinance (the “Supplemental Ordinance”) within the
parameters and limitations set forth in this ordinance (the “Master Bond Ordinance™);

WHEREAS, the Parent Company has proposed to establish payments in lieu of taxes (as
defined herein) as set forth in this Master Bond Ordinance for the Bonds to be issued pursuant to
this Master Bond Ordinance, to be shared by and among the County and Estancia Municipal
School District and Vaughn Municipal Schools, as applicable based upon the location of the
Project Site (the “School Districts™); and

WHEREAS, the County and the School Districts have negotiated and agreed upon the
2019A PILOT and the 2019B PILOT Agreement (both as defined herein) and the split of such
payments between one or both of the School Districts, as applicable, and the County pursuant to
NMSA 1978, Section 4-59-4(A)(2) (2003); and

WHEREAS, the 2019A Company has presented to the Commission a proposal whereby
the County would issue its Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (La Joya Wind, LLC Project), in
an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $290,000,000 (the “2019A Bonds™), and acquire,
construct, and install wind energy generation facilities and associated electrical generating
equipment and real property used to generate electricity from wind energy (the “2019A Project
Property”), located at the 2019A Project Site as set forth in the 2019A Lease, to be used by La
Joya Wind, LLC (the “2019A Company”) for the generation and transportation of electricity of
up to 166 megawatts (the “2019A Project” or the “La Joya I Project™); and

WHEREAS, under the Company’s proposal related to the issuance of the first installment
of the Bonds, the County would enter into an Indenture (the “2019A Indenture”) with the
purchaser of the 2019A Bonds (the “2019A Purchaser”) and BOKF, NA (the “2019A



Depositary”), pursuant to which and together with this Master Bond Ordinance, the County
would issue the 2019A Bonds; and

WHEREAS, under the Company’s proposal, the County and the 2019A Company would
enter into a lease agreement (the “2019A Lease™), pursuant to which the 2019A Company will
lease the 2019A Project Property for the La Joya I Project from the County, and the 2019A
Company will make payments sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019A Bonds
and to pay all of the other obligations pursuant to the provisions of the 2019A Lease and this
Master Bond Ordinance;

WHEREAS, with approval of the Supplemental Ordinance and the issuance of the 2019B
Bonds for the La Joya II Project, the County will enter into an Indenture (the “2019B Indenture™)
with the purchaser of the series of Bonds authorized pursuant to the Master Bond Ordinance and
the Supplemental Ordinance (the “2019B Purchaser”) and a depositary to be named in the
Supplemental Ordinance (the “2019B Depositary™), pursuant to which and together with this
Master Bond Ordinance and the Supplemental Ordinance, the County would issue the series
-2019B Bonds for the La Joya II Project; and

WHEREAS, under the Parent Company’s proposal, for the 2019B Bonds to be issued for
the La Joya II Project for a company (the “2019B Company”) to be formed by the Parent
Company for the La Joya II Project, the County would enter into the 2019B Indenture with the
2019B Purchaser of the 2019B Bonds and the 2019B Depositary, pursuant to which and together
with this Master Bond Ordinance and a supplemental ordinance (collectively with the Master
Bond Ordinance, the “2019B Bond Ordinance™), the County would issue the 2019B Bonds; and

WHEREAS, under the Parent Company’s proposal the 2019B Company and the County
would enter into a Lease Agreement (the “2019B Lease™), pursuant to which the 2019B
Company will lease the Project Property for the La Joya II Project from the County, and the
2019B Company will make payments sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019B
Bonds issued for the La Joya II Project and to pay all other obligations incurred pursuant to the
provisions of the 2019B Lease, this Master Bond Ordinance, and the Supplemental Ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to enter into, deliver and perform all of its
obligations under the 2019A Bond Documents (as defined below) and to issue, execute and
deliver the 2019A Bonds pursuant to the Act and this Master Bond Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the 2019A Bonds in a principal amount not to exceed $290,000,000 will be
issued, sold and delivered by the County in a private sale to the 2019A Purchaser pursuant to the
bond purchase agreement to be dated as of the initial date of delivery of the 2019A Bonds among
the County, the 2019A Purchaser and the 2019A Company (the “2019A Bond Purchase
Agreement” and together with the 2019A Indenture, and 2019A Lease, the “2019A Bond
Documents™); and



WHEREAS, the proceeds of the 2019A Bonds shall be applied to pay the costs of
acquiring, constructing and installing the 2019A Project Property and to pay certain costs
associated with the issuance and sale of the 2019A Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of the County to
establish the parameters for the Bonds to be issued pursuant to this Master Bond Ordinance and
to issue the 2019A Bonds and to execute and deliver the 2019A Bond Documents and other
documents related thereto; and

WHEREAS, the County will enter into the 2019A Bond Documents in connection with
the issuance of the 2019A Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to issue the Bonds under the Act and this Master
Bond Ordinance, and after having considered the Company’s proposal, has concluded that it is
desirable at this time to authorize the issuance of the first installment of the Bonds designated as
the 2019A Bonds to finance the 2019A Project and that the County’s issuance of the 2019A
Bonds will constitute and be a valid public purpose; and

WHEREAS, this Commission has been advised by Bond Counsel that the disclosure
provisions of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not applicable to this
transaction inasmuch as the 2019A Bonds are being sold in a private sale to the 2019A Purchaser
without participation of an underwriter; and

WHEREAS, there has been published in The Independent and the Albuquerque Journal,
newspapers of general circulation in the County, public notice of the Commission’s intention to
adopt this Master Bond Ordinance, which notice contained certain information concerning the
ownership, purpose, location and size of the La Joya Wind Project and the amount of the Bonds
to be issued to finance the La Joya Project, which notice was published at least fourteen (14)
days prior to final action upon this Master Bond Ordinance; and

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, THE
GOVERNING BODY OF TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. RATIFICATION. All actions not inconsistent with the provisions of this
Master Bond Ordinance previously taken by the Commission and the officials of the County
directed toward approval of the issuance and sale of the Bonds be approved and the same hereby
are ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 2. FINDINGS.

A. General. The Commission hereby declares that it has considered all
relevant information presented to it relating to the Bonds and the La Joya Wind Project and
hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the Bonds pursuant to the Master Bond
Ordinance to provide funds for the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project

4



Property is necessary and advisable and in the interest of and will promote the use of the natural
resources of the State, industry and trade and a sound and proper balance in the State between
agriculture, commerce and industry.

B. The Commission finds that:

(1)  The Bonds will be issued for the purpose of financing the
acquisition, construction and installation of the La Joya Wind Project.

(2)  The aggregate face amount of obligations to be issued with respect
to financing the La Joya Wind Project pursuant to this Master Bond Ordinance will not
collectively exceed $675,000,000.

(3)  The Project Site is located within the County and outside the
corporate limits of any municipality located in the County.

(4)  The developer of the 2019A Project is the 2019A Company.

(5)  The aggregate principal amount of the 2019A Bonds will not
exceed $290,000,000.

6) The Bonds may be issued in two or more series.
Section 3. BONDS - APPROVAL, AUTHORIZATION AND DETAIL.
A. Approval and Sale.

The issuance of the Bonds pursuant to this Master Bond Ordinance and the
applicable Supplemental Ordinance in a principal amount not to exceed $675,000,000 and the
use of the proceeds of the Bonds to finance the cost of the La Joya Wind Project including
payment of transaction expenses related thereto are hereby approved and confirmed. The sale of
the 2019A Bonds at par at a purchase price not to exceed $290,000,000 is approved.

B. Form and Terms.

Subject to the limitations set forth in this Master Bond Ordinance, the
2019A Bonds and 2019B Bonds, to be issued subsequently in one or more series, shall be issued
in a principal amount not to collectively exceed $675,000,000 and bearing interest at the rates
and maturing on the dates set forth in the 2019A Indenture and 2019B Indenture, respectively.
The 2019A Bonds shall (i) be in the form and denomination and shall be numbered and dated as
set forth in the 2019A Indenture, and (ii) be payable as to principal and interest and subject to
redemption in the amounts, upon the conditions and at the times and prices set forth in the 2019A
Indenture. The 2019B Bonds shall (i) be in the form and denomination and shall be numbered
and dated as set forth in the 2019B Indenture, and (ii) be payable as to principal and interest and
subject to redemption in the amounts, upon the conditions and at the times and prices set forth in

5



the 2019B Indenture presented to the Commission at the time of adoption of the Supplemental
Ordinance.

C. Execution. The 2019A Bonds and 2019B Bonds shall be signed by the
Chair of the Commission.

D. Interest Rate. The interest rate on the 2019A Bonds shall be 5% per
annum. The interest rate on the 2019B Bonds shall be as set forth in the Supplemental
Ordinance for the 2019B Bonds.

E. PILOT Payments.

1. 2019A PILOT Agreement. For the 2019A Bonds, the 2019A
Company shall pay annual payments in lieu of taxes (the “2019A PILOT") equal to $3,250 per
megawatt of generating capacity of the 2019A Project, which 2019A PILOT shall be split
between the County and the School Districts as provided in the 2019A Lease Agreement.

2. 2019B PILOT Agreement. Pursuant to this Master Bond Ordinance for
the 2019B Bonds to be issued pursuant to a Supplemental Ordinance, the 2019B Company shall
pay annual payments in lieu of taxes (the “2019B PILOT™) to be split between the County and
the applicable School Districts located within the boundaries of the La Joya II Project, equal to
$2,500 per megawatt of generating capacity for the La Joya II Project authorized pursuant to the
Supplemental Ordinance or such greater 2019B PILOT as provided in the table below depending
upon the price per megawatt hour negotiated in the applicable power purchase agreement (the
“PPA Price”) in place for the La Joya II Project (the “2019B PILOT Agreement™); provided,
however, if the PPA Price is not made publicly available by the power purchaser, the 2019B
PILOT agreed upon by the County and one or both of the School Districts, as applicable, and to
be split with the appropriate School District(s) shall be $3,250 per megawatt of generating
capacity for the La Joya II Project.

La Joya I1 PILOT
Price / 2019B La Joya Il PPA PRICE ($/megawatt generating
PILOT Schedule ($ / megawatt hour) capacity)

Range of PPA $ 18.00 - 18.99 $ 2,500.00
Prices $ 19.00 - 19.99 $ 2,638.89
$ 20.00 - 20.99 $ 2,777.78
$ 21.00 - 21.99 $ 2,916.67
$ 22.00 - 22.99 $ 3,055.56
$ 23.00 - 23.99 $ 3,194.44
$ 24.00 or higher $ 3,250.00

Section 4. AUTHORIZATION OF OFFICERS; APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTS;
ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN. The 2019A Bond Documents in the forms presented to the

6



Commission are hereby approved. The Chair of the Commission of the County is authorized to
approve the form, terms and provisions of the 2019A Bond Documents on behalf of the
Commission, provided that such form, terms and provisions are consistent with this Master Bond
Ordinance, and to execute and deliver in the name and on behalf of the County, and the County
Cletk or Deputy County Clerk are hereby authorized to attest, as necessary, the 2019A Bond
Documents. The Chair and the County Clerk are further authorized to execute, authenticate and
deliver such certifications, instruments, documents, letters and other agreements, including
security agreements, and to do such other acts and things, either prior to or after the date of
delivery of the 2019A Bonds, as are necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions
contemplated by the 2019A Bond Documents. The Chair, the County Manager and/or Clerk and
other officers of the County shall take such action as is necessary to effectuate the provisions of
the 2019A Indenture and shall take such action as is necessary in conformity with the Act to
finance the costs of the La Joya I Project and to carry out related transactions as contemplated by
this Master Bond Ordinance and the 2019A Bond Documents, including, without limitation, the
execution and delivery of any closing documents to be delivered in connection with the sale and
delivery of the 2019A Bonds.

The 2019B Documents shall be submitted to the Commission and approved as to form at
the time of adoption of the Supplemental Ordinance.

Section 5. DELIVERY OF THE 2019A BONDS. Upon the execution of the 2019A
Bond Documents, the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the 2019A Bond Documents and
upon receipt of the purchase price for the 2019A Bonds, the 2019A Bonds shall be executed,
authenticated and delivered to the 2019A Purchaser. The 2019A Bonds shall not be valid for any
purpose until the 2019A Bonds have been properly authenticated as set forth in the 2019A
Indenture.

Section 6. FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS. There is established in the 2019A Indenture,
and on and after the date on which the 2019A Bonds are issued there shall be maintained, the
funds and accounts as set forth in the 2019A Indenture. Other funds and accounts may be
established as are necessary under the 2019A Indenture.

Section 7. = FINDINGS REGARDING PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATED TO THE 2019A BONDS. The following determinations are made:

A. The maximum amount necessary in each year to pay the principal of and
interest on the 2019A Bonds, assuming issuance of the 2019A Bonds as of June 1, 2019, in the
maximum aggregate principal amount of $290,000,000 and bearing interest at the rate of 5.00%,
is as follows:



Year Total Debt Service Principal Interest

2019 $ 7,250,000 -0- $ 7,250,000
2020 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2021 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2022 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2023 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2024 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2025 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2026 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2027 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2028 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2029 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2030 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2031 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2032 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2033 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2034 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2035 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2036 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2037 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2038 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2039 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2040 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2041 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2042 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2043 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2044 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2045 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2046 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2047 14,500,000 -0- 14,500,000
2048 304,500,000 290,000,000 14,500,000



B. The 2019A Bonds will bear interest at the rate of five percent (5%) per
annum, or such other lower rate as is set forth in the Indenture.

C. The 2019A Bonds may be redeemed at any time without premium.

D. It shall not be necessary to deposit any amount in a debt service reserve
fund or a repair and replacement reserve fund for the maintenance of the Project Property.

E. The 2019A Lease shall require that the 2019A Company maintain the
Project Property in safe repair and in such operating condition as is needed for its operations and
carry proper insurance with respect to the Project Property as provided in the 2019A Lease.

F. The 2019A Lease shall require the 2019A Company to make lease
payments in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019A Bonds as
principal and interest become due and to pay all Related Costs (as defined in the 2019A Lease).

G. The 2019A Lease shall include a provision that the 2019A Company pay
the County and the School Districts the 2019A PILOT payments for so long as the 2019A Bonds
are outstanding,

Section 8. FINDINGS REGARDING PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND OTHER
MATTERS RELATED TO 2019B BONDS. The following determinations are made:

A. The maximum amount necessary in each year to pay the principal of and
interest and the interest rate on the 2019B Bonds authorized by this Master Bond Ordinance and
the Supplemental Ordinance shall be set forth in the Supplemental Ordinance.

B. The 2019B Bonds will bear interest at the rate set forth in the
Supplemental Ordinance or at such lower rate as is set forth in the Indenture for the 2019B
Bonds.

C. The 2019B Bonds may be redeemed at any time without premium.

D. It shall not be necessary to deposit any amount in a debt service reserve
fund or a repair and replacement reserve fund for the maintenance of the Project Property
associated with the La Joya II Project.

E. The 2019B Lease shall require that the 2019B Company maintain the
Project Property for the La Joya II Project in safe repair and in such operating condition as is
needed for its operations and carry proper insurance with respect to the Project Property as
provided in the 2019B Lease.



F. The 2019B Lease shall require the 2019B Company to make lease
payments in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2019B Bonds as
principal and interest become due and to pay all Related Costs (as defined in the 2019B Lease).

G. The 2019B Lease shall include a provision that the 2019B Company pay
the County and one or both of the School Districts, as applicable, payments in lieu of taxes
pursuant to the 2019B PILOT Agreement set forth in this Master Bond Ordinance for so long as
the 2019B Bonds are outstanding.

H. If the 2019B Bonds are issued -after 2019, the 2019B Bonds shall be
renamed in the Supplemental Ordinance with a designation corresponding to the year of issuance
of the 2019B Bonds, and references in this Master Bond Ordinance to the 2019B Bonds shall be
deemed applicable to such renamed series of 2019B Bonds.

Section 9. LIMITED - OBLIGATIONS. The Bonds shall be special limited
obligations of the County, payable solely from the Base Rent (as defined in the respective 2019A
Lease and 2019B Lease) paid by the 2019A Company and 2019B Company, respectively, to the
County as described in the respective 2019A Indenture and 2019B Indenture and any other
property or interest of the County specifically pledged under the Indenture and shall never
constitute a debt or indebtedness of the County or the State or any political subdivision thereof
within the meaning of any provision or limitation of the State Constitution or statutes, and shall
not constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against its general
credit or taxing power. Nothing contained in this Master Bond Ordinance or in the Bond
Documents for the 2019A Bonds and 2019B Bonds or any other instruments shall be construed
as obligating the County (except with respect to the Project Property and the application of the
revenues therefrom and the proceeds of the 2019A Bonds and 2019B Bonds, all as provided in
the Bond Documents), nor as incurring a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit
of the County or against its taxing powers, nor shall the breach of any agreement contained in
this Master Bond Ordinance, the Bond Documents, the 2019A Bonds, the 2019B Bonds or any
other instrument be construed as obligating the County (except with respect to the Project
Property and the application of the revenues therefrom and the proceeds of the Bonds, all as
provided in the Bond Documents), nor as incurring a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the
general credit of the County or against its taxing power, the County having no power to pay out
of its general funds.

Section 10. =~ APPROVAL OF INDEMNIFICATION. The Commission specifically
requires that the 2019A Lease and 2019B Lease contain provisions relating to indemnification
which provide that the Company shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its
Commission, officials, employees and agents against liability to the Company, or to any third
parties, that may be asserted against the County or its Commission, officials, members, officers,
employees or agents with respect to the County’s ownership of the Project Property or the
issuance of the Bonds and arising from the condition of the Project Property or the acquisition,
construction and operation of the Project Property by the Company, except to the extent NMSA
1978, Section 56-7-1 (2005) may preclude such indemnity, and except claims for any loss or

10



damage to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the County or its
Commission, or any official, employee or agent of the County.

Section11. BOND ORDINANCE IRREPEALABLE. After the any of the Bonds are
issued, the Master Bond Ordinance shall be and remain irrepealable until the Bonds, including
interest, are fully paid, canceled and discharged in accordance with the Indenture.

Section12. REPEALER. All bylaws, orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts
thereof, inconsistent with this Master Bond Ordinance are repealed by this Master Bond
Ordinance but only to the extent of that inconsistency. This repealer shall not be construed to
revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof, previously repealed.

Section 13.  SEVERABILITY. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of the
Master Bond Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity
or unenforceability of that section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of the Master Bond Ordinance.

Section 14. RECORDING; AUTHENTICATION; PUBLICATION; EFFECTIVE
DATE.. This Master Bond Ordinance, immediately upon its final passage and approval, shall be
authenticated by the signature of the Chair of the Commission, and by the signature of the
County Clerk or any Deputy County Clerk, and shall be recorded in the ordinance book of the
County, kept for that purpose, and shall be in full force and effect thereafter in accordance with
the laws of the State, and notice of adoption thereof shall be published once in a newspaper
which maintains an office in, and is of general circulation in the County.

11



Done this 10® day of April, 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,
TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Ryan Schwebach, Chair
By:
Kevin McCall, Commissioner
By:

Javier Sanchez, Commissioner

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

By:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

C:\Users\kmc\AppData\Local\Temp\iScrub\Email\1553102298\File0001.DOCX

12



Agenda Item
No. 10-B



AN ORDINANCE INCREASING THE SIZE OF THE TORRANCE COUNTY BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO FIVE MEMBERS AND EXPRESSING THE INTENT
TO DIVIDE THE COUNTY INTO FIVE COUNTY COMMISSION DISTRICTS.

Ordinance 2019-84—

WHEREAS Article 10, §7 of the New Mexico Constitution provides for the creation of a five-
member board of county commissioners upon a unanimous vote by the incumbent board of
commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners finds that the creation of a five-
member board of county commissioners would be in the best interests of the county; and

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of Commissioners has heretofore employed expert advice
regarding how to best divide the county into five county commission districts that shall be compact,
contiguous and as nearly equal in population as practicable; and

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this ordinance, one county commissioner shall reside within and be
elected from each county commission district.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the unanimous vote of the Torrance County Board
of Commissioners as follows:

SECTION 1: SHORT TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known as the “CREATION OF A FIVE-MEMBER BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ORDINANCE,” and shall be referred to herein as “this
Ordinance.”

SECTION 2: AUTHORITY

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to counties under NMSA 1978, §§ 4-
37-1 through -13 (1975, as amended 2003) and Article 10, §7 of the New Mexico Constitution.

SECTION 3: ADOPTION OF FIVE-MEMBER BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

The Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County is hereby increased in size to five
members to be elected in accordance with the election laws of the State of New Mexico. One
county commissioner shall be elected from each district as established hereafter by the board of
county commissioners.



SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall be recorded and authenticated by the County Clerk following unanimous
adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be
thirty (30) days after the Ordinance has been recorded.

Ryan Schwebach
Chair, Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Kevin McCall
Commissioner

Javier Sanchez
Commissioner
Adttest;

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk



Agenda Item
No. 11-4



TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2019-

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF FISCAL 2018 AUDIT REPORT

NNV AW N -

WHEREAS, Hinkle and Landers, CPA presented the Torrance County Independent

8  Auditors Report and Financial Statements March 27, at the Torrance County Commission’s

9  regularly scheduled administrative meeting pursuant to NMSA (1978) Section 2.2.2.10M(4);and
10 WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico Department of Finance Administration requires a
11 “copy of the governing body’s resolution acknowledging and accepting the Fiscal Year 2018
12 audit findings and management’s responses for correcting the findings”.
13 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:
14 The Torrance County Commission does hereby acknowledge and accept the Fiscal Year

15 2018 findings and management responses.

16 DONE THIS 10" DAY OF APRIL, 2019,
17 s
18
19 APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
: 2 2
21 7 Pl ——
22 County Attorney Date Jyan Schwebach, Chair—
_ - iz
24 _— Kevin McCall, Member
TR
JayierSanchez, Member
Wl
\\\\\\ ﬂ.q,;_ 'Co,é,,’l/
oUN L7
P ’1;\,,_
1<z
SEAL:o:
o
o




Agenda Item
No. 11-B



TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2019-

Budget Increase

WHERAS, the Torrance County Commission in regular session on Wednesday, April 24, 2019 did propose to authorize a
budget increase in the FY 2018-2019 Budget, and

WHEREAS, budget increases require authorization from the Department of Finance and Administration, and

WHEREAS, we request authorization for the following budget increase: (See Attachment A)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, we respectfully request approval for the attached budget increase in the FY
2018-19 budget from Department of Finance and Administration .

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico T

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Attest: Kevin McCall, District 1

Ryan Schwebach, District 2

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Javier E. Sanchez District 3

Vote Record

Kevin McCall yes no abstain absent
Ryan Schwebach yes no abstain absent
Javier E. Sanchez yes no abstain absent

DFA Approval




Torrance County
Resolution 2019-

Budget Increase

Schedule A
May 24,2019
Funding Source: Revenue Expenditure
Department | Source Line item mowo%no: | Amount Line item Description Amount
Assessor |Loan 632 00 | 1 | 140 |TRD Loan Proceeds| $ 70,422.00 632 47 | 2 | 228 |Software Updgrade S 70,422.00
_._.o._.>r $ 70,422.00 $ 7042200




Requesting Department;

TORRANCE COUNTY
Budget Increase Request Form

Assessor - Loan

My department hereby requests that the following budget increase be made to the budget:

Revenue Increase:

Expenditure Increase: $
Line Item Line Item Line Item Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Increase
632-00-1140 Property Tax Div Loan Proceeds [632-47-2228 Software $ 70,422.00

Reason for Budget Increase (Please attach documentation):
Property Tax Division Loan was approved and funded.

|

C\/Eud@f%?s _

i

\E

Signature

Q

Date

T

Rev. 11/12




Agenda Item
No. 11-C



TORRANCE COUNTY RESOLUTION# 2019-

Line Item Transfers

WHERAS, line item transfers within the same fund require authorization from the Torrance County

Commission,and

WHEREAS, the attached line item transfers within the same fund are hereby authorized:

(See Schedule A)

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Torrance County Commission

DONE at Estancia, New Mexico, Torrance County this 24th day of April 2019.

Attest:

Linda Jaramillo
Torrance County Clerk

Vote Record

Kevin McCall yes
Ryan Schwebach yes
Javier E. Sanchez yes

no
no
no

abstain
abstain
abstain

absent
absent
absent

Torrance County Board of Commissioners

Kevin McCall, District 1

Ryan Schwebach, District 2

Javier E. Sanchez District 3




Torrance County

Resolution 2019-
Line Item Transfer
Schedule A
Funding Source: Transfer From: Transfer To: Total

Department Source Line Item Description Line ltem Description Amount
Clerk Clerk's Equipment 612 20 2 617 |Voting Machine Storage 612 20 2 207 |Telecommunications $ 60.00
Clerk General 401 21 2 226 |Election Boards 401 20 2 207 |Telecommunications 3 1,200.00
Clerk General 401 21 2 226 |Election Boards 401 21 2 104 |Overtime $ 800.00
Clerk General 401 21 2 226 |Election Boards 401 21 2 219 |Office Supplies $ 300.00
Sheriff General 401 50 2 205 |Mileage / Per Diem 401 50 2 219 |Office Supplies $ 2,000.00
Road Dpt Road Fund 402 60 2 607 |Grader/Equipment Lease 402 60 2 256 |Road Materials $ 15,000.00
Treasurer General 401 30 2 104 |Overtime Salaries 401 30 2 219 |Office Supplies 3 2,500.00
Treasurer General 401 30 2 202 |Vehicle Fuel 401 30 2 219 |Office Supplies $ 800.00
Treasurer General 401 30 2 205 |Mileage/ Per Diem 401 30 2 219 |Office Supplies $ 800.00
Treasurer General 401 30 2 266 |[Training 401 30 2 219 |Office Supplies $ 1,000.00
w -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

w -

@ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -
TEHE R R AR
TOTAL $ 24,460.00




Requesting Department:

TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Clerk

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line Item Line Item Line Item Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
401-21-2226 Election Boards 401-20-2207 Telecommunications $1,200.00
612-20-2617 Voting Machine Storage 612-20-2207 Telecommunications | $ 60.00
401-21-2226 Election Boards 401-21-2104 Overtime $ 800.00
401-21-2226 Election Boards 401-21-2219 Office Supplies $ 300.00

Increase after switching to AT&T/Overtime taken from wrong line item/office supplies taken from wrong budget line item

Rev. 06/12




Requesting Department:

TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Sheriff

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: ~Transfer To: $
Line Item Line item Line Item Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
401-50-2205___|Mileage / Per Diem 401-50-2219 Office Supplies 2,000.00

B R R| PR R R e

Reason for Transfer:

Transfer to cover purchases until the end of the fiscal year and negative line item balances.

S

—

(N AL

AL. rﬂ

Signature

N

N

Date

Rev. 06/12




Requesting Department:

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

TORRANCE COUNTY

Line Item Transfer Form

ool Ve pt

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line item Line Item Line Item Line ltem Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
TQR-40-2¢077 Geden fors/ Leases Y02-60 2356 [ NeYecials 7/5000 .00

Reason for Transfer:

Jo Pucches Modgel o [epan Clio Sead Peeds |

2AA Pot oles

Cligsme. PLY.

~-17-19

Signature

Date




Requesting Department:

TORRANCE COUNTY
Line Item Transfer Form

Treasurer

My department hereby requests that the following line item transfer(s) be made to the budget:

Transfer From: Transfer To: $
Line item Line item Line ltem Line Item Amount of
Number Description Number Description Transfer
401-30-2104 Overtime Salaries 401-30-2219 Office Supplies $ 2,500.00
401-30-2202 Vehicle Fuel 401-30-2219 Office Supplies $ 800.00
401-30-2205 Mileage/Per Diem 401-30-2219 Office Supplies $ 800.00
401-30-2266 Training 401-30-2219 Office Supplies $ 1,000.00

Reason for Transfer:

Transferring money to computer replacements

Mhaa Ll

{1619

Signaturg

s_ﬁ

Daté

Rev. 06/12




Agenda Item
No. 12-A4



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES DEPARTMENT

Alternative to Detention Services for JJS
AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of New Mexico,
CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES DEPARTMENT, hereinafter referred to as the
“Agency,” and County of Torrance, hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor,” and is effective
as of the date set forth below upon which it is executed by the Agency.

WHEREAS, the Agency is the State agency designated to receive and administer federal funds
and desires to engage and the contractor is willing to provide the services outlined pursuant to
Article IT - Scope of Work.

NOW THEREFORE, the Agency and the Contractor in consideration of mutual covenants and
agreements herein contained, do hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE L. Term of Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE UPON WHICH IT IS
EXECUTED BY THE AGENCY SECRETARY OR DESIGNEE. This Agreement shall terminate
on June 30, 2020 unless terminated pursuant to Article VI (Termination of Agreement), or Article
XXIII (Appropriations).

ARTICLE I1. Scope of Work

The Contractor shall provide the program of services as set forth in the scope of work which is
attached hereto as “Attachment 1 — Scope of Work” and incorporated herein by reference, unless
amended or terminated pursuant to Article VI (Termination of Agreement), or Article XXIII
(Appropriations), infra. In consideration for the provision of those services, the Agency agrees to
purchase and the Contractor agrees to perform the services identified in the Scope of Work.

ARTICLE IIL Limitation of Cost

The total amount of the monies payable to the Contractor under this Agreement shall not exceed
One Hundred Thirteen Thousand Six Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($113,600.00). The
annual budget is attached hercto as “Attachment 2 — Budget” and incorporated herein by
reference.

ARTICLE 1V. Payment

The Agency shall make monthly payments to the Contractor for services and costs specified in
Attachment 2 - Budget. The Contractor shall submit certified and documented invoices and
vouchers monthly for actual work performed and expenses incurred to the Agency. The
Contractor’s failure to submit such payment vouchers, invoices, and supporting documentation
within fifteen (15) days after they are due may result in the non-availability of funds for payment
and/or the denial of payment by the Agency.

ARTICLE V. Return of Funds
Upon termination of this Agreement, or after the services provided for herein have been rendered,

1 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

surplus money, if any, shall be returned by the Contractor to the Agency.

ARTICLE VL Termination of Agreement

A. Grounds. The Agency may terminate this Agreement for convenience or cause. The
Contractor may only terminate this Agreement based upon the Agency’s uncured, material breach
of this Agreement.

B. Notice: Agency Opportunity to Cure.

1. Except as otherwise provided in Article (VINB)(3), the Agency shall give
Contractor written notice of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of
termination.

2. Contractor shall give Agency written notice of termination at least thirty (30) days
prior to the intended date of termination, which notice shall (i) identify all the Agency’s material
breaches of this Agreement upon which the termination is based and (ii) state what the Agency
must do to cure such material breaches. Contractor’s notice of termination shall only be effective
(i) if the Agency does not cure all material breaches within the thirty (30) day notice period or
(i1) in the case of material breaches that cannot be cured within thirty (30) days, the Agency does
not, within the thirty (30) day notice period, notify the Contractor of its intent to cure and begin
with due diligence to cure the material breach.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately upon
written notice to the Contractor (i) if the Contractor becomes unable to perform the services
contracted for, as determined by the Agency; (ii) if, during the term of this Agreement, the
Contractor is suspended or debarred by the State Purchasing Agent; or (iii) the Agreement is
terminated pursuant to Article XXIII, “Appropriations”, of this Agreement.

C. Liability. Except as otherwise expressly allowed or provided under this Agreement, the
Agency’s sole liability upon termination shall be to pay for acceptable work performed prior to
the Contractor’s receipt or issuance of a notice of termination; provided, however, that a notice of
termination shall not nullify or otherwise affect either party’s liability for pre-termination defaults
under or breaches of this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice for such work within
thirty (30) days of receiving or sending the notice of termination. THIS PROVISION IS NOT
EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE THE AGENCY'S OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND
REMEDIES CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

D. Termination Management. Immediately upon receipt by either the Agency or the
Contractor of notice of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: 1) not incur any further
obligations for salaries, services or any other expenditure of funds under this Agreement without
written approval of the Agency; 2) comply with all directives issued by the Agency in the notice
of termination as to the performance of work under this Agreement; and 3) take such action as the
Agency shall direct for the protection, preservation, retention or transfer of all property titled to
the Agency and records generated under this Agreement. Any non-expendable personal property
or equipment provided to or purchased by the Contractor with contract funds shall become
property of the Agency upon termination and shall be submitted to the Agency as soon as
practicable.

2 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

ARTICLE VII. Funds Accountability

The parties shall provide for strict accountability of all monies made subject to this Agreement.
The Contractor shall maintain fiscal records, follow generally accepted accounting principles, and
account for all receipts and disbursements of funds transferred to the Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor will include all monies made subject to this Agreement in the annual
audit and will provide the Agency with a copy of the annual audit.

ARTICLE VIIIL Maintenance of Records

The Contractor shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records that indicate the date, time,
nature and cost of services rendered during the Agreement’s term and effect and retain them for a
period of three (3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement. The records shall
be subject to inspection by the Agency, the New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration and the New Mexico State Auditor. The Agency shall have the right to audit
billings both before and after payment. Payment under this Agreement shall not foreclose the right
of the Agency to recover excessive or illegal payments. The Contractor agrees to comply with the
requirements and regulations set forth in Attachment 3—Administrative and Fiscal Standards,
unless the Contractor effectively demonstrates in writing, with written approval from the Agency,
that any specific Standard is inapplicable to such Contractor.

ARTICLE IX. Confidentiality

Any confidential information provided to or developed by the Contractor in the performance of
this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be made available to any individual or
organization by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the Agency.

ARTICLE X. Amendments
A. This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument in writing
executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories.

B. If the Agency proposes an amendment to the Agreement to unilaterally reduce funding due
to budget or other considerations, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the
proposed Amendment, have the option to terminate the Agreement, pursuant to the termination
provisions as set forth in Article VI herein, or to agree to the reduced funding.

ARTICLE XI. Assignment

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any claims for
money due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the
Agency.

ARTICLE XII. Applicable Law

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its
choice of law provisions. Venue shall be proper only in a New Mexico court of competent
jurisdiction in accordance with Section 38-3-1 (G) NMSA 1978. By execution of this Agreement,
Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New
Mexico over any and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this Agreement.

3 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

ARTICLE XIII. Acquisition of Property

The parties agree that neither party shall acquire any property as the result of this Agreement,
unless approved by the Agency or defined in the scope of work.

ARTICLE XIV. Liability

Each party shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other sanctions occasioned as a result of its own
violation or alleged violation or requirements applicable to the performance of the Agreement.
Each party shall be liable for its actions according to this Agreement subject to the immunities and
limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1, et. seq., NMSA 1978, as
amended.

ARTICLE XV. Execution of Documents
The Agency and the Contractor agree to execute any document(s) necessary to implement the
terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI. Sub-Contracts

The Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement without the prior written approval by the Agency Secretary or Designee. No such
subcontract shall relieve the primary Contractor from any obligations and liabilities under this
Agreement, nor shall subcontract obligate direct payment from the Agency. Contractor must notify
subcontractors that they are subject to Article VIII - Maintenance of Records of this agreement.

ARTICLE XVII. Equal Opportunity Compliance

The Contractor agrees to abide by all federal and state laws, rules and regulations, and executive
orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity.
In accordance with all such laws of the State of New Mexico, the Contractor assures that no person
in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex,
age, physical or mental handicap, or serious medical condition, spousal affiliation, sexual
orientation or gender identity, be excluded from employment with or participation in, be denied
the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
performed under this Agreement. If Contractor is found not to be in compliance with these
requirements during the life of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to take appropriate steps to
correct these deficiencies.

ARTICLE XVIII. Workers’ Compensation

The Contractor agrees to comply with state laws and rules applicable to workers’ compensation
benefits for its employees. If the Contractor fails to comply with the Workers’ Compensation Act
and applicable rules when required to do so, this Agreement may be terminated by the Agency.

ARTICLE XIX. Lobbying Certification
The Contractor, by signing below, certifies to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, that:

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on the behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
member of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding
of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds

4 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer
or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit a Standard Form LLL,
"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions. The undersigned shall
require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for sub-awards at
all tiers (including sub-contracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is
a material representation of facts upon which reliance is placed when this transaction is made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S.C. (United States Code). Any person who fails
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000.00 and
not more than $100,000.00 for each such failure.

ARTICLE XX. New Mexico Employees Health Coverage

(Governmental entities are excluded from this provision)

A. If Contractor has, or grows to, six (6) or more employees who work, or who are expected to
work, an average of at least 20 hours per week over a six (6) month period during the term of the
contract, Contractor certifies, by signing this agreement, to have in place, and agrees to maintain
for the term of the contract, health insurance for those employees and offer that health insurance
to those employees no later than July 1, 2010 if the expected annual value in the aggregate of any
and all contracts between Contractor and the State exceed $250,000 dollars.

B. Contractor agrees to maintain a record of the number of employees who have (a) accepted
health insurance; (b) declined health insurance due to other health insurance coverage already in
place; or (c) declined health insurance for other reasons. These records are subject to review and
audit by a representative of the State of New Mexico.

C. Contractor agrees to advise all employees of the availability of State publicly financed health
care coverage programs by providing each employee with, as a minimum, the following web site
link to additional information: http://insurenewmexico.state.nm.us/.

ARTICLE XXI. Background Checks

Agency contractors that have or could have primary custody of children for at least twenty hours
per week are required to comply with NMAC 8.8.3 et. seq. requiring background checks on any
employee, staff, volunteer or student intern, that has direct care responsibilities or potential
unsupervised physical access to clients. Additionally, all Information Technology (IT) contractors
are required to have a background check. The contractor must submit to Agency Background
Check Unit fingerprint cards and the appropriate fee for such employees, volunteers or staff
required to have background checks. The Agency Background Check Unit will conduct
nationwide, state and abuse and neglect background checks on required staff or volunteers in
accordance with NMAC 8.8.3 standards. An Agency eligibility letter must be in the employee,
volunteer or staff member’s personnel file prior to that individual having any unsupervised direct
contact or unsupervised potential access to clients.

5 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

ARTICLE XXII.  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996

The Contractor agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of
1996, and the terms in Attachment 4, Business Associate Agreement, which is attached and
incorporated by reference.

ARTICLE XXIII. Appropriations

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization
being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this Agreement. If
sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the Legislature, this Agreement shall
terminate immediately upon written notice being given by the Agency to the Contractor. The
Agency's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted by the
Contractor and shall be final. If the Agency proposes an amendment to the Agreement to
unilaterally reduce funding, the Contractor shall have the option to terminate the Agreement or to
agree to the reduced funding, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the proposed amendment.

ARTICLE XXIV. Suspension and Debarment Form
The Contractor agrees to comply with the guidelines set for the in the Suspension and Debarment
Form in Attachment 5, Suspension and Debarment Form.

ARTICLE XXV. Federal Award Identification

Federal award information shall be provided to Contractor based on Uniform Grant Guidance
requirements, Title 2 Subtitle A Chapter 2 Part 200 Subpart D Section 200.331. This information
relates to sub-recipients of Federal award at the time of award in Attachment 6, Federal Award
Identification form.

6 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be
executed, said Agreement to become effective as of the date set forth below upon which it is
exccuted by Agency Secretary or Designee.
Contractor-County of Torrance

Date:
Authorized Signatory

Printed Title of Authorized Signatory

B B Date:
Legal Counsel, Contractor

Agency — New Mexico Children, Youth and Families Department

- - ) Date:
Secretary or Designee, CYFD
- Date:
Chief Financial Officer, CYFD
Approved as to legal form and sufficiency.
Date:

Office of General Counsel, CYFD

7 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Goal:

Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 1 — Scope of Work
Torrance County

To improve the Juvenile Justice System and decrease the incidences of juvenile delinquency in the
community while increasing the emphasis on prevention and early intervention in juvenile justice

services.

Objective:

To provide a continuum of cost effective services and temporary, non-secure alternatives to
detention for youth who have been arrested or referred to the juvenile probation office or are at
risk of such referral.

Activities:

The Contractor shall:

A. Develop and maintain a juvenile justice advisory board, herein referred to as the
“Community Advisory Board (CAB)”, as required by statute under the Juvenile Continuum
Act and the New Mexico Administrative Code 8.14.13.7(E). The Contractor, through the
Juvenile Justice Continuum Coordinator (refer to paragraph B), will organize and
coordinate regular meetings of the CAB.

The CAB will:

1.

Develop and improve the “Comprehensive Strategic Plan” for juvenile justice and
detention reform in Torrance County to be updated a minimum of once per year;

2. Set policy for the Comprehensive Strategic Plan and the activities supported under
this Agreement;

3. Determine the duties and responsibilities of the Juvenile Justice Continuum
Coordinator, in accordance with the Scope of Work;

4. Provide oversight for the programs/service identified in the Scope of Work;

5. Continue to collaborate with the City and County to ensure improvements in the
operational collaboration of local resources and service providers; and

6. Maintain a plan for sustainability of the programs/services implemented by the
CAB.

B. Contract with or hire a Juvenile Justice Continuum Coordinator who will:

1. Organize, coordinate and provide staff support for the CAB; this will include board
development activities in conjunction with the CAB chair;

2. Inform the Agency’s Program Manager of the date of each meeting and submit a

copy of the written minutes of each meeting, within thirty (30) days of the meeting;

8 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

3. Coordinate/oversee the programmatic delivery of subcontract requirements of local
Continuum service providers;

4. Submit to the Agency’s Program Manager monthly requests for reimbursement.
Such requests will be submitted on Agency Program Invoice and Expenditure
Report forms, signed and sated by an authorized agent of the Contractor, to ensure
that requests for reimbursement are submitted by the due date of the fifteenth (15)
day of the following month, unless otherwise approved by the Agency’s Program
Manager, in advance;

5. Provide data reports as required by the federal government, corresponding to the
activities described in this Scope of Work. The Agency’s Program Manager will
provide the data report format. Programmatic data reports will be submitted
monthly to the Agency and must accompany the monthly invoice. Failure to submit
such programmatic data and financial reports may result in notice to the Contractor
of non-availability of funds and/or the denial of payment by the Agency.

6. Provide the Agency standardized progress reports monthly;

7. Submit to the Agency a written “Final Report” no later than 15 days after the
termination of this Agreement and such other reports deemed necessary by the
Agency. The Final Report shall contain at a minimum, but not be restricted to:

a. accomplishments/milestones achieved during this Agreement period,
b reporting on program specific performance measures and related outcomes;
c. statements regarding obstacles and progress made;
d continuing development and improvement of the Comprehensive Strategic
Plan for the continuum programs and services; and
e. provide plan for sustainability of programs/services.
8. Attend meetings as required by the Agency.

The Contractor, based upon their application for the Juvenile Justice Continuum Gant and
Title II Formula, Grant, submitted for state fiscal year 2020, and incorporated herein by
reference, agrees to contract with or hire to provide the following services as detailed in
the aforementioned grant application which has been incorporated by reference, to youth,
referred by the required partners or that are at risk of receiving such a referral, reimbursed
based upon the fixed prices and number of youth to be served listed in Attachment 2 —
Budget:

1. Back on T-RAC Program,;
2. Gender Specific.

Duties and Responsibilities:

The Contractor shall:

A

Ensure that the CAB meets all goals and objectives and completes activities as specified in
this contract and in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws.

9 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

The Contractor agrees that funds received under this award will not be used to supplant
state or local funds, but will be used to increase the amounts of such funds that would, in
the absence of federal funds, be made available for program activities.

The Contractor understands that the Agency reserves the right to conduct periodic on-site
monitoring visits upon reasonable notice to the Contractor and sub-contractors prior to cach
Visit.

The Contractor understands that it will be subject to additional financial and programmatic
on-site monitoring, which may be on short notice, and agrees that it will cooperate with
any such monitoring.

Attend meectings and trainings as required by the Agency.
Provide copies of the CAB’s meeting minutes within thirty (30) days of the meeting.
The Contractor agrees to demonstrate an emphasis on effective, evidence-based strategies.

Ensure that all programs must commence and be operational within ninety (90) days of the
last signatory executing this Agreement. If the Contractor’s program has not commenced
or is not operational within that timeframe, the Contractor must report in writing to the
Agency the steps taken to initiate the program, the reasons for the delay, and the expected
starting date prior to the end of the ninety (90) days. If this justification is not received
prior to the end of the ninety (90) days, the Contractor’s program, at the Agency’s
discretion, may be terminated and the funds allocated to that program redistributed to other
sites or programs.

Submit reimbursement invoices to the Agency no later than fifteen (15) days after the end

of each month. At a minimum, invoice documentation must include:

1. The approved Agency’s Program Invoice and Expenditure Report forms; and

2. Any supporting documentation the Agency requires to verify the expense. This
includes, but is not limited to invoices, receipts, time sheets, payroll registers,
general ledger account reports, and proof of payment.

Submit monthly programmatic data reports no later than fifteen (15) days after the end of
each month. The submission of all reports are to be in the Agency provided form and
format and is unacceptable in any other formats or hand written.

Submit a final closeout report outlining all accomplishments, measurement of goals and
objectives, and barriers to successful implementation or completion of this program within
fifteen (15) days of the termination date of this Agreement. The submission of all reports
are to be in the Agency provided form and format and is unacceptable in any other formats
or hand written.

The Contractor agrees to comply with any and all additional reporting requirements or
informational requests imposed by the Agency, Department of Justice, Office of Justice

10 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Programs, or the New Mexico Legislature. The Agency will notify the Contractor of any
additional reporting requirements as they are imposed.

Through the Budget Adjustment Request (BAR) form, submit to the Agency any
amendments by the Contractor to request changes and/or corrections for any programmatic,
administrative, or financial element associated with this Agreement. The Agency, by
written notice, has the right to deny any amendment request. All final BAR forms must be
submitted to the Agency no later than forty-five (45) days prior to the end of the fiscal year.
Requests submitted after that date may not be accepted or approved.

Communication and details concerning this Agreement shall be directed to the following
representative:

Agency Contractor

Consuelo Garcia Wayne Johnson

JJAC Grant Manager Torrance County Manager
Children, Youth and Families Department  Torrance County

P.O. Drawer 5160, Room 541B P.O. Box 48

Santa Fe, NM 87502 Estancia, NM 87016

(P) 505-470-7494 (P) 505-544-4700

The Contractor’s obligation to the Agency shall not end until all close out requirements are
completed. Activities during this period shall include, but are not limited to: making final
payments, disposing of program assets (including the return of all unused materials,
equipment, program income balances, and accounts receivable to the Agency),
performance measurement reports and determining the custodianship of records.

The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the Agency for any travel outside the
State of New Mexico with funds provided under this Agreement. Per Diem and mileage,
and other miscellaneous expense, will be paid in accordance with the Department of
Finance and Administration (DFA) Rule 2.42.2 NMAC. The request will be in the Agency
provided form and format.

The Contractor will include all applicable provisions of this Agreement in every sub-
contract or purchase order, specifically or by reference, so that such provisions will be
binding upon each of its own sub-contractors.

The Contractor, as well as all sub-contractors, is prohibited from using funds provided
herein or personnel employed in the administration of the program for: political activities,
sectarian or religious activities, lobbying, political patronage, and nepotism activities.

The Contractor agrees to comply with applicable restrictions on sub-contracts that do not
acquire and provide a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number. This special
condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural
person (1.¢., unrelated to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or
operate in his or her name).

11 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

The Contractor agrees that award funds may not be used to maintain or establish a computer
network unless such network blocks the viewing, downloading, and exchanging of
pornography.

This restriction does not apply to the use of funds for any federal, state, tribal or local law
enforcement agency or any other entity carrying out criminal investigations, prosecution,
or adjudication activities. Any such activity funded under this Agreement must be reported
to the Agency immediately.

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text
messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
contract, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and
other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, as pursuant to Executive
Order 13513. “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving”, 74 Fed.
Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009).

The Contractor understand and agrees that any training or training materials developed or
delivered with funding provided under this contract must adhere to the Office of Justice
Programs Training Guiding Principles for Grantee and Subgrantees, available at
http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/funding/ojptraininggiudingprinciples.htm.

Mandatory Reporting Information: Under New Mexico law, all persons are mandatory
reporters of suspected abuse or neglect of children. If the contractor suspects abuse or
neglect in the audited facilities, the contractor must contact the New Mexico Statewide
Central Intake Hotline (SCI) at 1-855-333-SAFE or #SAFE from a cellphone.

The Agency shall:

A.

Reimburse Contractor for verified services provided and incurred costs as stated in
Attachment 2 — Budget.

Provide information and/or make referrals for training and technical assistance.

Based on periodic program and fiscal reviews, the Agency retains the sole discretion to
reduce the budget of Contractors who do not provide sufficient services, do not submit the
required programmatic and financial reports as required, or do not expend funds under this
Agreement in a timely manner. The Agency retains the sole discretion to reduce contract
amount and reallocate the resulting funds to a Contractor that is able to provide the required
services during the contract period. Additionally, any funds not used per the budget as
stated in Attachment 2 — Budget shall revert unless otherwise allowed by the Agency in
writing.

The Agency will review:

12 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Sub-contracts and programs for accomplishment of Qutcomes and Performance
Measures as set forth in this Agreement.

The Community Advisory Board activities and member participation in periodic
meetings of the CAB, including minutes of each Board meeting to be provided to
the Agency..

Any additional funding received by the Contractor for the specific activities and
programs included in this Agreement, including efforts by the Contractor to sustain
and enhance funding for these programs. The Agency also retains the sole
discretion to adjust amounts received under this Agreement if funds are received
by the Contractor from other sources for the same services and activities to be
performed under this Agreement.

Data Collection:

As a condition of funding, the Contractor agrees to report, at minimum, the following
demographics, core measures and performance measurements.

Demographics:
A. City, State and Zip Code for each youth served,;
B. Race/Ethnicity;
C. Population Served:
1. At-Risk Youth;
2. First Time Offender;
3. Repeat Offender;
4, Sex Offender;
5. Status Offender; and
6. Violent Offender.
D. Youth Currently in Detention;
E. Gender:
1. Male;
2. Female; or
3. Transgender.
F. Month and Year of Birth;
G. Geographic Location:
1. Urban;
2. Tribal,
3. Rural; or
4, Frontier.
H. Other Population Information:

LN

Mental Health;
Substance Abuse;
Truant/Dropout; or
Pregnant.

13 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Core Measures:

New youth admissions during this reporting period,

Number of program youth carried over from previous reporting period;

Total number of youth in the program;

Total number of youth who exited the program during the reporting period;

Number of youth who exited the program having completed the program requirements
during the reporting period;

Percent of youth who successfully completed the program;

How many youth is your program designed to serve;

Number of current program youth who had an arrest during the reporting period;

Number of current program youth who were committed to a juvenile facility during the
reporting period;

Number of program youth who had a re-arrest during the reporting period,

Number of program youth who were re-committed during the reporting period;

Number of program youth who were re-sentenced/received a subsequent consequence
during the reporting period;

M. Number of program youth with gang activity; and

N. Number of program youth who reported being satisfied with the program.

~EOW mOU0WwW>

el R

Program Specific Performance Measures:

A Back T-RAC Program:

1. 50% of youth who demonstrate risk of self-harm upon entry (JIFF) report a decrease
at exit (JIFF);
3. 60% of youth who report substance use upon entry (JIFF) show a decrease in usage
at exit (JIFF) and
4. 50% of youth report increase in school participation or academic performance
(JIFF).
B. Gender Specific:
1. At Least 50% of youth report stronger school attachment;
2. At least 30% of youth report avoiding self-harm; and
3. At least 30% of youth report avoiding alcohol or tobacco.
PULLTOGETHER:

1. If Contractor's information is on PULLTOGETHER .org, Contractor is responsible for
ensuring that their contact information is current on the website. Updated information may be
sent to info@pulltogether.org.

2. If Contractor's information is not on PULLTOGETHER .org and they would like to request
that their information be on the website, please send a request to info@pulltogether.org.

3. If printed materials or printed items are purchased utilizing funds under this contract, those
items will be on a PullTogether template or have the PullTogether logo. To obtain the template
or logo please email info@pulltogether.org.

4. Contractor is responsible for reaching out to three other non-profits or organizations in their
area that serve child and families to discuss how to better collaborate and deliver services in a

14 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

coordinated manner. A list of non-profits or organizations may be found on
PULLTOGETHER.org.

15 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 2 — Budget
Torrance County

A. Continuum and Board Activities:
Continuum Coordinator = $33,000
Travel = 900
Youth Committee Members = 300
$34,200
B. RAC Program:
Based on serving 165 youth
RAC Services $250 x 260 Days =$65,000
C. Gender Specific
Based on serving 60 youth
Boys Council $150 x 48 Session = § 7,200
Girls Circle $150 x 48 Session = 7.200
$14,400
Total Grant Award not to exceed: $113.600

The Contractor shall be required to source a minimum of forty-percent (40%) of the total budgeted
grant amount with local matching funds. The local matching funds may consist of money, land,
equipment or in-kind services. Matching funds should be expended at the same rate as the grant
funds and must be reported on the monthly invoices.

Budgeted and contracted Grant Amount §113,600
40% Minimum Match Liability for Torrance County 45.440
Projected Budgeted Amount $159,040

*Per Diem and Mileage rates based upon the Administration (DFA) Rule 2.42.2.

FUNDING INFORMATION: Juvenile Continuum Grant Fund (State General Fund)

16 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 3

CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES DEPARTMENT’S
ADMINISTRATIVE
AND

FISCAL STANDARDS

For Sole Proprietors,
For Non-Profit Organizations,
Local Bodies of Government,
And

For-Profit Incorporated Entities

Revised February 16, 2017

Note: All contractors and subcontractors are required to adhere to all local, state and
Jfederal regulations as applicable to their operations. All contractors are required to
Jollow audit and reporting requirements set forth in this document. In the event of a
contradiction between these standards and contract requirements the contract
agreement supersedes the Administrative and Fiscal Standards.

17 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

ADMINISTRATIVE STANDARDS

For Non-Profit Orcanizations (with the exception of New Mexico hicher education

institutions. executive. judicial. and legislative branches of state sovernment)

L.

The Board shall ensure that the Non-Profit Organization has current articles of
incorporation that meet all of the legal requirements of the governmental jurisdiction in
which the contractor is located.

The Board shall ensure that the Non-Profit Organization has current by-laws that are filed
with the appropriate local, state, federal body or higher education institutions. At a
minimum, the Non-Profit Organization’s by-laws should include:

Recording of minutes;
Method for amending by-laws.

a. Membership (types, qualification, rights, duties);
b. Size of Board of Directors;

¢. Method of selection and removal;

d. Duties and responsibilities of officers;

e. Committees;

f.  Quorums;

g.

h.

The Board shall ensure that the Non-Profit Organization complies with applicable legal
requirements and regulations of all governmental and legally authorized agencies under
whose authorities it operates. These include, but are not limited to those regarding equal
employment opportunity, workers compensation, unemployment insurance, affirmative
action, safety, licensing, etc.

Board members shall be residents of the area served by the organization and
representative of the social, economic, linguistic, ethnic, and racial target population.
The Non-Profit Organization shall not employ a person related to a Board member by
consanguinity or affinity within the third degree. This includes, but is not limited to,
spouse, mother, father, brother, sister, grandparents, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, first
cousins, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law.

A permanent record shall be kept of all meetings of the Board. Minutes of the meetings
of the Non-Profit Organization’s Board are required in order to accurately record the
decisions made and actions taken. These minutes shall include, but not be limited to,
meeting date, names of members attending, topic discussed, decisions reached, actions
taken, and attachment of any documents referenced. Board minutes shall be signed and
approved by an officer of the Board.

18 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



For All Contractors

Personnel

Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

1. The Contractor shall have a current and dated organization chart that accurately reflects
the staff structure of authority, responsibility and accountability within the organization.
The organizational chart must illustrate the relationship of each position or department to
all other positions or departments within the organization.

2. The Contractor shall have written personnel policies and procedures. All policies and
procedures shall be reviewed annually, and any changes, additions, deletions, etc., shall
be dated. Procedures must be in place that allows employees to provide input into
changes in agency and personnel policies and procedures.

3. The Contractor shall maintain current, written job descriptions and job qualifications for
all positions (staff, consultants and direct service volunteers) within the Contractor entity.
Each job description shall include, at a minimum:

Job title;

Salary range;

@ho o o P

Duties;

Responsibilities of the positions;
Required minimum experience;
Required minimum training;
Required minimum education.

4. The Contractor shall maintain a current, accurate and confidential personnel record for
each paid and direct service volunteer or employee. A personnel record on each volunteer
or employee shall contain, at a minimum;

Job description;

Initial application/resume;

Documentation of reference letters;

Result of employment investigation;

Background checks;

o o

1.

Agency contractors that have or could have primary custody of children for
at least twenty hours per week are required to comply with NMAC 8.8.3 et.
seq. requiring background checks on any employee, staff, volunteer or
student intern, that has direct care responsibilities or potential unsupervised
physical access to children. Additionally, all Information Technology (IT)
contractors are required to have a background check. The Contractor must
submit to Agency Background Check Unit fingerprint cards and the
appropriate fee for such employees, volunteers or staff required having
background checks. Agency Background Check Unit will conduct
nationwide, state and abuse and neglect background checks on required
staff or volunteers in accordance with NMAC 8.8.3 standards. An Agency
eligibility letter must be in the employee, volunteer or staff member’s

19 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

personnel file prior to that individual having any unsupervised direct contact
or unsupervised potential access to children.

Education/experience required,;

Wage and salary information;

Job performance evaluation;

Documentation/verification of all previous and ongoing training (including all

component specific training and education);

Incident reports;

k. Commendations or disciplinary actions (if any).

ol

This information must be reliable, accurate and current. All employee and volunteer
records must be kept in a locked file to ensure confidentiality.

5. The Contractor shall be headed by a director. The director shall be responsible for the
daily operation of the Contractor through decision-making, authorization of expenditures,

and the implementation of policies and procedures.

Phvsical Facilities

The physical facilities must meet all licensing requirements per classification and should be
located, constructed, equipped and operated to promote the efficient and effective conduct of the
Contractor’s programs, to protect the health and safety of the persons serviced and the staff to
promote the integration of those served into the community, to be accessible to persons served,
staff and the community, meet the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988.

FISCAL STANDARDS

For All Contractors

Compliance

1. The Contractor shall comply with all federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. Cost
principles. administrative requirements and audit requirements. applicable to federal
grants shall apply to state funds as referenced in the section Source Sheet of the CYFD
Administrative and Fiscal Standards.

2. The Contractor shall comply with all aspects of the provision of the contract, including
all insurance, bonding and audit and financial reporting requirements.

3. The Contractor (non-federal entities and applicants) must disclose all violations of
Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting

the Federal award.

4. The Contractor (non-federal entities and applicants) shall maintain a code of conduct
policy that includes annual review and disclosure of any employee, board member or

20 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

subcontractor (e.g., consultants or independent contractors) that may have a conflict of
interest or conviction of a misdemeanor or felonv, had a judgment withheld or
deferred, or are currently charged with committing a misdemeanor or felony.

Insurance

1.

The Contractor, (with the exception of New Mexico higher education institutions,
executive, judicial, and legislative branches of state government) shall obtain and
maintain at all times during the term of this contract an Employee Dishonesty Policy
covering the activities of the contractor in the amount of no less than 25% of the total
(cumulative) dollar amount of the current Agency contract(s).

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain at all times during the term of this contract a
general and professional liability insurance policy issued by an insurance company
licensed to do business in the State of New Mexico. The policy shall include liability
insurance coverage provided in the amount of at least $100,000 for damage to or
destruction of property arising out of a single occurrence; $300,000 to any person for any
number of claims arising out of a single occurrence for all damages other than property
damage; or $500,000 for all claims arising out of a single occurrence. The policy shall be
secured by the Contractor within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the current
contract.

The Contractor, (with the exception of New Mexico higher education institutions
executive. judicial. and legislative branches of state government) if insured by

General Services Department’s Risk Management Division, shall secure and maintain
sufficient fire and extended hazard insurance on all property in the custody of the
Contractor, which is furnished or owned by the Agency or in which the Agency has a
financial interest, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the current agreement.
Sufficient insurance, for the purposes of this paragraph, means enough to cover the
Agency’s loss, if any to such property, in the event of fire or other hazard.

The Contractor, (with the exception of New Mexico higher education institutions
executive. judicial. and legislative branches of state covernment) if insured by

General Services Department’s Risk Management Division, shall name Children, Youth
and Families Department as an “Additional Insured” with the insurance carrier of the
Contractor’s liability insurance. A copy of the Contractor’s “Certificate of Liability
Insurance” proving compliance with all the above insurance requirements must be
available upon request.

Fiscal Books of Records

The Contractor must maintain the following books of record:

1.

Chart of Accounts

2. General Ledger

21 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

3. Cash Receipts and Cash Disbursements Journals

4. General Journal of adjusting entries, correcting entries, accrual entries, and cost
allocation entries if not provided for in cash journals.

5. Subsidiary ledgers, if applicable to the organization.

6. Any Capital Outlay Inventory purchased with Agency funding includes at a minimum:

a. Description of property;

b. Serial number or other ID number;

c. Date of purchase;

d. Acquisition cost by funding source(s);

e. Location and use of property;

f.  Disposition data including date and price, if any.

7. Payroll journals and employee earnings records.
8. Fiscal Policy and Procedures that must include:

a. Handling of cash/checks;

b. Handling of voided checks;

c. Authorized check signatures;

d. Bank reconciliations;

e. Separation of duties;

f. Accounting system;

g. Travel, if included in the services, will adhere to Per Diem and Mileage Act
Sections 10-8-1 to 10-8-8 NMSA 1978, regulations governing the per diem and
mileage Act, and 2.42.2.11 NMAC, mileage —private conveyance, effective June
19, 2009.)

h. Cost allocation method,;

1. Accounting policies for donations.

j.  Conlflict of Interest Policy

Reports
1. The Contractor shall complete in full the State and Federal payroll tax forms in
accordance with required time period and shall insure payroll taxes are paid within the
required time frame.
2. The Contractor shall complete in full and submit the required forms of the New Mexico
State Department of Labor.
3. The Contractor shall submit timely program and financial reports to the funding agencies

as specified in the contracts.

22 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Retention of Records

The following are the requirements for the retention of financial records:

L.

Audits

The Contractor shall maintain for three (3) years, (in addition to current year records)
detailed accounting and billing records which indicate the date, time, and nature of
services rendered, records relating to contract services, and all operating financial
documentation which shall be subject to inspection by the Agency and if applicable, the
New Mexico State Auditor or their designee.

The Agency shall have a right to audit billings and related documents both before and
after payment. Payments made under a contract between the Contractor and the Agency
shall not foreclose the right of the Agency to recover excessive, illegal payments, and/or
payments which are not in accordance with the contract.

The Contractor shall maintain the funds from the Agency contract separately in accurate
financial records, books, files, and reports in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, state and federal laws and regulation, and the requirements of the
Agency as described in this Administrative and Fiscal Standards Guidance.

The financial management systems established by the Contractor shall ensure it provides
fiscal and budgetary controls as well as sound accounting procedures. A Schedule of
Revenues & Expenditures Budget to Actual Comparison for each contract must be
prepared and submitted to the Agency at the same time as the annual financial audit or
financial statement. The Schedule must include the approved original budget for the
fiscal year, revised budget, actual revenue and expenditures and a variance column.

NOTE: Audit and financial reporting requirements are applicable to all contractors and subcontractors of the

Children, Youth and Families Department.

1.

Sole proprietor contractors receiving Agency funds under $100,000.00 must submit to the
Agency the Internal Revenue Services (IRS) Schedule C Profit or Loss From Business
(Sole Proprietorship) and provide the State of New Mexico Taxation and Revenue
Department Combined Report System (CRS-1) Form. Sole Proprietor billings are subject
to review by the Agency contract and program site reviewers and must be available upon
request. A Sole Proprietorship is a type of business entity that is owned and run by one
individual and in which there is no legal distinction between the owner and the business.

Audits for a contractor receiving under $250,000.00 per year in cumulative Agency funds
(a total of all Agency contracts awarded to the contractor within a fiscal year) whose
Board has elected to not conduct an audit must comply with the following:

a) The contractor shall prepare financial statements that include a Revenue and
Expenditure — Budget to Actual Comparison, Balance Sheet or Statement of Net
Position and Income Statement or Statement of Activities. The contractor shall
disclose the method of accounting used (cash or accrual) to prepare such

23 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



b)

Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

statements. The Revenues and Expenditures — Budget to Actual Comparison
statement must include the original budget for the fiscal year as approved by the
Board, revised budget, actual revenue and expenditures and variance column. A
cash disbursement and cash receipt journal cannot take the place of the Balance
Sheet and Income Statement. These financial statements shall be submitted to the
Agency’s Contract Audit Unit within three (3) months of the contractor’s fiscal
year end.

This section (Section 2) does not apply to sole proprietor contracts covered under
Audits section 1.

3. Audits for a contractor receiving $250,000.00 to $500,000.00 per year in cumulative
Agency funds (a total of all Agency contracts awarded to the contractor with in a fiscal
year) whose Board has elected to not conduct an audit must comply with the following:

a)

b)

The contractor shall have an Independent Auditor’s Report of Agreed-Upon
Procedures (AUP) to ensure compliance with contract requirements in accordance
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The AUP
report shall be submitted to the Agency’s Contract Audit Unit within nine (9)
months of the contractor’s fiscal year end.

The contractor shall ensure that the selected accounting firm performing the AUP
report is rotated every six (6) years (or less if mandated by the State Auditor) with
a minimum two-year break.

The selected auditor shall not have provided non-auditing services within the year
being audited that may be disallowed by the Generally Accepted Government
Auditing Standards (GAGAS) independence standards (refer to The State of New
Mexico State Auditor, State Audit Rule Subsection N of 2.2.2.8 NMAC).

4. Audits for a contractor receiving $500,000.00 or greater per year in cumulative Agency
tunds must disclose how much funding is being received from governmental funds (a
total of all Agency contracts awarded to the contractor with in a fiscal year):

a)

b)

The contractor shall have an Independent Audit Report that conforms to the
General Accounting Standards (Yellow Book) as recommended by GAO. This
Independent Audit Report shall be submitted to the Agency’s Contract Audit Unit
within nine (9) months of the contractor’s fiscal year end. The contractor must
also submit a copy of any Management Letter Comments issued by the
Independent Auditor in a separate report.

The contractor shall ensure that the auditor or auditing firm performing the audit

report is rotated every six (6) years (or less if mandated by the State Auditor) with
a minimum two year break.

24 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

c) The selected auditor shall not have provided non-auditing services within the year
being audited that may be disallowed by the Generally Accepted Government
Auditing Standards (GAGAS) independence standards (refer to The State of New
Mexico State Auditor, State Audit Rule Subsection N 0f2.2.2.8 NMAC).

5. A contractor receiving over $750,000.00 per year in cumulative Federal funds must
disclose in their financial audit report how much funding is being received from
governmental funds (a total of all funds awarded to the contractor within a fiscal year)
must adhere to the “uniform guidance for federal awards” (Uniform Guidance). The
standards set forth in Title 2 Grants and Agreements Subtitle A Chapter II Part 200
Subpart F- Audit Requirements. For one full fiscal year after the effective date of the
uniform guidance, non-federal entities must comply with the terms and conditions of
their federal award, which will specify whether the uniform guidance applies. The
confractor must have available upon request a copy of any Management Letter Comments
issued by the Independent Auditor in a separate report.

a) The audited financial statements shall be submitted to the Agency’s Contract Audit Unit
within nine (9) months of their fiscal year end. The contractor must also have
available upon request the Management Letter Comments issued by the
Independent Auditor in a separate report.

b) The contractor shall ensure that the auditor or auditing firm performing the audit
report is rotated every six (6) years (or less if mandated by the State Auditor) with
a minimum two-year break.

c) The selected auditor shall not have provided non-auditing services within the year
being audited that may be disallowed by the Generally Accepted Government
Auditing Standards (GAGAS) independence standards (refer to The State of New
Mexico State Auditor, State Audit Rule Subsection N 0f 2.2.2.8 NMAC).

6. Financial Statements, Independent Auditor’s Report of Agreed-Upon Procedures (AUP),
and Audits must be mailed to:

Children, Youth and Families Department
Administrative Services Division
Contract Audit Unit

P.O. Box 5160

Santa Fe, NM 87502

25 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

SOURCE SHEET

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
https://www.federalrecister.cov/articles/2013/12/26/2013-30465/uniform-administrative-
requirements-cost-principles-and-audit-requirements-for-federal-awards

State of New Mexico Manual of Model Accounting Practices (MAP’s) issued by the New
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration-Financial Control Division
http://www.nmdfa.state.nm.us/Manuals.aspx

The State of New Mexico State Auditor, State Audit Rule
htip://www.saonm.org/state auditor rule

COST PRINCIPLES

Title 2 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 170, Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation

Information.

Title 2 Grants and -Agreements Subtitle A Chapter II Part 200,

[

Subpart A — Acronyms and Definitions

Subpart B- General Provisions

Subpart C — Pre-Federal Award Requirements and Contents of Federal Awards
Subpart D- Post Federal Award Requirements

Subpart E- Cost Principles

Subpart F — Audit Requirements

FASB and AICPA Statements and Professional Pronouncements.

AUDITS

U.S. General Accounting Office, Government Auditing Standards, (The Yellow Book,
current revision).

FASB and AICPA Statements and Professional Pronouncements.

26 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 4 — Business Associate Acsreement

This is a business associate agreement in compliance with 45 CFR Section 160.504(¢e)(2) of the
HIPAA privacy rule. Contractor understands that it may be considered a business associate of the
Agency under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules. Accordingly, the parties agree:

e The disclosures the Agency will make to Contractor of any information that identifies an
individual and includes information about the individual’s health (protected health
information), whether in electronic or physical form, shall be limited to the minimum
reasonably necessary for Contractor’s delivery of services described in the Scope of Work to
which the parties have agreed to in the Contract.

* Any disclosures by Contractor of any individual’s protected health information inconsistent
with this agreement are strictly prohibited and shall be cause for termination of the Contract.
Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to avoid such disclosures, including but not limited
to implementation of all practical administrative, physical and technical safeguards.

e After the expiration of this Contract, whether because a party has cancelled it, it is fully
executed or for any other cause, Contractor shall return all documents containing any
individual’s protected health information to the Agency. Contractor also agrees that it shall
take reasonable affirmative precautions to avoid any unauthorized disclosures of protected
health information to third parties.

¢ Contractor understands that it is responsible for reporting unauthorized disclosures, including
but not limited to electronic security violations, to the Agency’s privacy office or the federal
Office of Civil Rights. Contractor also understands it is responsible for reporting any other
disclosure for purposes other than treatment, payment or operations to the Agency’s privacy
office.

e Contractor agrees to bind their agents and subcontractors to the terms of this agreement.
e Contractor understands an individual has the right to inspect and request changes to the
protected health information the parties use or create and that an appropriate privacy officer

and/or the federal Office of Civil Rights has the authority to inspect the parties’ procedures for
management of the individual’s protected health information.

27 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 5
Children, Youth and Families Department

Suspension and Debarment Form

A. Consistent with either 7 C.F.R. Part 3017, 2 C.F.R. 108 or 45 C.F.R. Part 76, as applicable, and
as a separate and independent requirement of this contract with the Children, Youth and
Families Department (CYFD), known throughout this contract as “Agency”, the Contractor
certifies by signing this form, that it and its principals, to the best of its knowledge and belief:
(1) are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of
contracts by any Federal department or agency; (2) have not, within a three-year period
preceding the effective date of this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, state, or local) contract or
subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers;
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; (3) have not been indicted
for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or
local) with, commission of any of the offenses enumerated above in this Paragraph A; (4)
have not, within a three-year period preceding the effective date of this contract, had one or
more public agreements or transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default;
and (5) have not been excluded from participation from Medicare, Medicaid or other federal
health care programs pursuant to Title XI of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7.

B. The Contractor’s certification in Paragraph A, above, is a material representation of fact upon
which the Agency relied when this contract was entered into by the parties. The Contractor’s
certification in Paragraph A, above, shall be a continuing term or condition of this contract. As
such at all times during the performance of this contract, the Contractor must be capable of
making the certification required in Paragraph A, above, as if on the date of making such new
certification the Contractor was then executing this contract for the first time. Accordingly, the
following requirements shall be read so as to apply to the original certification of the Contractor
in Paragraph A, above, or to any new certification the Contractor is required to be capable of
making as stated in the preceding sentence:

(1) The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the Agency’s
Program Manager if, at any time during the term of this contract, the Contractor
learns that its certification in Paragraph A, above, was erroneous on the effective
date of this contract or has become erroneous by reason of new or changed
circumstances.

(2) If it is later determined that the Contractor’s certification in Paragraph A,
above, was erroneous on the effective date of this contract or has become
erroncous by reason of new or changed circumstances, in addition to other
remedies available to the Agency, the Agency may terminate the contract.

28 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

C. Asrequired by statute, regulation or requirement of this contract, and as contained in Paragraph
A, above, the Contractor shall require each proposed first-tier subcontractor whose subcontract
will equal or exceed $25,000, to disclose to the Contractor, in writing, whether as of the
time of award of the subcontract, the subcontractor, or its principals, is or is not debarred,
suspended, or proposed for debarment by any Federal department or agency. The Contractor
shall make such disclosures available to the Agency when it requests subcontractor
approval from the Agency. If the subcontractor, or its principals, is debarred, suspended,
or proposed for debarment by any Federal, state or local department or agency, the Agency may
refuse to approve the use of the subcontractor.

By: Date:

Contractor

29 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agreement No. 20-690-3000-16740

Attachment 6
Children, Youth and Families Department
Federal Award Identification

As required by UGG Title 2: Grants and Agreements Subpart D §200.331 the
following information is being provided:
(1) Sub-recipient name:
(it) Sub-recipient's Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) unique number:
(ii1) Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN):
(iv) Federal Award Date (§200.39):
(v) Sub-award Period of Performance Start and End Date:
(vi) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action:
(vii) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the sub-recipient:

(viii) Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the sub-recipient by the pass-through
entity:

(ix) Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA):

(x) Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding
official of the Pass-through entity:

(x1) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA):
(xi1) Identification of whether the award is Research and Development (R&D): [] Yes [ 1No

(xii1) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged per
§200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs):

(xiv) Requirements imposed by pass-through entity specific to Federal award requirements:

30 CYFD Last revised 02/06/2019



Agenda Item
No. 12-B



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
TORRANCE COUNTY DWI PROGRAM
CONTRACT FY2019-DWI-02
AMENDMENT 1

Project Description Revision Name of Contractor Adrian Ortiz

Budget Revision XX

Time Expansion

The above cited contract for the Torrance County DWI Program is amended as follows:

The following provision shall replace the existing paragraph 3:

3. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT.

a. COMPENSATION.

For performing the Services specified in Section 1 of this Agreement, the County agrees to pay
Contractor on a monthly basis for teen court coordinator the sum of $22.00/hour, which is inclusive of
all salary, supplies, mileage/per-diem, telephone, allowance, and administrative costs, plus applicable
New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax, as set out in the proposal submitted by the Contractor. Compensation
will be disbursed as follows: Contractor will provide a detailed invoice describing services provided
and will be compensated at the rate of $22.00/hour plus New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax, following the
end of each month. Total amount of compensation, including gross receipts tax, shall not exceed
$40,210.00. (This is an increase of $4,210 from the $36,000 allotted in the original contract.) This
amount is a maximum and not a guarantee that the work assigned to Contractor under this Agreement to
be performed shall equal the amount stated herein.

All other provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect.

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement this day of , 2019.
CONTRACTOR: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF TORRANCE COUNTY:
BY: BY:

Adrian Ortiz, Contractor Ryan Schwebach, Commission Chair



Agenda Item
No. 12-C



NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS SRR P.0. Box 1269
£y 1120 Paseo de Peralta

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR
DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR
DISTRICT 5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN

STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal

Phone (505) 476-0160

INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100
Jason N. Montoya, P.E.

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION

This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal
year. The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
NAME OF COUNTY: Torrance

ADDRESS OF APPROVED FIRE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING:
PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032

ISO FUNDING CLASSIFICATION: 7

If you contend the above ISO Funding Classification is incorrect, please attach your claim and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is $55,501 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $85,747.84

10.25.10.9ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire Protection
Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. F'PF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure items or
services for use in the operation, maintenance and betierment of the fire department. A request for authorization to rollover
and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in distribution. The request must include a
detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only one request
and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a new request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $75,747.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Training, Fire Fighting Equiment, Safety
Equipment,Uniforms

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.

PRC

Working for Youl



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article
59A-53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the reporting
requirement. When this Office determines that fire departments in your County are out of compliance, your Office and
the Fire Chief will be notified of the department’s status, if the fire departments in your County fail to achieve
compliance a letter identifying restrictions on the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local
government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request via e-mail at
georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of , 2019
Printed Name /8 Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Fire Chief Printed Name /8 Signature of Fire Chief
1838 4 ASK PRC

www.nmpre.state.nm.us




NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS ST STAT P.0. Box 1269

A 1120 Paseo de Peralta

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL i 5N

DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD . \ I “) Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR OV o g

DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR \33_';.: :i;'f" STATE FISI;IE }VI,ARSHA;.DIVISION

DISTRICT 5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN - Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160

INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100
Jason N. Montoya, P.E.
NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year.
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT Duran District #1 COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 9

Approved number of Sub Stations is 0
0 Sub Stations
Approved number of Main Stations is 1
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is _$391°58 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $101,953.00

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. Ifthe item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $91,000.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Build. Maint., Firefighting Equipment,Training,
Safety,Communications

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be

submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.

1888 4 ASK PRC

www.nmprc.state.nm.us Working for Yeud



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article 59A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: Email: Phone:
_{ David Crabb Derabbiatorrancecountyfire.com 505-235-9421
2. Lester Gary lgarviatorrancecountvfire.com 505-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submittedonthis____ day of 2019.
Printed Name 4§ Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name s Signature of County Fire Chief/ Fire Marshal or District Chief
1888 4 ASK PRC PRC

www.nmpre_state.nm us Wmf@ Youd



NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION
COMMISSIONERS PSS P.0. Box 1269
L 5 1120 Paseo de Peralta
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL
DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR O i
DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR NI STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

DISTRICTS STEPHEN FISCHMANN — Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160
INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100

Jason N. Montoya, P.E.

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year.
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT Indian Hills District #2 COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 6

Approved number of Main Stations is 2
Station #2 #28 Bryant Rd. Torrance
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is _$1 17,168 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $101,953.13

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $91,000.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Firefighting Equipment, Training, Safety, Communications

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.

PRC

P b sy
Weonr Keng for Youul



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article 59A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: Email: Phone:
_1IDon Dirks ddirks@torrancecountyfire.com 505-620-0518
2.Lester Gary [gary@torrancecouniviire.com 505-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of 2019.
Printed Name /s Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name s Signature of County Fire Chief/ Fire Marshal or District Chief
1888 4 ASKPRC

wwwe nmpre.state.nm us Working for You!



NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS

DISTRICT1 CYNTHIA B. HALL

DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR
DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR

P.O. Box 1269
1120 Paseo de Peralta
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

DISTRICT 5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN ~—— Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160
INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100

lason N. Montoya, P.E.

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year,
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT MclIntosh District #3 COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 6

Approved number of Sub Stations is 0
0 Sub Stations
Approved number of Main Stations is 2
Station #2
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is __$1 17,168 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $149,510.00

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A4 request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $137,000.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Firefighting Equipment, Training, Communications, Safety

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article 59A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: Email.: Phone.
_{ Mark Riley mrileyia torrancecountyfire.com 505-297-6101
2.Lester Gary lgaryvi@itorrancecountyfire.com 505-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of 2019.
Printed Name /s Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name /S Signature of County Fire Chief / Fire Marshal or District Chief
1888 4 ASK PRC

www.nmprc.state nm us mm-kéng,.fbr Yored



NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION
COMMISSIONERS / ST U_..-": P.O, Box 1269
S AL 1120 Paseo de Peralta
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL
DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD
DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR

DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

DISTRICT 5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN ~—— Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160
INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100

Jason N. Montoya, P.E.

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year.
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT Torreon-Tajique District #4 COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 9

Approved number of Sub Stations is 0
- 0 Sub-Stations

Approved number of Main Stations is 1
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is __$39’°58 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $27,610.00

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $22.600.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Firefighting equipment, training, Vehicle, communicaitons

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.

PRC
-
Working for Youd



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article S9A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: - Email: - Phone:
_I{ Mary Wetterman fo Lfi 505-321-0964
2.Lester Gary B g Lyfi 505-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of 2019,
Printed Name /s Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name /S Signature of County Fire Chief / Fire Marshal or District Chief

Working for You!



NEW MEXICO PUBLIC REGULATION COMMISSION
COMMISSIONERS SRESTAR S P.0. Box 1269
A 1120 Paseo de Peralta

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL [+ (8

DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD | (R santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR \ el

DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR (2., o7 STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

DISTRICT 5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN el Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160

INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100

Jason N. Montoya, P.E.

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year.
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT Northeast Torrance District #5 COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 6

Approved number of Sub Stations is 0
0 Sub-Stations
Approved number of Main Stations is 2
Station #2
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here:

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is _$1 17,168 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $139.200.48

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A request for
authorization to rollover-and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds for more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $129.000.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Firefighting Equipment, Training, Safety, Communicatons

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article S9A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article 59A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: Email: __Phone:

_IMike Trammell /1) i 575-749-2499

_2.Lester Gary gar) i 305-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of 2019.
Printed Name /s Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name 8 Signature of County Fire Chief/ Fire Marshal or District Chief



COMMISSIONERS _j‘{"_“" AN P.O. Box 1269
AL N 1120 Paseo de Peralta
Santa Fe, NM 87504-1269

NEW MEXICO PUBLIC RE JULATION COMMISSION

DISTRICT 1 CYNTHIA B. HALL

DISTRICT 2 JEFFERSON L. BYRD

DISTRICT 3 VALERIE ESPINOZA, VICE CHAIR

DISTRICT 4 THERESA BECENTI-AGUILAR, CHAIR o ;

DISTRICT5 STEPHEN FISCHMANN Don Shainin, State Fire Marshal
Phone (505) 476-0160

INTERIM CHIEF OF STAFF Fax (505)476-0100
Jason N. Montoya, P.E.

STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION

NEW MEXICO STATE FIRE MARSHAL DIVISION
FISCAL YEAR 2020 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION FUND DISTRIBUTION
This application is required to participate in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund for the 2020 fiscal year.
The application is due in the State Fire Marshal Division on or before April 30, 2019.
FIRE DEPARTMENT Willard COUNTY: Torrance

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADDRESS: PO Box 449, McIntosh, NM 87032
ISO CLASSIFICATION: 7

Approved number of Sub Stations is 0
0 Sub-Stations
Approved number of Main Stations is 1
Same As Above

If you contend the above ISO Class or station information is incorrect, please attach a list of your claim of
main and substations and sign here: :

The projected minimum amount for fire fund distribution, based on the above information, is _$55,501 . This
does not include any additional amounts that may be calculated from growth in the fund.

Provide current balance of the fire department's total Fire Protection Fund account to date: $53.550.00

10.25.10.9 ACCUMULATION OF FUNDS:

A. FPF funds cannot be accumulated when the money is not required to accomplish the purpose of the Fire
Protection Fund Act or any associated rules promulgated by the fire marshal.

B. FPF funds may be rolled over to subsequent fiscal years for the purpose of accumulating money to procure
items or services for use in the operation, maintenance and betterment of the fire department. A request for
authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall accompany the application to participate in
distribution. The request must include a detailed description of the intended use of the accumulated money.

C. If the item to be purchased requires rollover and accumulation of FPF funds Jor more than one-year, only
one request and subsequent authorization to accumulate funds is needed. If the item to be purchased changes, a
new request for authorization to rollover and accumulate FPF funds shall be submitted to the fire marshal.

Provide anticipated rollover amount $43,000.00 ; include a detailed description of the intended use of the
accumulated funds: (attach additional page if needed)Firefighting Equipment, Training, Safety, Communications

An official written request for authorization to rollover and accumulate Fire Protection Fund monies shall be
submitted to this Office no later than August 31, 2019. The request shall identify the intended purpose and exact
amount of money to be rolled over into the FY 2020 balance.



The Fire Service Support Bureau of the State Fire Marshal Division continues to strive toward achieving 100%
compliance with the monthly reporting requirements as established in Article 59A-52 the “Fire Marshal Act,” Article S9A-
53 “The Fire Protection Fund” and NMSA 10.25.10 “The Fire Protection Fund.”

State Law, NMSA 10.25.10, requires all fire departments participating in the distribution of the Fire Protection Fund
submit a detailed fire report of the departments activity on or before the 10th of each month for the previous months
activity.

The Fire Service Support Bureau reviews all reporting activity on a monthly basis to determine compliance with the
reporting requirement. When this Office determines that your fire department is out of compliance, the Fire Chief will be
notified of the department’s status, if your fire department fails to achieve compliance a letter identifying restrictions on
the use of the Fire Protection Funds will be forwarded to the head of local government.

This Office will continue to offer technical support and training on the proper uses of the NFIRS program. If you are
having issues with the system or require training you may submit your request by e-mail at georgia.mcgovern@state.nm.us

Please provide updated contact information for a minimum of two primary users of the NFIRS program for your
department. (Please print legible)

Name: Email: Phorne:
_1Chad Williams ewilliams(atorrancecountyfire.com 505-328-9480
2.Lester Gary lgarvi@torrancecountyfire.com 505-507-6172

The information contained in this application is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It may be used to verify legal
requirements and is subject to audit.

Signed and submitted on this day of 2019.
Printed Name /g Signature of Commission Chair or Authorized Local Government Designee
Printed Name /S Signature of County Fire Chief / Fire Marshal or District Chief

1888 4 ASK PRC PRC

www.nmiprc. state. nm.us Working for Yo



Agenda Item
No. 12-D



TORRANCE COUNTY
FIRE DEPARTMENT

Policy and Procedure/SOG

Manual

Effective Date: 09/26/2018



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
2



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Disclaimer, Table of Contents 1.1
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

DISCLAIMER

The Torrance County Fire Department has enacted the following Policy and Procedure along with
the Standard Operating Guidelines. The department, its members or other contributors cannot
guarantee that adherence to these guidelines by any other fire department or emergency service
organization will result in compliance with any laws, regulations or standards.

The Torrance County Fire Department cannot guarantee that adherence to the SOG’s alone will
result in a reduction of occupational injuries, illness or exposures. The guidelines can however,
provide the framework for an emergency service occupational safety and health program which,
when develop comprehensively by and for an individual fire department or emergency service
organization, can be designed to achieve this goal.

PREFACE
The following Policies and Procedures/Standard Operating Guidelines were developed to guide
members of the Torrance County Fire Department in the performance of their duties, on and off
the incident scene. They are based on the requirements in NFPA 1500-Standard on Fire
Department Occupational Safety and Health Program, and on appropriate federal, state and local
regulations.

The SOG’s remain guidelines rather than rigid policies. Second, it allows the SOG’s to be
recognized as the basis of general rules of conduct expected from all members. Finally, it makes
the SOG’s the basis of the department’s occupational safety and health program.

All department members are required to sign a statement documenting they have received a copy
of the Policies and Procedures/Standard Operating Guidelines and have read and understand them.



SAFETY POLICY

The Safety Policy of the department is to provide and operate under the highest possible levels of
safety for all members. The prevention of accidents, injury exposures and occupational illnesses
are the goals of the department and shall be primary considerations at all times. The concern for
safety and health applies to all members of the department and any other persons who may be
involved in department functions.

The Safety Policy, Policies and Procedures/Standard Operating Guidelines comprise the
framework for the department’s occupational safety and health program. The safety and health
program will be reviewed by department officers annually and may be revised as necessary.
Department members will be notified of changes to the program by way of amendment to the
Policy and Procedure/SOG’s.

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE

Presented on the following pages are the Policies and Procedures and Standard Operating
Guidelines (SOG’s) of the Torrance County Fire Department. They are to be used as a reference
pertaining to department procedures and regulations and to establish behavioral guidelines. The
SOG’s are intended to assist members accomplish the mission of the department:

The mission of the Torrance County Fire Department is to serve the public by providing efficient
and effective protection of life and property from the adverse effects of fire, medical
emergencies, and other hazardous situations.

Core Values: Honor, Respect, Duty, Loyalty, Integrity, Selfless Service, ersonal Courage

Our Core Values are fundamental to our individual and collective success.

It must be stressed that under all circumstances, common sense must prevail. Emergency response
situations are so varied specific rules and regulations cannot always be followed in the strictest
sense and may need to be altered according to the incident. The guidelines should be used as a
tool to inform members of the direction their decisions and actions should follow.

The members of the Torrance County Fire Department are a diverse group joined together in a
common cause, providing a valued and outstanding service to Torrance County. Keep in mind,
every member’s personal conduct and behavior reflects on the department as a while. It takes only
one thoughtless, careless or selfish act to destroy the excellent reputation established through many
years of dedication and hard work. Each of us is ultimately responsible for our decisions and
actions. :



ARTICLE 1:
1.1

1.2
1.3
1.4
1.4.1
1.4.2
143
1.4.4
1.4.5
1.4.6
1.4.7
1.5
1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9
1.10
1.11
1.12
1.13
1.14
1.15
1.16

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ADMINISTRATION
Disclaimer
Preface
Safety Policy
Introduction and Purpose
Manual Introduction
Introduction
Policy Development
Organization-Chart
Organization
Rules of Order for Fire District Meetings
Meetings
Members
Officers
Appointment of Officers
Cadet Program
Application
Code of Conduct
Discrimination and Sexual Harassment
Discipline
Grievance
Driver Qualification
Drug and Alcohol
Electronic Communications and Internet Use
Fuel Card Usage
Medical Evaluation
Medical Stand-by

Member Signature Page



1.17
1.18
1.19
1.20
1.21
1.22
1.23
1.24
1.25

ARTICLE 2:
2.1.
2.2
23
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10
2.11
2.12
2.13
2.14
2.15
2.16

Nominal Fee / Pay Per Call / Stipend Pay Program
Promotional Procedure

Resignation

Safety Vest Use

Social Media Usage

Standard Operational Guideline Development
Vehicle Operation and Maintenance

Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Program

Vehicle Response

FIRE OPERATIONS
Accountability

Carbon Monoxide Response
Chainsaw Usage

Hazardous Materials

Hostile MCI

Incident Command System
Look-out-Tag-out

Liquefied Gas Response
Mayday

Positive Pressure Ventilation
Rapid Intervention Team
Search and Rescue/Missing Person (s)
SCBA Use

Sides of Structure

Structure Fire Operations

Two in / Two out Rule



ARTICLE 3: EMS OPERATIONS
3.1  Emergency Medical Protocols
3.2  Continuous Quality Improvement
3.3  CQI Review Audit Form
3.4  Exposure Control Plan
3.5  Patient Confidentiality
3.6  Notice of Privacy Practices
3.7  Mass Casualty Incident

3.8  Respiratory Protection Program



ARTICLE 4: DEPARTMENT FORMS
Ambulance Inspection Form

Citizen Complaint Form

Drug Box Inventory

Drug Disposal Log

Duty Log

Employee Performance Review
Equipment and Supply Requisition Form
Fire Apparatus Inspection Form

Fire Department Training Record

Fuel Log

Medical Channels

Medical Supply Check out Log
Medication Administration Log

Mileage Log

Patient Care Report Review Log
Personal Protective Equipment Inspection Log
Personnel Exposure Log

SCBA Inventory Log

Training Request

Travel Reimbursement Form



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Introduction 1.2
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

This manual contains statements of personnel policies and procedures which shall be followed by
all members of the Torrance County Fire Department (hereinafter “TCFD”). It shall serve as a
reference and working guide for day-to-day administration of TCFD. These written policies are
intended to increase understanding, to eliminate the need for ad hoc decision making on matters
of department wide policy, and to help ensure uniformity throughout TCFD. It is the responsibility
of each and every member to read and understand all of the material contained in this Policy
Manual and Standard Operations Guidelines. It is also the responsibility of each member to request
assistance from their immediate supervisor if there is any policy which the member does not
understand. The subjects covered in this Policy Manual and Standard Operations Guidelines may
be modified as needed. Changes in intent, interpretation, and administration as a consequence of
any such modifications will occur accordingly. All modifications shall be recorded in the form of
a policy or procedural statement and shall be issued to each employee for insertion into their Policy
Manual and Standard Operations Guidelines. Members are encouraged to notify their supervisor
whenever they encounter an issue or wish to recommend improvements of this Policy Manual or
Standard Operations Guideline. It is the responsibility of each employee to be certain that his or
her copy of the Policy Manual is kept current.



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
10



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Policy Development 13
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE
This policy will detail the administrative procedures that will be utilized when developing,
revising, approving, and implementing policies, practices, and procedures for TCFD Department.

POLICY

In order to maintain a consistent set of standards, it is important for TCFD to develop and maintain
a method by which policies are developed and/or modified and a procedure for providing notice
of policies and modification thereof.

I. Policy/Procedure/ Standard Operating Guideline Development:

A. 1t is the responsibility of the Chief to determine when a new policy/procedure should be
developed, or when an existing policy or procedure should be revised. Input for this process can
come from many different sources, including members from any area of TCFD. Once the need for
a policy/procedure is identified, an individual shall be assigned to research, develop or revise the
policy/procedure. This research should include discussions with affected areas of TCFD and
officers and a review of area/industry practice, and may also involve the use of outside consultants,
attorneys, etc.

B. When developing or revising policies and procedures or standard operating guidelines,
the factors to be considered shall include:

1. Applicable State and Federal Laws.

2. Impact on Safety, Quality, Production, Efficiency, Etc.
3. EEO/Affirmative Action Impact

4. Industry Practice

5. Area Practice

C. When TCFD has completed the formulation or revision process, the policy/procedure
shall be submitted to the Chief for review and comment.

II. Policy/Procedure Approval:

A. The policy/procedure shall be considered approved after it is signed by the Chief of
TCFD and the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County if the policy addresses issues
beyond the daily operation of the Department.

II1. Policy/Procedure Implementation:
A. Once a policy/procedure has received necessary approval, it will then be distributed for
inclusion in the Policy/Procedure Manual.
B. A memo shall be prepared that communicates and explains the new policy.
C. Any questions concerning application of any policy/procedure should be directed to the
member’s immediate supervisor.

11




Torrance County Fire Department

Organizational Chart
P&P 1.4
Fire/EMS
Chief
Lester Gary
Safety Officer

Vacant

Administrative Assistant

Hanna Sanchez

Assistant Chief-Operations
Don Dirks

Station 1-Duran
David Crabb

Station 2-Indian Hills

Vacant

Station 3-Mcintosh
Mark Riley

Station 4-Torreon/Tajique

Mary Wetterman

Station 5-North East
Mike Trammell

Station 6-Willard
Chad Williams

Assistant Chief-Support Services

EMS Coordinator
Abby Orio

Training Coordinator

Keith Henry

Wildland Coordinator

Henry Mcharney

Search and Rescue
Coordinator

Vacant




Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

ORGANIZATION:
1. Organizational Name and Authority:

The name of the organization is the Torrance County Fire Department, officially named
and so designated by order of the Torrance County Commission by and through the
legal adoption of Torrance County Resolution No. 2003-6

. Purpose of Organization:
The Torrance County Fire Department and its County Fire Districts were crated and
established by the Torrance County Commission for the purpose of providing necessary
fire, rescue and emergency medical services for the residents of and visitors to Torrance
County. The Department shall act in accordance with all applicable federal, state and
local laws and ordinances.

. Purpose of Bylaws:

These bylaws are hereby adopted by the Torrance County Commission for the explicit
purpose of establishing the means by which the operational business of the Torrance
County Fire Department and its County Fire Districts will be conducted.

. District Preamble:

The Torrance County Fire Department’s Fire Districts are fundamental to the County’s
ability to provide fire, rescue and emergency medical services to the residents of and
visitors to Torrance County. It shall be the mission of the Torrance County Fire
Department, and each County Fire District, fo serve the public by providing efficient
and effective protection of life and property from the adverse effects of fire, medical
emergencies, and other hazardous situations. The goals and objectives of the
Department and its Fire Districts shall be drafted to ensure the Department’s mission
is accomplished and in doing so protect the lives and property of all its residents.

. District Name

The name of an individual Fire District shall be the name assigned by the County
Commission at the time the Fire District was created and/or amended by the
Commission action. There are presently Six Fire Disstricts that make up the Torrance
County Fire Department. All members of the Fire District are members of the Torrance
County Fire Department and fall under the chain of command established by the
Torrance County Commission with the adoption of Torrance County Resolution No.
2003-6.

13

Policy F 1reOD1stn_ct Bylaws 1.41
rgamzation
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date: |
Authority:
l 09/26/2018




(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
14



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Fire District Bylaws

Policy Rules of Order for District Meetings 142
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer

] Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority: 09/26/2018

RULES OF ORDER FOR FIRE DISTRICT MEETINGS:
6. Quorum:
A quorum consisting of 51% of the members qualified to vote and in good standing
shall be required to conduct business for any Fire District.

7. Order:
The business of each Fire District shall be conducted according to the New Mexico
Open Meetings Act (NMSA 1978, Section 10-15—1 to 4) and recorded by the District
according to the resolutions and ordinances approved and adopted by the Torrance
County Commission. Meeting shall be conducted using Roberts Rules of Order. The
following is an example of the order in which business may be conducted by the Fire
District.

Call to order

Roll call

Approval of Previous months Minutes

Financial Report

Response Report

Communications

Committee Reports

Old Business

New Business

Adjourn

Other categories may be added, as necessary.

SFrEOEEMUOW

8. Conduct:
The Ranking Officer present shall conduct the business meeting of the Fire District.
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules, regulations, resolutions or
ordinances adopted and approved by the Torrance County Commission.

15




(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
16



Torrance County

Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
. Fire District Bylaws
Policy Meetings 143
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:

Authority:

09/26/2018
MEETINGS:
1. Business Meetings:

Regular monthly business meetings shall be held at each Fire District. The date, time
and location of the meetings shall be designated by the Battalion Chief and may be
changed provided a minimum 48 hour notice is given to the membership. The County
Fire Chief shall be provide notices of all meetings.

Special Meeting:

Special meetings may be held at the order or call of the Battalion Chief or a majority
of the District membership. A minimum 48 hour notice must be given to the
membership.

Training Meetings:

Fire and medical training will be held not less than monthly at the date, time and
location designated by the Battalion Chief. District fire and medical trainings may be
conducted in conjunction with regional trainings offered by Regional staff or Fire
Administration.

Emergency Meeting:

An emergency meeting which concerns the immediate welfare of the district may be
called by the Ranking Officer at any time provided notification is given to all District
members who can be contacted personally by phone and/or edispatches. Notice of all
emergency meetings shall be provided to the County Fire Chief,

Attendance

Regular business meetings shall be open to all members of the Fire District regardless
of membership status. Additionally, business meetings shall be open to members of the
general public, including prospective members, who are interested in the business and
operation of the Fire District; other members of the Torrance County Fire Department
and, with approval of the Battalion Chief, other invited guests or speakers who may
wish to address the District membership.

17



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
18



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Fire Listrict Bylaws 1.4.4
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

MEMBERS,

1. Membership:
The operational success of the Torrance County Fire Department depends heavily on the worthy
service of those who are willing to volunteer their time, energy, and resources to their community.
In consideration of the willingness of the volunteer members of the Department to provide such
service to their communities, the organizational structure of the Torrance County Fire Districts
shall be based on democratic principles and shall take into consideration the concerns, ideas, and
needs of its members. However, such consideration shall not be given in lieu of the legal obligation
of Torrance County to operate the Department and the County Fire Districts in accordance with all
applicable local, state, and federal laws, and to do so with the purpose of providing a necessary
public service to the residents of and visitors to Torrance County.

2. Membership Application:

Membership application for a particular County Fire District may be determined based on
the applicant’s proximity of home or work to the specific Fire District. Special service
volunteers may be assigned on a regional basis to help other districts. Membership
application and status within the Fire Department shall be determined based on the
applicant’s ability and willingness to provide a useful service for the Department, the
applicant’s volunteer and/or employment history, and a background check/review
conducted by Fire Administration. Consideration for membership shall be given to all
applicants without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, gender, age,
sexual orientation, mental or physical disability, or medical condition, unless based on a
bona-fide occupational qualification. However, physical limitation shall be used as a factor
in determining the applicant’s ability to function as an EMT or firefighter.

3. Application Process:
Applicants for membership are required to complete a Torrance County Fire Department Volunteer
Application, provide copies of any pertinent training, (i.e., EMS license and/or certificates of fire
training), and provide a copy of a current driver’s license with the application. These documents
can be submitted to the Fire District by mail or at the Fire Department Administrative Office. The
application will be reviewed by the Fire Administrative Office personnel; the following steps with
be completed during the review,

e Background check
e Reference check
e Driver’s License check

19




Applicants must disclose any criminal conviction occurring prior to application for membership at
the time of application. The information will be considered confidential by the Department and
will not be shared unless it is considered to be public information by state statute, the attorney
general, the county attorney, or a court of law. Applicants convicted of a felony, a DWI/DUI within
the last three years will not be considered for membership. An individual who has been convicted
of a misdemeanor crime and has subsequently served his/her sentence has the right to be considered
for membership by the Department. However, the Department reserves the right to use past
criminal conduct, behavior and/or conviction as a reason to deny an application for membership.
Applicants must be able to perform the essential functions for the volunteer position they are
applying for.

4. Application Processing:

a. Initial applicants will be interviewed with the relevant Battalion Chief or another Chief
Officer; a Company level officer. Applications will be forwarded to the County Fire
Chief for final approval.

b. When the action or behavior of an applicant may have a detrimental effect on the
Department, on another member of the department, or on the County, such action
and/or behavior shall be considered when reviewing an application for membership.
Any corrective or disciplinary action will be taken, and if necessary, rejection of that
membership application may occur.

c. Ifthe applicant is approved for membership, they will be notified to complete required
(W-9, W-4, Stipend Form) paperwork necessary to- volunteer.- Paperwork-should be
submitted directly to the Torrance County Fire Administration. Altemative
arrangements may be requested and will be considered based on the availability of staff.

d. A waitlist shall be established if a district is full. An applicant can also be accepted
into an altemate district if it is in the best interest of the department.

¢. An applicant who is not approved for membership will be notified in writing.

5. Insurance Coverage:
Approved applicants will be given a copy of the insurance coverage and must complete the
Volunteer Firefighters Insurance Services (VFIS) beneficiary form at the first district
meeting. The beneficiary form will be forwarded to Fire Administration within 30 days.
Volunteer members are covered by insurance for department related activities once they
appear on a district roster.

6. Privileges and Obligation of Volunteer Members:

a. Each volunteer member is entitled to voice his or her opinion and entitled to fair and
equitable treatment and consideration in the Department. Every volunteer member,
based on status within a specific fire district, shall be entitled to initial and ongoing
training in both fire and emergency medical services, and shall be supplied necessary
personal protective equipment as the budget allows. Every volunteer member may
enroll in the State of New Mexico Fire Fighter Retirement Program, although
enrollment does not determine by the Public Employees Retirement Association
(P.E.R.A) based on strict requirements defined in the Volunteer Firefighter Retirement
Act and further defined herein. Membership status in the Department is not determined

20



by the member’s eligibility for retirement benefits. Volunteer members will be offered
the volunteer firefighter nominal fee program once they qualify.

b. Each member has an obligation to attend meetings and trainings and respond to
emergencies as requested in accordance with the requirements set forth within this
standard, and pursuant to guidelines unique to and approved by a Fire District that are
not in opposition to the policies, protocols, procedures, directives, and guidelines
adopted by the Department or Torrance County Standard Operating Guidelines.

7. Oath of Office:
All members of the Department shall adhere to the policies, procedures, directives and
regulations promulgated, adopted, and approve by the Department as required by Torrance
County Ordinance, and shall furthermore swear an oath to do so upon accepting
membership in the Department.

The Oath of Office shall be made available to all applicants prior to the swearing-in event.
OATH

I , do solemnly swear that I will support the Constitution and Laws of the United
States of America, the Constitution and Laws of the State of New Mexico and the
Ordinances of Torrance County; that I will be obedient to the Policies, Orders, Rules, and
Regulations of the Torrance County Fire Department; and that I will faithfully and
impartially execute the duties of the office of , in which I am about to
enter, to the best of my ability, so help me God.

A. CLASSIFICATION/COMPETENCY OF VOLUNTEER MEMBERS

Successful organizations must have minimum performance standards. Without
performance standards, the Torrance County Fire Department would not be able to
accomplish its mission. It is important that volunteer members maintain a minimum level
of proficiency in order to protect themselves and the citizens that they serve. The
requirements below were carefully thought out with consideration given to the time
constraints that each volunteer faces.

1. Probationary New Member-Probation Period Purpose:

The probation period is designed to help a new member become familiar with the
department. A probationary member of the Department is one who is undergoing
orientation and training. The normal probationary period for a new member shall be 6
months. Probationary members shall be provided personal protective equipment
necessary for training purposes to ensure their safety during all training exercises. A
member may also be placed in this status secondary to any disciplinary process defined
herein. Exceptions may be granted for those members who transfer from on Fire
District to another.

21



2. Membership annual reviews:
All department members will submit to an annual Medical review and annual
Performance review.

3. Active Duty:
A volunteer member of the Department, who performs firefighting and or emergency
medical services for the Department, routinely responds to emergencies within the
County, attends meetings regularly and otherwise meets the requirements listed below:
a. Minimum 18 years of age;
b. meets all physical fitness requirements adopted by the County for this
classification;

has completed the probationary period and all necessary training requirements;

attends a minimum of 24 hours station duty/coverage per month;

attends a minimum of 35% of all regular business meetings;

attends a minimum of 35% of all required trainings;

responds to a minimum of 35% of all emergency responses that the member is

responsible for;

maintains a minimum of 24 hour station coverage;

has passed mandatory training and is checked out on all vehicles and equipment

associated with the district assigned to;

j. has a current New Mexico Driver’s license, a clear driving record, clear
criminal record and has successfully completed an Emergency Vehicle
Operation program (VFIS,CEVO);

k. has obtained a DDC defensive driver course;

1. has a current CPR/AED/Basic First Aid training;

m. all firefighters shall pass a yearly SCBA fit test and remain qualified.

@ e Ao

=2

Physical fitness requirements. Any fire fighter may be required to obtain a physical
examination to determine fitness before classification as an active duty fire fighter. The
Fire Chief shall determine this requirement after consultation and recommendation of the
Battalion Chief. An annual physical exam consistent with DOT physical requirements shall
be mandatory for all fire fighter who are 60 years of age or older who choose to continue
as an active fire fighter. The department shall play for mandatory physical exams. Physical
exams shall be required for all state or National certified EMS’s.

4. PERA Qualified Duty:

A member of the department who meets the Active Duty requirements plus the
requirements of the Volunteer Firefighters Retirement Act listed below and thus qualifies
for PERA Volunteer firefighter Retirement.

Is at least 18 years of age:

attends a minimum of 75% of all regular business meetings:

attends a minimum of 75% of all required trainings;

responds to 50% of all emergency responses for which the member is
responsible.

o o

22



5. Limited Duty:

A volunteer member of the Department who cannot meet the physical fitness requirement
and/or is not SCBA qualified but otherwise meets the requirements of an Active Duty
member. Limited duty members perform important support services for the Department
but cannot be interior firefighters. Limited duty members can hold elected office and
provide support services on the fire ground. Support services include, but are not limited
to, incident command, pump operations, EMS, pulling and laying hose, tender shuttle
operations, assisting firefighters on the fire ground and other duties as assigned by the
officer in command. Limited duty members shall be provided necessary personal protective
equipment.

6. Probationary:

A volunteer member of the Department or District who is undergoing orientation and/or
training in order to obtain active, qualified or limited duty status. The normal probationary
period for a new member shall be 6 months. Probationary members shall be provided all
equipment necessary for training purposes to ensure their safety during all training

exercises. A member may also be placed in this status secondary to a disciplinary process
further defined herein.

Exceptions may be granted for those embers who transfer from one fire district to another.
On a case by case basis, members may receive a shorter probationary time at the discretion
of the Fire Chief.

E. Restrictions:

A volunteer member of the Department who becomes a fulltime, paid fire fighter for the
County must resign as a volunteer member of a Fire District.

F. Cadet:

A junior volunteer member of the Department who has reached the minimum age of 14 but
is less than 18 years old and has the permission of at least one parent or guardian. Cadets
must complete a membership application and at least one parent or legal guardian must
sign a department approved waiver prior to participation in any department related activity.
Cadets cannot be fire fighters; they can however receive fire training and provide support
services on the fire ground similar to those provided by limited duty members. Cadets
should always be paired with an active, qualified or limited duty member.

G. Auxiliary:

A volunteer member of the department who provides administrative or other support
services, for the District or Department. Auxiliary members may participate in all District
or Department social activities, meetings, and trainings. Participation in any Emergency
activity, including fire ground activity, is strictly limited and restricted to an area
designated as a stage zone. Auxiliary members may not engage in firefighting or
emergency medical service related activities. However, they may assist with District or

23



Department record keeping, data base entry, purchasing, fundraising, public education
activities, or other District or Department related administrative duties.

H. Charter:

Members who were founding or original members of a Torrance County Fire District are
herein accorded the status of Charter Member with all rights, privileges and obligations of
a retired member of the Department.

I. Honorary:

Those persons who have been so recognized by a vote of the majority of the member of a
Fire District who are in good standing and eligible to vote at a regular meeting at which a
quorum of members is present. This honor may be bestowed upon anyone who, in the
opinion of the officers and membership of the Fire District, has made a significant
contribution to the efforts of the Fire District.

J. Retired:

Those persons who have been members of the Department and have reached the minimum
age of 55 and have requested retirement status from P.E.R.A. or have incurred from any
cause a disability which prevents them from performing the normal duties and
responsibilities of an Active, Qualified or Limited Duty member. The determination for
eligibility for retired status due to a medical condition shall be based on the evidence
submitted by the member for consideration or upon reported evidence of inability to
perform tasks at tan acceptable level. A retired member of a District may continue service
in accordance with the Volunteer firefighter Retirement Act. Retired members who remain
active may participate in meetings and functions and shall have voting privileges for the
purpose of Fire District business.

K. Leave of Absence:

Members may submit a written request for a leave of absence (LOA) when personal,
employment, or other circumstances prevent them from fulfilling the requirements of their
membership status for an extended period of time. Members who are granted a LOA are
required to return all Department owned equipment and personal protective equipment
issued by the Department. Upon reinstatement, equipment will be re-issued to the member.
Members who have been on LOA may return to the Department or District with no loss of
senijority, except for the time loss while on LOA, and shall have all privileges and status
reinstated upon return. If the LOA has been for a period greater than 6 months the member
shall be required to perform a standard vehicle and equipment re-certification prior to
reinstatement.

24



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

. Fire District Bylaws
Policy Officers 1.45
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

OFFICERS:
District Officers:

The Officers of the Fire District shall have general supervisory responsibility for the operation of
a specific County Fire District. Other responsibilities and duties of District Officers have been
defined in the Torrance County Fire Department Job Specifications for those officers. District
Officers may assume additional duties and responsibilities as necessary to administer and
coordinate daily operations unique to a Fire District in order to ensure the Departments’ mission is
accomplished and/or to ensures the Fire District’s ability and readiness to respond to emergencies
within that District. All officers report to the next higher ranking officer in the chain of command.
The Battalion Chief reports to the County Fire Chief

Composition of District Officers/Chain of Command:
The officers of each County Fire District shall consist of at least the following:

District Battalion Chief

District Captain

One or more District Lieutenant(s) (Fire, EMS, etc.)
Safety Officer

Fire Prevention Officer

Secretary/Treasurer

Limitations:
There shall be no more than one Battalion Chief per County Fire District and one Captain per
Station. The County Fire Chief shall receive any letter of intent for any open position. Vacant
positions shall be filled by following the Promotional Procedure process.

Term of Office:
The term of Office for each District Battalion Chief shall not exceed four years.
The term of Office for each District Captain shall not exceed two years.
The term of Office for any staff Officer shall not exceed two years.
The term shall begin January 1% of each calendar year and subsequently shall expire on the
31% day of December.
There shall be no limitation to the number terms a member may be in office.

25




(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)

26



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

. Fire District Bylaws
. Policy Appointment and Duties of Officers 1.4.6
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PROCEEDURE FOR APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS:

8.

10.

Officers:

In the event of an opening for any District Officer position, the position shall be posted internally
within the Fire Department. The filling of the position shall follow the department Promotional
Procedures. To be considered for the position the following requirements shall be met:

a. A candidate for office must be a volunteer member of the fire District, and must be
an Active, qualified or Limited Duty member in good standing and off probation.
b. Upon notification of opening the member must submit to the County Fire Chief a
letter of intent and complete a brief questionnaire, to be considered for the position.
c. At this time the Promotional Procedure shall be followed to fill the position.

Vacancies:

In the event a vacancy occurs prior to the end of a term of office, an interim may be assigned
to temporarily fill the vacancy. At this time the position shall be posted and filled using the
Promotional Procedure.

Duties:

The duties of the District Officers are defined as follows and may be further defined or
updated in the County Fire Department job specifications:

a. District Battalion Chief
A. Reports directly to the County Fire Chief

B.

C.

Assumes responsibility for and supervises the activities of, Administration,
personnel, budget, training and emergency responses for the district.
Ensures the District operates under the County Fire Department chain of
command and that emergency scenes are managed utilizing the Incident
Command system and relevant Safety/Operational procedures.

Chairs all District business meetings.

Ensures all district apparatus, equipment and stations are routinely
inspected.

Appoints such standing committees as needed to perform special functions
for the district.

Appoints members to perform as staff officers for the District.

Is an ex-officio member of all departmental committees?

27




I. Attends or appoints a representative to attend the Torrance County Fire
Chiefs’ meeting.

J. Exercises those duties and responsibilities as outlined in the District
Battalion Chiefs job specifications under the direction of the County Fire
Chief.

K. All other duties as assigned.

b. District Captain

A. In the absence of the Battalion Chief shall assume all duties and
responsibilities thereof.

B. Supervises training of new members including the assignment of mentors
for each new member.

C. Is responsible for supervising the maintenance of apparatus, equipment
and stations for the District.

D. Plans and conduct necessary District training.

E. Schedules and posts duty roster as applicable.

F. Exercises those duties and responsibilities as outlined in the Captains job
specifications under the direction of the District Battalion Chief.

G. All other duties as assigned.

c. District Lieutenant (s)
A. In the absence of a superior officer shall assume all duties and
responsibilities thereof.
B. Exercises those duties and responsibilities as outlined in the Lieutenants’
Job specifications under the direction of the District Battalion Chief.
C. All other duties as assigned.

d. Safety/Fire Prevention Officer
A. Is responsible for preparing fire prevention pre-planning as assigned by the
District Battalion Chief.
B.Is responsible for conducting fire prevention education training for the fire
District.
C. All other duties as assigned.

28



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

A Fire District Bylaws
Policy Cadet Program 1.4.7
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

Cadet:

Cadets, as defined earlier within these bylaws, shall follow all applicable Department Rules,
Regulations, Policies, directives and Operating Guidelines as adopted by the Torrance County Fire
Department.

. Requirements:

Those persons who have attained the age of fourteen (14), and have the permission of at
least one parent or guardian, may apply for cadet status in the Department. Cadets may not
participate in emergency responses except under the direct and constant supervision of a
line officer. Cadets shall not drive any Department vehicle under any circumstance and
may not operate equipment except under direct supervision during training exercises.

The safety of cadets is of the utmost importance. District officers will make every
effort to ensure the safety of cadets at emergency scenes and during training,

. Application:

New cadets must complete a Department application, have the written approval of at least one
parent or guardian and complete an oral interview with Fire District officers prior to appointment
to a six-month (6) probationary status. Cadet will be issued personal equipment, while on
probationary status. Cadets must attend 35% of business and training meetings during which time
they will be evaluated to determine their eligibility for Active Cadet status. Cadets who reach their
eighteenth (18) birthday and have successfully completed a minimum “Introduction to
Firefighting” course will be moved to active or qualified status within the District following
approval of the County Fire Chief.

. Mentor:

A mentor from the Fire District will be assigned to each Cadet during the Cadet’s
probationary period. A mentor for the Cadet shall be appointed and supervised by the
District Battalion Chief.

. Evaluation:

During probation, monthly evaluations of the Cadet may be conducted by the assigned
mentor and submitted to the Battalion Chief. Testing of fire and medical training
proficiency as well as testing the Cadets ability to perform station and vehicle maintenance
shall be noted in the evaluations. Following the probationary period Cadets remain subject
of random testing and evaluations.

29



5. Grades:
Cadets must maintain a 2.0 GPA or better in their school work in order to remain in good
standing with the department.

LIABILITY WAIVER AND RELEASE FORM (MINOR CHILD)

THIS IS A RELEASE OF LEGAL RIGHTS — READ AND UNDERSTAND BEFORE
SIGNING

I hereby certify that I am the adult parent or guardian of, - a minor child
under the age of eighteen years, and I consent to his/her participation in recreational activities with
the Torrance County Fire Department Cadet Program, located within Torrance County. I understand
and acknowledge that I am fully aware of and assume the risks (including but not limited to the risk
of serious bodily injury, property loss or damage) of said minor child’s participation in recreational
activities and transportation in a Torrance County vehicle, with the Torrance County Fire Department.
I recognize my responsibility to ensure that said minor child participates only in those activities for
which he/she is capable of. I understand that the Torrance County Fire Department shall have no
responsibility to pay for medical treatment and related costs if said minor child is injured. Knowing
the risks described above, I agree, personally and on behalf of the minor child named above, to
assume all the risks and responsibilities surrounding my minor child’s participation in the Torrance
County Fire Department Cadet Program. To the fullest extent allowed by law, I hold harmless and
agree to indemnify the Torrance County Fire Department, its officers, directors, faculty, staff,
volunteers, employees and agents, from and against any present or future claim, cause of action, loss
or liability for injury to person or property, which said minor child may suffer or for which said
minor child may be liable to any other person, related to said minor child’s participation in
recreational activities with the Torrance County Fire Department Cadet Program, resulting from any
cause whatsoever, and regardless of fault. I am at least eighteen years of age and have carefully read
and freely signed this Liability Waiver and Release Form (Minor Child). I understand and agree that
no oral or written representations can or will alter the contents of this document.

Guardian Name:

Guardian Signature:

Cadet Name: D.OB.

Date:

30



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
| Policy Membership Application 1.5
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
[ 09/26/2018

TORRANCE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

APPLICATION FOR VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTER

We consider applicants for all positions without regard to race, color, religion, creed, gender, national
origin, age, disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation or any other legally protected status.
Applications are only accepted for a bona-fide job posting. A current resume is acceptable in addition to a

completed application form.

POSITION
POSITION DESIRED:
Date of Application: Date Available to Begin Membership:
Are you 18 years or older? Yes No
Have you applied with Torrance County Fire before? Yes No
If yes, give date:
Position Applied For:
Have you ever been employed with the Town of Estancia before? Yes No
If yes, give date: Supervisor:
Position Held:
Reason for Leaving:
Do you have any relatives currently working for the Town of Estancia? Yes No

If yes, please list:

Please review the job description for this position. Do you have the required type and years of

experience for this position?

O Thave all the experience required for this position.

O Ihave similar experience that is required for this position.
O Thave some of the experience required for this position.
O

I have none of the experience required for this position.

31



Can you perform the essential functions of this position? Yes No

Driving a County vehicle may be required for this position, for training or for conferences. Do

you have a valid New Mexico driver’s license? Yes No
Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes No
Conviction will not necessarily disqualify an applicant from membership

If yes, please explain

Are you a United States citizen? Yes No
Are you prevented from lawfully becoming employed in the
United States because of Visa or Immigration status? Yes No
PERSONAL INFORMATION
Name: Other Name Used:
Social Security Number:
Present Mailing Address:
Street City State Zip Code
Permanent Address:
Street City State Zip Code
How Many Years at This Address? Years_  Months
Daytime Phone Number: Other Phone Number:
Emergency Contact Name: Phone Number:

Are you available to work (circle all that apply):
Full Time Part Time Shift Work  Temporary
Can you travel if the job requires it? Yes No

Are you currently on “lay-off” status and subject to recall? Yes No

EDUCATION & TRAINING
Please attach a copy of all certifications, diplomas licenses and/or awards.
Do you have a high school diploma? Yes No

If yes, name and location of school:

If no, do you have a GED? Yes No
Date Obtained:

32



Did you attend a college or trade school? Yes No

If yes, name and location of school:

Did you graduate? Yes No
Degree (s) obtained:

Dates attended: to

Courses Studied:

Describe any special skills or training:

Indicate any foreign languages you can speak, read and/or write:

List any licenses, certifications, honors and/or awards:

List any community service or volunteer work, past or present:

MILITARY SERVICE

Branch of Service:

Discharge date: Type of Discharge:

Are you currently a member of the Reserves or National Guard? Yes

33

No



REFERENCES

Please list at least 2 business references and only 1 personal reference. Must have been an
acquaintance for minimum one year.

Name:

Address: Phone:

Business: Years Acquainted:
Name:

Address: Phone:

Business: Years Acquainted:
Name:

Address: Phone:

Business: Years Acquainted:

34



WORK EXPERIENCE

Start with your most recent job. Include any job related military service and volunteer activities.

EMPLOYER: Supervisor:
Address: Phone:

Job Title: Dates of Membership: to
Starting Salary: Ending Salary:
Description of Work:

Reason for leaving or seeking other Employment:

If this is your current employer, may we contact them? Yes No

EMPLOYER: Supervisor:

Address: Phone:

Job Title: Dates of Membership: to
Starting Salary: Ending Salary:
Description of Work:

Reason for leaving or seeking other Employment:

EMPLOYER: Supervisor:

Address: Phone:

Job Title: Dates of Membership: to
Starting Salary: Ending Salary:
Description of Work:

Reason for leaving or seeking other Employment:

35



CERTIFICATION AND AUTHORIZATION

I certify that all the information submitted by me on this application is true and complete. I understand
that if any false informatioh, omissions, or misrepresentations are discovered, I will be barred from
membership with Torrance County Fire Department. I also certify that I can provide the necessary
documentation for membership as required on the 1-9 form. I certify that I will adhere to Torrance County
Fire Department Personnel Ordinance and regulations for membership. I understand that membership is
conditional upon the successful completion of a criminal background check, membership verification,
physical and drug and alcohol screen.

Signature: Date:

36



TORRANCE COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE INFORMATION AND REQUIRE MEDICAL
EXAMINATION AND DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING

The applicant is to complete the following information:

L. In connection with my application for membership, I understand that an investigative consumer
report may be requested that will include information as to my character, work habits, performance
and experience, along with reasons for termination of past membership. I understand that as
directed by company policy and consistent with the job described, you may be requesting
information from public and private sources about my: worker’s compensation injuries, driving

record, court record, education, credentials, credit and references.

2. Medical and workers’ compensation information will only be requested in compliance with the
Federal Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and/or any other applicable state laws. According
to the Fair Credit Reporting Act, I am entitled to know if membership is denied because of
information obtained by my prospective employer from a consumer-reporting agency. If so, I will
be notified and given the name and address of the agency or the source which provided the

information.

3. I acknowledge that a telephone facsimile or photographic copy shall be as valid as the original.

This release is valid for most federal, state and county agencies.

4, I hereby authorize, without reservation any law enforcement agency, institution, information
service bureau, school, employer (past and present), reference or insurance company to furnish the

information described in Section I.

5. The following information is required by law enforcement agencies and other entities for positive
identification purposes when checking public records. It is confidential and will not be used for
any other purposes. Ihereby release the employer and agents and all persons, agencies and entities
providing information or reports about me from any and all liability arising out of the request for

or release of any of the above mentioned information reports.

6. I understand that my eligibility for membership and/or continued membership is contingent upon

Torrance County gaining access to these records.

7. I understand that my eligibility for membership and /or continued membership is contingent upon

the required Drug and Alcohol screen.

(Please Print) Last Name First Middle

Any other names used

37



Home Address City

Social Security Number

Driver’s License Number

State Zip Code

Date of Birth

State Issuing License

Name as it appears on Driver’s License

Optional:
RACE: Asian Black

Signature

Application: Approved
Signature of Fire Chief

Disapproved

Hispanic White Other

Date

District Number assigned



Torrance County

Fire Department
| Policy and Procedure
Policy Code of Conduct 1.6
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date;
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE:

To establish policies for the conduct of members of the Department so members will be
informed and perform their duties to the very best of their abilities and in a manner that is
efficient, cost-effective, and meets the needs of the public; while demonstrating valor,
excellence, selflessness, and ethical behavior in the conduct of all department business.

POLICY:

All members have an obligation to conduct their official duties in a manner that serves the public
interest, uphold the public trust, and protects the County’s resources. Members shall control their
behavior and actions so as to avoid any situation that would reflect negatively on them, the
Department, or the County of Torrance. To this end, all members shall have the responsibility to
comply with the following:

1. Violation of Policy

A. Members shall not commit any acts or omit any acts which constitute a violation of
the applicable rules, regulations, policies, procedures, directives, memorandums, or
orders of the Department whether stated in policy or elsewhere.

II. Conduct Unbecoming

A. Members shall conduct themselves in such a manner as to reflect most favorably on
the Department.

B. Conduct unbecoming a member shall include behavior which tends to destroy public
‘respect, tends to bring the Department into disrepute or reflect discredit upon the
member of the Department, or which tends to impair the operation or efficiency of the
Department or member.

C. The following activities are prohibited by members on duty.

1. Unlawful behavior, gambling, lewd or indecent activity, or use of alcohol or
prescription medications not prescribed to the member.

2. Use of department supplies, tools, and material to clean or repair personal vehicles
or property.

3. Alteration or modification of vehicles, apparatus, building, computers, or items of
equipment owned or operated by the Department without the District Fire Chief or
County Fire Chief’s authorization.

39



4. Any conduct which violates the Departmental policies, procedures, guidelines or
any law, statute, regulation, or ordinance.

5. Lying and/or falsification of any report, document, formal or informal
6. Any behavior that violates Torrance County’s Personnel Policy.

7. Any conduct that is in violation of the Governmental Conduct Act, NMSA 1978,
Section 10-16-1 et seq.

II1. Gifts, Gratuities, Bribes, or Rewards

A. Members shall not solicit or accept from any person, business, or organization any
gift (including money, tangible or intangible personal property, food, beverage, loan,
promise, service, or entertainment) for the benefit of members or the Department if it
may reasonably be inferred that the person, business, or organization:

1. Seeks to influence action of any official nature or seeks to affect the
performance or non-performance of an official duty, or

2. Has an interest which may substantially affect directly or indirectly the
performance or non-performance of an official duty.

B. Members shall not-accept any reward from the public for services rendered. -
C. Members shall not accept any bribes.

IV. Abuse of Position

A. Members shall not coercively use their official position, official identification cards,
or badges:

1. For personal or financial gain, or

2. For obtaining privileges not otherwise available to them except in the
performance of duty, or

3. For avoiding consequences of illegal acts.

B. Members shall not lend to another person their identification cards or badges or permit
them to be photographed or reproduced.

C. Members shall not authorize the use of their names, photographs, or official titles
which identify them as members in connection with testimonials, political endorsements,
advertisements of any commodity, or commercial enterprise without the prior written
approval of the Chief.

V. Endorsements and Referrals

A. Members, while acting in an official capacity, shall not recommend or suggest in any
nature the employment or procurement of a particular product, professional service, or
commercial service (such as an attorney, towing service, bondsman, mortician, etc.).

B. In situations involving towing services, when such services are necessary and the
person needing the services is unable or unwilling to procure such services or requests

40



assistance, members shall contact the Communications Center for assistance by a
Sheriff’s Deputy.

VI. Availability for Duty

A. Members shall be properly equipped and cognizant of information required for the
proper performance of duty so that they may immediately assume their duties.

VIIL. Neglect of Duty

A. Members shall not engage in any activities or personal business that could cause them
to neglect or be inattentive to duty.

B. Member shall not leave their assigned duty posts, district, or other area during a tour
of duty except when authorized by proper authority.

C. A member shall not refuse to perform a duty or an assigned task unless it is unsafe to
do so.

VIII. Job Performance

A. Members shall maintain sufficient competency to properly perform their duties and
assume the responsibilities of their positions as defined in position descriptions.
Unsatisfactory performance may be demonstrated by:

1. The failure to conform to work standards established for the member’s rank,
grade, or position.

2. The failure to take appropriate action on the occasion of a condition deserving
attention.

3. Repeated evaluations demonstrating a need for improvement.

4. A written record of repeated infractions of rules, regulations, policies &
procedures, directives, memoranda, or orders of the Department.

IX. Executing Official Documents

A. Members, when signing official documents or reports, shall do so in a legible manner
or shall print their name legibly next to their signature.

X. Courtesy

A. Members shall conduct all dealings with the public, county employees, and other
organizations in a manner that presents a courteous, professional, and service-oriented
image of the Department.

B. Members shall exhibit courtesy and respect to all officers and acting officers. While on
duty, all officers shall be referred to by their appropriate rank.

C. Members shall be tactful in the performance of their duties, shall control their tempers,
exercise the utmost patience and discretion, and shall not engage in horseplay or
disrespectful conduct while on duty.

41



D. Members are required to give their name and rank whenever requested by a member
of the public.

E. Should a member have a complaint against another member or a private citizen, the
member shall forward the complaint in writing to their immediate supervisor.

F. Supervisors shall exhibit courtesy and respect to their subordinates and shall treat all
members in a fair and impartial manner.

G. Members shall not use boisterous, coarse, violent, profane, or insolent language or
gestures and shall not express any prejudice concerning race, religion, gender, disability,
veteran status, political affiliation, national origin, lifestyle, or similar personal
characteristics.

XI. Requests for Assistance

A. When any person requests assistance or advice or makes complaints or reports, either by
telephone or in person, all pertinent information shall be obtained in an official and
courteous manner by the member and shall be turned over to the member’s immediate
supervisor and followed up to management.

XII. Intimate Relationships

A. Intimate relationships (i.e. marriage, dating, living together) between a member and
any other member assigned to supervise or mentor the performance of that member, e.g.
supervisors, trainers, are prohibited.

B. Members in intimate relationships with other members of the department shall not be
allowed to work on the incident.

C. If a prohibited intimate relationship develops, one or both of the members shall advise
the Chief and seek a transfer to another District or Shift.

D. The Department shall attempt to accommodate such requests.
XIII. Public Statements and Appearances

A. Members shall not make statements concerning the County, officials of the County,
the Department, its policies, or its members verbally, written, or other form of expression
where such expression is an intentional untrue statement of fact, is obscene, unlawful,
undermines the effectiveness of the County or the Department, interferes with the
maintenance of discipline, or is made with careless disregard for truth.

B. Members shall not make public statements or public appearances or any other matter
for the purposes of representing the Department without first obtaining written
authorization from the Chief. This position includes, but is not limited to, addressing
public gatherings, appearing on radio or television, preparing articles for publication,
acting as correspondents to newspapers or periodicals, and releasing or divulging
investigative information.

42



XIV. Political Activity

A. Members shall not use their official capacity to influence, interfere with, or affect the
results of a political campaign or an election.

B. Members are prohibited from engaging in any political activity while on-duty or while
in uniform.

XV. Telephone and Addresses

A. Members shall have either a working telephone in their residences or a cell phone.
This number shall be provided to the Department.

B. Members shall immediately report any changes of telephone numbers or addresses to
their supervisor.

XVI. Truthfulness

A. Members are required to speak the truth at all times, whether or not under oath, in
giving testimony, in connection with official orders, and in connection with official
duties.

B. Members shall not make false reports concemning any Department business or the
personal character or conduct of any member. Members shall not falsify any written
documents including patient, EMS, and fire reports.

C. Members shall truthfully answer all questions related to the scope of their employment
and operations of the Department which may be asked of them by another member or
investigating officer.

D. Being untruthful to a superior officer, or during an internal investigation, shall be
grounds for dismissal.

XVIIL Members shall ensure that personal interests do not come in conflict with official duties
and shall avoid both actual conflicts of interest and the appearance of conflicts of interest when
dealing with vendors and other individuals doing business or seeking to do business with the
Department.

XVIII. Members shall ensure that all Department resources, including funds, equipment,
vehicles, and other property, are used in strict compliance with County and Department policies
and solely for the benefit of the County and Department.

XIX. Members shall treat the public and other members of the Department fairly and equitably.

XX. Officers and supervisors shall set an example for other members and have a responsibility to
ensure that their activities and decisions pertaining to community services, personnel actions, and
the management of public funds are consistent with the Department’s policies and practices.

43



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
44



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Discrimination and Sexual Harassment 1.7
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
. 09/26/2018
L |
PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to clearly establish the Torrance County Fire Department’s
commitment to provide a work environment free from discriminatory harassment, to describe what
may constitute discriminatory harassment, and to set forth the procedure for investigating and
resolving internal complaints of harassment. Because of the tremendous importance of having a
workplace free from harassment, this policy shall be reviewed by personnel on an annual basis.
Additionally, during each member’s annual performance evaluation, supervisors shall discuss this
policy with each member to ensure that its contents are known by the member.

SCOPE:

Harassment and discrimination undermine the integrity of individual work relationships, adversely
affect the morale of the entire workforce, and interfere with the Fire Department’s mission to
provide quality services to the citizens of Torrance County. Therefore, it is critical that all members
treat all other members with mutual trust, respect, fairness and dignity. Because of the unique
circumstances present in many Fire Department jobs, it is the responsibility of each and every
member, supervisor and company officer to make sure that there is no inappropriate behavior
occurring in the workplace. Inappropriate behavior which impacts the workplace, or has the
potential to impact the workplace will not be tolerated.

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of membership, including, but not limited to hiring,
promotion, disciplinary action, layoff, reinstatement, leave of absence, compensation and training.

I. DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY.

A. Prohibition against Discrimination and Sexual Harassment. The Torrance County
Volunteer Fire Department is committed to a policy of equal employment opportunity for
applicants and members. Decisions regarding membership, promotional opportunities, benefits,
discipline, and other terms and conditions of membership shall comply with state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in the work place.

The Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department has a zero-tolerance policy for discrimination
based on an individual’s race, color, sex, religion, age national origin, mental or physical disability
or serious medical condition. The Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department reasonably
accommodates membership applicants and members with disabilities. Violations of this policy
will subject a member to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

45



B. Harassment is a Form of Discrimination. For the purposes of this policy, harassment includes
slurs, jokes, demeaning language, or other offensive remarks based on an individual’s race, color,
sex, sexual preference, religion, age, national origin, mental or physical disability or serious
medical condition, and physical conduct.

C. Sexual Harassment. The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission has adoped guidelines
which state that unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or
physical contact of a sexual nature constitute “sexual harassment” when:

1. Submission to the conduct is an explicit or implicit term or condition of an
individual’s membership.

2. The submission to or rejection of the conduct by an individual is the basis
for any membership decision affecting that individual; or

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or
offensive working environment. A hostile work environment may be one
where crude or vulgar language is used, jokes of a sexual nature are told
with regularity, comments are made that demean an individual based or
gender, unwelcome nicknames, such as honey or babe are used, or
photographs, calendars, magazines, etc. of nude or partially nude
individuals are disseminated or displayed.

D. Discrimination and Harassment Complaint Procedure. Any member who feels that she or
he has been the subject of discrimination or harassment as those terms are described above, by
either members or non-members in the work setting, should follow the procedure set forth below
on bringing the matter to the Departments attention:

1. The member should promptly bring the matter to the attention of the Fire
Chief. If the complaint involves the Fire Chief, the matter should be
promptly reported to the County Manager. If the complaint involves the
County Manager, the complaint should be directed to the Board of County
Commissioners and the Board of County Commissioners will appoint a
person to investigate the matter in the manner described in the steps below.
This report must be written.

2. The Fire Chief (or County Manager) will advise the person who allegedly
engaged in the discrimination or harassment of the charge, and the Fire
Chief (County Manager) will conduct an investigation promptly and
impartially. The complaint and investigation will be kept as confidential as
possible at this level, but will include consultation with the County
Attorney.

3. After the investigation, the Fire Chief (County Manager) will determine
whether discrimination or harassment has occurred. The people involved
will be notified of the decision.

4. If a determination is made that discrimination or harassment has occurred,
appropriate disciplinary action, which may include discharge, will be taken.
The severity of the discipline will be determined by the degree and/or
frequency of the offense.

46



5. Members who bring a complaint of discrimination or sexual harassment to
the attention of the Fire Chief (County Manager), or those who assist
another in bringing such a complaint will not be retaliated against.

6. Nothing in these procedures shall prohibit the member from filing a
complaint directly with the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity office
or the New Mexico Human Rights Division. These avenues should be used
when the member feels that the member cannot obtain appropriate relief
within the steps explained above. However members are encouraged to seek
consultation with the Fire Chief or County Manager before filing a formal
complaint of discrimination or harassment with an administrative agency.

47



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)

48



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Discipline, Removal of Officers and 1.8
Members
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018 |
|

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:
The purpose of this policy is to outline the steps to be followed for disciplinary action.

General: All members of the department shall be subject to disciplinary action for failing to fulfill
their duties and responsibilities, including observance of department policies and standard
operating guidelines.

It is the policy of this department to administer disciplinary penalties without discrimination.
Every disciplinary action step shall be for just cause and the member may use the grievance
procedure as outlined in the department policies with respect to any disciplinary action which
he/she believes is either unjust or disproportionate to the offence committed. The officers group

shall investigate any allegation on which disciplinary action might be based before an action is
taken. '

Battalion Chiefs serve at the pleasure of the County Fire Chief. The County Fire Chief may
recommend the removal and or demotion of Battalion Chief and may make recommendation to
the Torrance County Commission.

Detrimental and Improper Conduct: The following shall be considered conduct detrimental to
the welfare and operation of the Department and shall be cause for disciplinary action up to and
including immediate suspension and or dismissal. All officers and members shall be held
accountable and responsible for his/her individual actions:

1. Insubordination (failure to follow a direct order of a superior officer).

2. Failure to perform his/her duty. Dereliction of duty.

3. Failure to follow County Standards, policies and procedures and or a Fire
Chiefs directive.

4. Performing any membership function while under the influence of alcohol,
controlled substances and or mind-altering substances.

5.Negligence.

6.Misuse or mismanagement of Department Funds.

7.Conduct unbecoming an officer or member of the department.

8.Sexual misconduct.

9.Actions that unnecessarily endanger the member, other membersk and or
the public.

49



Disciplinary Process: Disciplinary action against any member shall be progressive and follow
the steps listed below in numerical order. Unless specifically listed, all disciplinary actions shall

follow these steps.

1. Oral reprimand: An oral warning or reprimand is used to correct minor infractions of

performance, conduct or behavior. Members should be notified that further instances may
require additional progressive discipline.

2. Written reprimand. A member shall receive a written reprimand when an infraction is of

a greater degree of seriousness and that for which an oral reprimand may be used, or if a
previous oral warning/reprimand was not effective as corrective action.

1. Step 1: The Battalion Chief shall initiate an investigation to gather

information regarding the infraction and shall appoint a district officer to
assist in the investigation. The district officer shall obtain written statements
from the offending member and any witnesses as part of the investigation
process.

2. Step 2: The officer and Battalion Chief should meet with the member to

review the information and allow the member an opportunity to respond
verbally or in writing.

3. Step 3: If the allegations are substantiated the officer shall review the

information with the Battalion Chief to determine the appropriate
disciplinary action to be taken.

4. Step 4: The Battalion and officer meet with the member and issue the written
reprimand. The member should be asked to sign the document to acknowledge
receipt. The member’s signature does not necessarily indicate concurrence with the
content. If the member refuses to sign the document the Battalion and officer will
date and sign the document to verify, the reprimand should be placed in the
member’s file.

3. Example of Infraction Requiring Corrective Action: The following nstances shall

warrant the initiation of a formal progressive disciplinary process. A written reprimand may
include a demotion, temporary suspension or dismissal from the Department.

1.

NowvwkBRb

Failure of a member to attend required meetings, trainings or to respond to
emergency responses as required, maintain the member’s status in the
Department.

Failure to follow the requirements of a previous disciplinary action.
Misuse or abuse of Department equipment or apparatus.

Misuse or abuse of Department insignia, identification, or privilege.
Interference with the duties of a law enforcement officer.
Misrepresentation of authority and or intimidates a member of the public.
Misuse or abuse of communication equipment and or violation
Department’s communication standards.

Failure to report damage to any station, Department vehicle or equipment
caused by the member or another member of the Department.

Willful falsification of Department or District records or reports.

. Theft of, unapproved appropriation of, or modification to, Department

equipment, vehicles stations, records or supplies.

50



11. Failure to follow and or comply with state and county procurement codes,
rules and regulations.

12. Misrepresentation of qualifications, level of training or licensure or
experience.

13. Harassment (physical, sexual or mental) of another member of the
department.

4. Suspension — Prior to the suspension, or as soon thereafter as possible, the member shall be
given a written statement stating the following:
b. The reason for the suspension
c. The length of the suspension
d. An outline of further disciplinary actions should the misconduct continue
Any member may be suspended pending investigation of an allegation. A copy of each
written statement shall be placed in the members file. If the suspension is for investigation
and the allegation proves false, all statements shall be removed from the members file.

First Suspension — For any reason, requires 15 day suspension.

Second suspension — For any reason, within twelve months of the last suspension,
will require a 30 day suspension.

3. Dismissal — The Fire Chief may dismiss any member who has not completed their
probationary period and is not a full time member without just cause. Members who have
completed their probationary period shall only be dismissed with just cause. A dismissed
member may make a written request to the Fire Chief for the departments’ reasons for
termination. If requested, the department will provide reasons, in writing, within one week.
The notice will contain the reasons for termination, and a statement indicating the member
may respond to the charges both orally and written, and the member may appear before the
review board and/or the Fire Chief to discuss the charges.

Please see Policy 1.9 for the grievance procedure.

** For failure to maintain the minimum requirements for call response and meetings/training,
step 1 shall be bypassed. Call response and training attendance suspensions occurring in the
same 6 month period shall be served concurrently and will be considered as one single
suspension.

** Any other severe infractions, step 1 shall be bypassed.

51



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
52



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Grievance 1.9
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this policy is to outline the proper steps to follow to submit a complaint or
grievance.

General: It is the policy of the department to prevent situations that cause the occurrence of
grievances and to deal promptly with those which occur. A member who has a grievance may
follow the steps outlined below. All grievances must be filed in writing within 5 calendar days
after the event giving rise to the grievance.

Guidelines: This formal grievance and appeal process is applicable for disciplinary actions that
include suspension, demotion or dismissal from the Department. Member who have completed
the probationary period, have the right to the grievance and appeal process.

A grievance should be submitted and appealed in the following order:

A. Request for Hearing:
The member shall file a formal written request for hearing with the Fire Chief within
three (3) working days of receipt of the disciplinary action.

B. Schedule hearing:
Within seven (7) working days of receipt of the written request, the Fire Chief shall
schedule a hearing date, time and location to hear the aggrieved.

C. Hearing:
The Fire Chief, or his designated hearing officer, shall hear the aggrieved and the
evidence and information provided by the District Battalion Chief. The decision of the
Fire Chief is final and cannot be appealed.

Criminal Charges or Convictions: In general, the private life of a member of the Department is
considered personal and outside the jurisdiction and authority of the County. However, when a
member’s action or behavior may have a detrimental effect on the Department, another member
of the Department, or the County, or when an applicant has applied for membership, such action
and or behavior shall be considered when reviewing the application for membership, or the
corrective or disciplinary action or termination of that member.

53



Any criminal conviction occurring prior to application for membership must be disclosed by the
applicant at the time of application. The information will be considered confidential by the
Department and will not be shared unless it is considered to be public information by State
Statute, Attorney General, County Attorney or a Court of Law. It should be noted that any
individual who has been convicted of a crime and has subsequently served his/her sentence has
the right to be considered for membership by the Department. However, the Department reserves
the right to use past criminal conduct, behavior and or conviction as a reason to deny an
applicant for membership.

54



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Driver Qualification 1.10
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this section is to outline the policies and procedures regarding qualification,
training, certification and re-certification of personnel who operate Torrance County Fire
Department owned vehicles on public and private roads and lands.

1. Driver / Operator qualification;

1)
2)

3)

All personnel who wish to qualify to operate Torrance County Fire Department

owned vehicles shall be a minimum of 18 years of age.

All personnel who wish to qualify to operate Torrance County Fire Department

owned vehicles shall be in possession of a current and valid New Mexico driver’s

license and meet the following requirements;

(a) Have had no convictions for Driving Under the Influence of intoxicating drugs or
alcohol (DUI), or Driving While Intoxicated (DWI) within the last 5 years

(b) Have no restriction requiring an ignition interlock.

(c) Have no restrictions on their license which prevents them from legally driving
during any weather condition or time of day.

All personnel who wish to qualify to operate Torrance County Fire Department

owned vehicles shall provide the Station Chief of their district with a copy of their

current and valid New Mexico driver’s license and a signed consent form authorizing

the Torrance County Fire Department to conduct an initial as well as ongoing annual

computerized check of their driver’s license class and status. The copy of the license

and the original consent form will be forwarded to the Torrance County Fire

Department administrative office and a copy of each shall be placed in the member’s

in station personnel file.

2. Driver / Operator Training;

1y

2)

3)

Personnel who wish to operate Torrance County Fire Department owned vehicles
shall complete a county approved Defensive Driving Class (DDC) and present a copy
of their certificate of completion to the Station Chief of their district for placement in
the member’s personnel file. A copy of the certificate will also be forwarded to the
Torrance County Fire administrative office.

Personnel who wish to operate Torrance County Fire Department owned vehicles
shall complete an approved Emergency Vehicle Driver Training class (E.V.D.T.) and
present a copy of their certificate of completion to the Station Chief of the district for
placement in the members personnel file. A copy of the certificate will also be
forwarded to the Torrance County Fire Department administrative office.

Upon successful completion of an approved E.V.D.T. class the member will be issued
a form to be signed by the Station Chief authorizing him/her to change his/her license

55



4

5)

classification to a class E (exempt)

Personnel who wish to operate Torrance County Fire Department owned vehicles

shall upon completion of an approved E.V.D.T. get the class of their current and valid

New Mexico driver’s license changed to a class E (exempt). It is required by the State

of New Mexico for driver / operators to have a current and valid class E license

before operation of any vehicle over 26,001 Ibs. G.V.W.R. (gross vehicle weight
rating). It is required by the Torrance County Fire Department that all personnel
operating a vehicle owned by the Torrance County Fire Department and equipped

with emergency warning equipment (lights and siren) shall be in possession of a

current and valid New Mexico driver’s license with an E classification regardless of

the vehicles G.V.W.R.

(a) Exception: if the member is already in possession of a current and valid state of
New Mexico commercial driver’s license (C.D.L.) of a class A or B for vehicles
over 26,000 Ibs. G.V.W.R. The member will not be required to change to a class E
license.

(b) 1t is recommended that any member with a current and valid New Mexico C.D.L.
Ensure they have a bulk liquid / tanker endorsement before operating any
apparatus classified as a Tanker / Tender.

Personnel who wish to operate Torrance County Fire Department owned vehicles

shall after completion of an approved E.V.D.T. class, and providing a copy of their

new driver’s license showing class E, complete a minimum of ten (10) hours of
observed driving time for each vehicle or type of apparatus to be driven before being
authorized to operate that vehicle. Observed driving time shall be signed off by the

Station Chief of the district, another station officer authorized by the Station Chief, or

a certified E.V.D.T. instructor. It will be the responsibility of the driver / operator in

training to keep track of his/her driving hours and have each driving session signed

off. Personnel may be required to complete more than ten hours of observed driving
time if the Station Chief or any other authorized personnel believe that the member
has not achieved competency with the operation of a specific vehicle or apparatus

type.

3. Driver /Operator Certification;

1)

2)

Upon completion of all requirements laid out in the Driver / Operator Training
section, the Station Chief will “sign off” on the member’s qualification to drive each
apparatus. The original observed driving log for each apparatus the member has
completed certification on shall be signed by the Station Chief and placed in the
member’s personnel file. A copy of the observed driving log signed by the Station
Chief will be forwarded to the Torrance County Fire Department administrative
office.

Once the member has been approved for an apparatus and the Station Chief has
signed off on the driving log the member will then be allowed to operate that specific
apparatus.

4. Driver / Operator Re-certification;

1

All personnel who wish to retain certification as a Driver / Operator must complete a
Torrance County Approved DDC course at a minimum of every 24 months. A copy
of the certificate of completion shall be placed in the members in-station personnel
file, and a copy will be forwarded to the Torrance County Fire Department

56



2)

3)

4)

administrative office.

All personnel who wish to retain certification as a Driver / Operator will be evaluated
at random by the Station Chief, a station officer appointed by the Station Chief, or a
certified E.V.D.T. instructor a minimum of once every 12 months for each apparatus
the member is certified to operate. The original evaluation form will be placed in the
members in-station personnel file and be made available for inspection by the
Torrance County Fire Department administration office when needed.

All personnel who wish to retain certification as a Driver / Operator must maintain a
current and valid class E or CDL license. Upon renewal a copy of the member’s new
driver’s license will be placed in the members in-station personnel file, and a copy
will be forwarded to the Torrance County Fire Department administration office.

All personnel who wish to retain certification as a Driver / Operator must attend an
E.V.D.T. refresher a minimum of every 2 years. A copy of the member’s certificate
of completion shall be placed in the member’s personnel file. A new E.V.D.T.
certificate of completion must be presented to the Station Chief prior to the Chief
signing approval for the member to renew their class E license.

57



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
58



\ Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Drug and Alcohol 1.11
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

It is the goal of this policy that no member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department is ever
under the influence of either alcohol or an illegal controlled substance while responding to alarms,
working on the fire ground, attending training, at fire department meetings or attending fire
department events so as to prevent harm to self or others and to prevent damages to the reputation
and professional image of the Fire Department.

Policy:
1y

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

No member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department shall respond to an alarm,
drive any fire department owned vehicle, attend training drills, attend fire department
meetings, be on Fire Department grounds or attend any fire department event while
under the influence of either alcohol and/or an illegal controlled substance.

Members shall be considered to be under the influence of alcohol when they appear
visibly intoxicated, visibly under the influence of an illegally controlled substance or a
controlled substance not used as prescribed or when their blood alcohol concentration
is above 0.00%.

No member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department shall, at any time, be
permitted to “sleep off” their intoxicated state on Fire Department or County owned
property.

The members of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department agree not to consume
any alcoholic beverages or illegal controlled substances while on fire department
property, while on fire ground operations, while on fire department vehicles or while
otherwise engaged in fire department activities.

No member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department shall come into contact
with any Emergency Medical Services patient with a blood alcohol concentration above
0.00% or while visibly intoxicated or under the influence of an illegal controlled
substance.

All members of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department shall sign this policy
indicating that they have read and understand this policy, agree to be bound by the
policy and consent to be tested for the presence of alcohol and/or controlled substances
in accordance with this policy. Any member who refuses to sign this policy shall not
be permitted to participate in any emergency or non-emergency Fire Department
activities.

Any member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department convicted of driving at
any time while under the influence of either alcohol and/or a controlled substance shall

59



have their fire department driving privileges review by the Fire Chief for possible
disciplinary actions.

8) No member, while wearing a Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department uniform,
shall consume or serve any alcoholic beverages in public.

9) In the event any member is suspected of violating the terms and provisions of this
policy, the highest ranking Fire Department administrative officer may request the
suspected member to undergo testing to determine the presence of alcohol or controlled
substances. In addition, all members consent to such testing in the following events.

a) Investigation of a vehicular accident involving fire department apparatus or
involving a personal vehicle while responding to a fire department alarm or
function.

b) Investigation of a fire ground or training accident involving property damage
or personal injury.

¢) As part of the regularly schedule annual physical examinations.

d) When there is reasonable suspicion of either alcohol and/or a controlled
substance abuse.

Definitions:

Alcohol or alcoholic beverage — any beverage that has an alcoholic content above 0.1 percent by
weight or volume.

Drug — any substance (other than alcohol) included, but not limited to, a controlled substance, an
illegal drug, .and a prescription drug capable of altering an individual’s. mood, perception, pain
level or judgment.

Controlled substance — any drug for which the distribution, sale or consumption is controlled by
law.

Prescription drug — any drug that is prescribed by a duly licensed medical practitioner for thé
individual consuming it.

Illegal drug — any drug or substance for which the sale, distribution, possession or consumption
without proper authorization, is subject to criminal sanction, or a controlled substance consumed,
sold, possessed, or distributed illegally.

Supervisor — the officer or acting officer who is the member’s immediate supervisor in the chain
of command Employee Assistance Program (EAP) — the Counties contracted counseling program
that offers assessment, short-term counseling, and referral services to employees for a wide range
of drug, alcohol, and mental health problems, and monitors the progress of employees while in
treatment.

Member — any person working for the fire department for salary or wages.

Under the influence of alcohol — having consumed alcohol to a point where there is any
concentration in the blood stream. Absolute sobriety or .00 concentration of alcohol is required.

Prescription Drugs: Any member who has been prescribed controlled substances, narcotics, or
hallucinogens shall notify their assigned officer. Their assigned officer shall follow the chain of
command to determine if the safety of the member, citizens, or other fire department personnel
may be affected due to the prescribed medication. It may be determined that the member is put on
a medical leave of absence during the duration.

60



Testing:

Alcohol and Drug Testing Procedures:

The procedures of the fire department in regard to members suspected of using, possession or
being under the influence of alcohol or drugs while on duty are as follows:

1) Reasonable Suspicion: shall include but not be limited to an apparent behavior or
personality change; insubordination; confusion or lack of coordination; irrational conduct
or activity; an appearance of or odor of intoxication, unusually slow or erratic movements
or speech patterns.

2) In cases in which a member is acting in an abnormal manner or appears unfit to perform
their duties in a safe manner; a supervisor has reasonable suspicion to believe the member
is using or is under the influence of alcohol or drugs; the supervisor shall contact a
second supervisor of increasing rank to interview the member. If they feel there are
reasonable grounds that the member is under the influence they shall make arrangements
to take the member to a properly authorized testing facility for alcohol and drug testing.

3) Failure of the suspected member to promptly volunteer to submit to such test, including
signing any required forms, will be deemed an act of insubordination justifying
immediate suspension.

4) In accordance with department policy, the member shall be taken directly home
immediately after the testing and the supervisor shall submit a written report to the Fire
Chief, who will forward it to the County Manager. The report should outline in detail
what happened and what behavior was observed that led the supervisor to believe the
employee was under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs. This report shall be done
within 24 hours of the testing. The results of the testing will be sent directly to the Fire
Chief for appropriate action.

Post-Accident Testing:

1) Any member driving a fire department vehicle that is involved in a motor vehicle accident
involving another vehicle or pedestrian; or a non-driving member who has caused or contributed
to such an accident, shall be tested for alcohol and drugs.

2) Any member who causes, in part or in whole, an incident that results in an injury to another
member which requires treatment at a medical facility may be tested for alcohol and drugs. The
Fire Chief will decide if testing is to be performed.

Alcohol and Drug Possession: Members shall not store or bring into any fire department facility
or vehicle, alcoholic beverages, controlled substances, narcotics, or hallucinogens. Any members
found in violation will be subject to fire department disciplinary procedures.

Hearing:

Any member who feels he or she is aggrieved by this policy may request a hearing before the Fire
Administration at which the member may present evidence of any private testing or witnesses in
his or her behalf.

Disciplinary Action:

61



Any member of Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department who violates this policy, including
the refusal to participate in a test for alcohol or controlled substances is subject to discipline as
determined by the Fire Chief. The penalty for a first violation is a minimum thirty (30) day
suspension and up to possible termination of membership. Any member of Torrance County
Volunteer Fire Department who continues to violate this policy will have their membership
terminated after the third (3%P) offense in any given two (2) year period.

Rehabilitation; Any member, who has tested “positive” on a test pursuant to the policy, may be
directed to the Employee Assistance Program dependent upon the decision of the Fire Chief or
Chief’s designee. The decision will be made pursuant to the nature of the incident requiring the
testing.

Return to Duty: Upon successful completion of rehabilitation, the member may be re-tested and
the results of the test must be negative before the fire department will restore the member to active
duty. Written documentation must be forwarded to the Fire Chief before any return to duty is
granted. The member may be required to undergo a re-test before being allowed to return to duty
at the discretion of the Fire Chief.

62



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Electronic Commulr}:;atlons and Internet L12
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

This policy, will provide the guidelines for using electronic communications. E-mail, Internet
and Intranet are important tools that assist us in providing excellent customer service to the
public as well as our internal customers. Department electronic property or electronic
communications systems should not be used for personal gain, including personal businesses, but
rather to enhance service to the public. Harassment and pornography will not be tolerated. Jokes,
junk mail, chain letters and other non-work related items shall not be sent or forwarded.

DEPARTMENT POLICY

All hardware, software, databases, email, mailbox messages, spreadsheets, files and documents
are the electronic property of Torrance County Fire Department. Department members should be
aware that they are responsible for any information that they generate or distribute through the
electronic system. Department members are expected to prevent the unauthorized use of the
Department’s internet and E-mail systems while logged into the Department’s network by using
password—protected screen savers or other appropriate techniques while away from their
computer.

Any use that occurs on a workstation under that member’s login is presumed to be
performed by that member. Log off the computer when you’re not using it.

PROHIBITED ELECTRONIC PROPERTY AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
USES

Prohibited uses include, but are not limited to:

* Any personal use that interrupts Department business and that keeps a member from
performing his/her work. Department members should not use their Department e-mail account
as their primary personal e-mail address.

* Extensive personal use of the internet for any non-work- related purposes during working hours
which decreases member productivity or results in decreased performance of the Department’s e-
mail system.

* Unauthorized downloading and distributing of copyrighted materials (e.g. music, pictures or
other proprietary information).

* Downloading or copying music, including music obtained legally, for non-business purposes
onto Department computers or servers.

* Unauthorized reading, deleting, copying, modifying, or printing of electronic

communication of another user.

* Using the Department’s electronic connections for private gain or profit (e.g. online gambling,
personal business, etc.).

* Instant messaging through public service providers. (e.g. AOL, Yahoo, MSN, etc.).

63



* Personal software, which allows peer to peer communications between two or more
workstations. (e.g. online chat, KaZaA file sharing, etc).

» Personal use of the Department’s electronic connections for auctions such as eBay.

» Soliciting for political, religious or other non-business uses not otherwise authorized

» Using Department computers for political purpose, including voting. This does not include
using equipment designated for public voting at Department facilities.

» Sending or forwarding junk email, chain letters, or mass mailings.

» Theft and /or forgery (or attempts) of messages or electronic documents.

» Using, accessing, or transmitting pornographic or sexually explicit materials, offensive
threatening, racial, or hate language or images.

* Engaging in any form of harassment, whether sexual or otherwise, or sending any
unwelcome personal communication. It is the perception of the recipient that prevails, not the
intention of the sender.

PRIVACY AND MONITORING

Between the Department and its members and other individuals using the electronic property or
electronic communication systems, the individual user has no expectation of privacy. By using
the Department’s electronic property or electronic communications system, each user
acknowledges that the Department may monitor all such uses. The user specifically consents to
the Department performing the monitoring function.

The Department does not monitor the content of Department electronic property, electronic
communications-or internet access as a-routine matter, but.reserves the right to do so without .
notification. Only Department/Officers or higher may request access and monitoring of
Department electronic communication for members under their supervision.

VIOLATION OF POLICY
Violation of these policies is cause for disciplinary action.

64



Torrance County

Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
Policy Fuel Card Usage 1.13
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:

Authority:

09/26/2018
1

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this policy is to outline the procedure of issuance and use of the Department WEX
fuel Card system. By signature below the employee acknowledges use and proper procedure of the
Fuel Card system.

Department members authorized to fuel Fire department vehicles are issued a (6) digit Driver ID
to be used with the Torrance County Fire Department WEX fuel Card. This document is to verify
that you understand your responsibilities and the department’s policies regarding the use of your
Driver ID.

Fire Department Member Acceptance Statements

1. Thave been issued a Driver ID, which authorizes me to fuel department vehicles only, using the
Torrance County Fire Department WEX fuel Card.

2. Tunderstand that my Driver ID identifies me by name on a fuel receipt and that I am accountable
for all transactions made using my Driver ID. Therefore, I will not share my Driver ID with anyone.
If T believe someone else knows my Driver ID, I will immediately notify the Fire Chief or Town
Clerk. '

3. I'understand that the WEX fuel Card is not to be used for personal vehicles or non-department
purposes. Using the WEX fuel Card for any purpose other than official business use will be
considered theft of town property.

4. T understand that each time I use a WEX fuel Card I am required to completely fill the vehicle’s
fuel tank and enter an accurate odometer reading, amount of fuel and the cost of the fuel. This will
allow the fire department to monitor fuel usage and track required maintenance intervals. I am
required to get a fuel receipt for the fuel purchased, sign and date the receipt and turn in to the
department. My failure to do this may result in disciplinary action up to paying for the fuel
purchased.

5. lunderstand that each WEX fuel Card is assigned to either an individual or department vehicle.
I understand that it is against company policy to swap or share cards between vehicles or to use
any card for other than the intended purpose without prior approval from the Chiefs of the
Department.

65



Evidenced by my signature below, I understand and agree to the above statements.

Employee Name: (Print)

Signature: Date /1

66



Torrance County
Fire Department

Policy and Procedure
Policy Medical Evaluation 1.14
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

To detail the procedures, controls and documentation necessary for
administration of The Department’s Medical Evaluation Program and to
identify if potential firefighters or existing members of the Department have a
medical condition that would limit their functions on an emergency scene.

MEDICAL EVALUATION OF PERSONNEL:

PROGRAM DESIGN:

REQUIREMENT:

Firefighting and other emergency response work has long been recognized as
one of the most hazardous occupations in North America in terms of
occupational death and injury statistics. In addition to direct line of duty deaths
and injuries, there is growing concern about the number of firefighters who
suffer disabling injuries or develop occupational diseases and conditions that
often have debilitating or fatal consequences.

Because of these risks, various agencies have developed regulations which
help to reduce the risk to emergency responders. The Medical Evaluation
program described within this procedure is designed to comply with these
regulations:

Baseline and periodic medical evaluations are specifically designed to evaluate
the member’s ability to perform the Essential Firefighting, Emergency
Medical Service and Other Emergency Response Job Functions, as identified
in the applicable Job Descriptions. Recommendations for specific medical
assessment tools and diagnostic tests according to patient age, sex and risk
status are based upon American Medical Association guidelines and NFPA
1582, Standard for Medical Requirements for Firefighters with exceptions as
noted in this guideline.

All members will be required to fully participate in the Depanﬁlent’s Medical
Evaluation Program as described in this procedure. The Department will
require all members to be declared medically eligible to perform the essential
job functions. Any member not complying with program requirements will be
placed on Medical Leave until they are in full compliance with this program.

67




PROGRAM COMPONENTS:

POST OFFER MEDICAL EVALUATION

As part of the Department’s established hiring practice, a POST-OFFER Medical
Evaluation is required of any candidate who has been made a conditional offer of
membership. This medical evaluation also serves to establish a baseline of medical
data. The offer of membership is extended once the Certified Physician (hereafter
referred to as Physician) certifies the candidate as able to perform the essential job
functions.

INITIAL MEDICAL SCREENING

The Department will administer an Initial Medical Screening for established
Firefighters for whom a Baseline has not been established or is considered to be
outdated. This Initial Medical Screening is based on NFPA 1582, procedures from
other states, and procedures currently being used by cities in Iowa. Based on this
initial screening, the Physician will review the results and prioritize individuals for
follow-up medical evaluations based on risk factors identified. All established
firefighters will have a medical evaluation in order to establish an acceptable
baseline.
MEDICAL EXAMINATION
Prior to the medical examination, the firefighter will fill out a Medical History

Questionnaire. The Physician will review the Questionnaire and determine if
additional examinations and testing are necessary.

The medical evaluation shall include a medical examination according to the
following schedule:

e Ages 29 and under — Every 4 years
e Ages 30 to 39 — Every 3 years

e Ages 40 to 49 — Every 2 years

e Ages 50 and above — Every year

This schedule may be accelerated for specific individuals at the discretion of the
physician based on any risk factors identified during previous medical
evaluations or exams or based on information obtained in the questionnaire.

The Baseline and Periodic Medical Examination will include the following
components:

e Personal Medical History including occupational history and history
of exposure

e Physical Examination by a Board Certified Physician

e Vision Screen

e Pulmonary Function Testing (Spirometry) (If necessary)
e Any other testing deemed necessary by the Physician

68



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Medical Stand-by 1.15
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide consistent guidelines, practices, and
communication for the public and allied agencies with regard to requesting EMS unit
apparatus and personnel standbys within the unincorporated areas of Torrance County.

DEFINITIONS

A. Dedicated Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Standby
I Dedicated standby EMS service, meaning a fully staffed Rescue / Ambulance,
will be located at a function or event and will remain dedicated to that event.
The standby ambulance will not be available for other, routine EMS calls in the
area. Dedicated standbys are subject to the availability of Torrance County Fire
Department crews and resources.
II.  Certain events may warrant a Dedicated EMS Standby Rescue / Ambulance as
determined by the Chief or Assistant Chiefs.

B. Non-Dedicated Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Standby
I Non-Dedicated EMS Service, meaning a full staffed Rescue / Ambulance,
will be located at a function or event, but will remain available for EMS calls
within the area. Consistent event coverage is not guaranteed and is subject to
the availability of the Torrance County Fire Department crews and resources.
In order to be eligible for this type of service the following conditions must
be met
1. This event must be open to the general public
ii. This event shall have no more than 500 attendees and staff and shall
not involve any high risk activity as determined by the Chief or
Assistant Chiefs.

1 POLICY
A. All Torrance County Fire Department covered standbys shall adhere to current federal,
state and local laws and regulations.

69



B. All Torrance County Fire Department personnel covering standbys shall adhere to the
Torrance County Fire Department EMS Protocols as well as the scope of practice
outlined by the State of New Mexico in regards to their licensure level.

2 PROCEDURE
A. Requesting coverage:

L

IL.

II1.

Iv.

All groups requesting EMS standby coverage shall submit said request in writing
to the Torrance County Fire Department Administration Office a minimum of 10
days before the event.

All requests shall be reviewed by the Chief, Operations Chief and EMS
Coordinator.

The Chief or Operations Chief shall make a final determination and notification
to the requester, based on resources and staffing.

The Chief or Operations Chief shall make final determination on whether event
will be a Dedicated or Non-Dedicated EMS Standby.

B. Staffing of Coverage:

I.  All personnel who wish to participate in standby coverage for special events shall
submit their interest in writing or via e-mail to the Operations Chief and or EMS
Coordinator.

II.  The Operations Chief and or EMS Coordinator shall keep a current list, updated
annually, of personnel interested in assisting with standby events.

III. All EMS standby events shall be staffed by a minimum of 2 (two) licensed
EMT’s.

IV. The Operations Chief and or EMS Coordinator will assign crew members to
standby events based on availability, rotating crews to provide all interested
personnel a chance to participate.

V.  Whenever possible personnel shall provide standby coverage in a secondary EMS
response vehicle in order to keep the primary response vehicle(s) available for
routine EMS response.

C. Reporting:

I.  All standbys will be assigned a Call for Service, and will advise dispatch when
the unit clears the event.

II.  Allpatient information will be included in a PCR. There will be one PCR for each

patient contact made.

70



TORRANCE COUNTY
FIRE DEPARTMENT

Policy and Procedure/SOG

Manual
P&P 1.16

Acknowledgement
I have received and read the Policy and Procedure /SOG
Manual of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department

Name and Date

71



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
72



\ Torrance County

Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
Policy Nominal Fee /PPay Per Call / Stipend 1.17
rogram
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:

Authority:

| 09/26/2018

PURPOSE:
The purpose is to provide guidelines for the distribution of the Nominal Incentive Fee
for volunteers within the Torrance County Fire Department.

SCOPE:

County Commission approved funding for the “Volunteer Recruitment and Retention
Nominal Fee Incentive” program for Torrance County Fire Department volunteer
firefighters and EMS responders effective April 1, 2016. This is NOT an hourly rate
of pay or based on the member’s productivity, but rather a nominal incentive fee paid
to department volunteer members for participation in department activities, response to
Fire, EMS and Public Assist incidents.

. Eligibility:

1. All TCFD volunteers must fill out an Incentive Program application indicating
their membership status and understanding of the program. Participation in this
program is voluntary and members may decline participation.

2. Participating members must fill out IRS forms W-9 and W-4 and I-9 which will
be provided by TCFD. No payments will be made without these forms correctly
and completely filled out and on file.

3. An active member of the fire department who meets and is maintaining the
requirements of an operational or administrative volunteer as set forth in the
department policies and procedures, are eligible for the Nominal Fee Incentive
Program. Volunteers must meet all requirements, be a member in good standing
and off probation.

. Probationary Members:

New recruits must satisfactorily complete a minimum of six (6) month probationary
period to be eligible for the nominal fee. All recruits must be in good standing and meet
all the requirements of a probationary member as outlined in the TCFD P&P’s.

. Required Training*:

Defensive Driving Certification

DOT Certified Physical (must pass)

VFIS Certified Emergency Vehicle Operations Course
Class E License

CPR AEDY Basic First Aid Certification/Recertification

73




FEMA NIMS Required Online Course

(100, 200, 700 and 800 Nominal Fee is for complete series; Certificate of completion

is required).
*Required training is any course or class that shall be completed within six month probationary
time to fulfill the necessary training for the volunteer member to perform his/her assigned duties
as set forth by the Governing Body of said activity.

D. Nominal Fee for Pay Per Call Response:
For a member to receive pay per call, the member must be off probation. For EMS pay
per call, certified EMT (First Responder or above). For Fire pay per call, acquired
enough fire training to be considered FF1 per Authority of Jurisdiction (as approved by
the N.M. State Fire Marshal’s Office), ISFAC Firefighter I or Pro-Board Certification.

1. Fire ($15.00)
This includes Fire, Public Assist/Lift Assist, Extrication and any call that requires
a Firefighter. The Firefighter must remain on scene until released by the Incident
Commander.

2. EMS (810.00)
To receive the nominal fee for an EMS call the responder must be licensed at or
above the First Responder level with a current CPR card and a current Class E
license. ,

3. Dispatched but cancelled enroute ($5.00)
Any call where units are dispatched and the unit or member is cancelled enroute to
the scene or duty assigned station.

E. Nominal Fee for Battalion Chiefs:
The nominal fee paid to each Battalion Chief is a monthly lump sum. The amount of
the payment is dependent on the districts ISO rating. See the following:
ISO 6/7  $500.00 per month
ISO8/9  $250.00 per month
To be eligible for the monthly lump sum payment Station Chiefs must meet the
following requirements.

a) All required reports must be verified and entered into ERS.
b) Minimum of 8 hours documented station training per month. (Can be
included in the 24 hours station coverage, if performed at the station).

¢) Minimum of 24 hours documented station or shift coverage per month.

d) Minimum of 1 Business meeting per month.

e) All logs and forms verified and submitted by the 10'" of each month.
*These requirements will be detailed by the Torrance County Fire Chiefs Office where
applicable. Failure to complete any 1 of the mandatory requirements above will result in
forfeiture of the respective month’s lump sum payout.

74



Nominal Fee for Assistant Chiefs, Safety Officer and Coordinators covering
multiple districts.

a. Operations Assistant Chief (8750.00)
b. Support Services Assistant Chief ($750.00)
c. Safety Officer ($250.00)
d. EMS Coordinator ($250.00)
€. Training Coordinator ($250.00)
f. Wildland Coordinator ($250.00)
g. Search and Rescue Coordinator ($250.00)

To be eligible for the monthly lump sum payment Chiefs and Coordinators must meet
the following requirements.

a. Minimum of 8 hours documented training per month. (Can be
included in the 24 hours station coverage, if performed at the
station).

b. Minimum of 24 hours documented station or shift coverage per
month.

c. Attend Chiefs or District meeting per month or when held.

d. Fuel logs verified and submitted by the 10" of each month.

*These requirements will be detailed by the TCFD County Fire Chiefs Office where applicable.
Failure to complete any 1 of the mandatory requirements above will result in forfeiture of the
respective month’s lump sum payout. All Chiefs, Safety Officer and Coordinators will only
be allowed to receive cither Stipend or pay per call. They will not be allowed to receive
both,

F. Payment:

Eligible members must submit an approved, signed pay voucher quarterly to the Station Chief.
Copies of Certificate/License must be included. The fully completed Pay Vouchers, signed by
the Volunteer and the Station Chief must be submitted to Fire Administration by the 5th day
following the end of the calendar quarter. Pay Vouchers will be distributed to the Battalion
Chief following distribution from County Administration to Fire Administration. All district
documentation shall be submitted to Fire Administration by the 5™ day of the following month
on a monthly basis.

The Nominal Fee Payment is only in effect for the current calendar guarter, no retroactive
pay will be issued for previous quarters. Once a member is off probation they do not receive

retroactive pay for probation time.

The Calendar Quarter dates are as follows: 1% quarter-January 1-March 31, 2™ quarter-April 1-June
30, 3™ quarter-July 1-September 30, 4% quarter-October 1-December 31.

75



(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
76



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Promotional Procedure 1.18
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority: |
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide a systematic method for the selection of department members for
promotion to a higher ranking position. This method will be used to select the most qualified member for
promotion to a vacant officer position. This selection is to be based on merit and a member’s ability to
fulfill the obligation of the position.

Selection Process:

A. Notification: The Chief of the Department shall announce to the department membership, in
addition to posting a written notice that applications (letter of intent) will be accepted for the officer
selection process. A date shall be established as a deadline for the submission of an application.

B Application: Members wishing to apply for the position shall submit a letter of intent; complete
a brief questionnaire; and a department application. If the applicant desires, additional information
concerning personal background and/or qualifications for the position may be submitted at this time
in the form of a resume of not more than five pages in length.

C Record Review: Fire Administration shall review the submitted applications and the applicant’s
personnel record, comparing the information with the minimum requirements of the position
applied for. Applicants that are members in good standing and meeting the minimum requirements
will then have their completed questionnaires reviewed by Fire Administration.

D. Evaluators/ Evaluations: Evaluators for any aspect of an assessment center evaluation shall be
select evaluators who could be from outside the Torrance County Fire Department as needed. The
evaluators shall prepare written or oral evaluations fo all applicants. These evaluations shall be
forwarded to Fire Administration who will determine if the candidate should be ranked and
recommended to the Fire Chief for further consideration.

E. Interview with Chief: Once the list of candidates has been forwarded to the Fire Chief, the Fire
Chief will interview the candidates and place those candidates he/she approves into the vacant
position.

F. Probationary Period: Each newly promoted officer will be placed on a probationary evaluation
period of six months. Failure to adequately meet the fundamental and ancillary responsibilities shall
be cause for return to their previously held position. In addition, all other date sensitive
requirements as listed on the job specification must be completed. Failure to meet these
requirements shall be cause for return to their previously held position or an open position
designated by the Fire Chief.

77



G. Promotional Preparation: There are a number of potential ways to ‘prepare for promotional
examinations and the ultimate responsibility that comes with the position. A number of methods
may be:

1. First meet the qualifying requirements (certifications, etc.)
2. Volunteer for leadership positions within the Department.
3. Read, review and understand the following texts:
a) Department Standard Operation Guideline and Policies

b) IFSTA appropriate position and/or leadership material.

78



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
Policy Resignation 1.19
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to outline the procedure for member resignation.

POLICY:

o

A written letter to the Fire Chief is required for resignation from the department.
All equipment and issued gear must be returned and inventoried.

Any member resigning from service with the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department
and wishing to return may come back within 6 months and be subject to probation period
determined by the Chief pending all new member procedures have been followed.

Pay per call and or Stipend check will be held until all equipment is returned.

79




(This Page Left Intentionally Blank)
80



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Safety Vest Use 1.20
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this Policy is to describe the required personal protective apparel to be wormn by Torrance
County Fire Department members when working at an incident that places the member in or near
moving traffic. Incidents such as vehicle collisions/injury crashes, extrications, fluid spills, dangerous
conditions, and vehicle fires are typical situations where this policy is applicable.

BACKGROUND

For incidents where exposure to the hazards of moving traffic are present for fire department personnel
working on foot, this department policy can be summarized in the statement: “If your feet are on the
street, your vest is on your chest.” Conforming to this policy places the member in compliance with
Federal law 23 CFR Part 634 and applicable provisions of the Federal Highway Administration’s
Manual on Uniform Traffic Devices.

PROCEDURE

Specifically, when the nature of the incident requires the member to work in or near moving traffic, the
following personal protective apparel shall be worn;

o Structural Fire Helmet with chin strap properly donned

o ANSI 107-compliant Class II vest, Class Il Highway Safety garment, or ANSI 207 Public
Safety vest

o Protective Footwear

If a member prefers to wear a structural turnout coat due to inclement weather (i.e. rain, cold, etc.), or is
required to wear structural turnout gear due to duties assigned at the incident scene, the ANSI highway
safety vest must be donned over the turnout coat. Turnout coats are not acceptable as high-visibility
highway safety apparel when donned without the ANSI-compliant vest on the outside of the coat.
Structural bunker pants and boots may be worn in lieu of standard protective footwear.

NON-VEST INCIDENTS

Several unique incident types may be encountered where the donning of a highway safety vest may
actually increase risk of injury for the fire department member or where wearing of a vest may in fact
be otherwise impractical. Under these limited situations, the requirement for donning ANSI-compliant
vests by members directly involved in hazard area “Hot Zone” activities is modified.

81



The exemptions for wearing a highway safety vest applies only to members directly involved in
activities within an established “Hot Zone” and only when the “Hot Zone” is protected from the hazards
of moving traffic by apparatus blocking, lane closures, etc.

The required ANSI-compliant Highway Safety vest need not be worn when a member is required to;

1) Don structural PPE and SCBA to work in close proximity to a source of heat such as during
suppression of a vehicle fire,

2) Don hazardous material personal protective equipment to avoid potential exposure to chemicals
or other contaminants, or

3) Don technical rescue PPE and/or equipment for a technical rescue incident such as extrication,
high or low-angle rope rescue, swift water rescue, etc.

All members on-scene performing duties or involved at activities other than those listed above are
required to don ANSI-compliant vests when working in or near moving traffic.

Members directly involved in source of heat, chemical, or technical rescue activities as listed above who
complete their activities within the designated Hot Zone are required to don ANSI-compliant vests once
their activities within the Hot Zone are completed or they leave the immediate “hot Zone’ area of the
incident scene.

82



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy Social Media Usage 1.21
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

“Social Media” is the term given to websites, online tools and interactive communication
technologies that allow users to interact with one another to share information, opinions,
knowledge, photos and interests. Examples of social media include such web platforms as blogs,
message boards, wikis, social and professional networking websites, and content sharing sites.

Social media is a great way to connect with others, exchange knowledge, share information and
promote cooperation.

However there are also possible risks for both firefighters and the Department related to each of
the various forms of social networking. The purpose of this document is to inform firefighters
about the policy of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department with regard to social media in
order to ensure that they remain in compliance with this policy when using multi-media and social
networking websites.

Basic Rules to Follow when Using Social Media

Below are the current and official "Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department Social Media
Guidelines." These will be reviewed and adapted periodically to reflect emerging technologies and
online social tools. The rules for social media continue to evolve as new technologies and social
networking tools become available.

1. Firefighters have no reasonable expectation of privacy when using Torrance County Volunteer
Fire Department or Torrance County owned or provided devices or networks. The Torrance
County Volunteer Fire Department reserves the right to monitor use of its devices or networks,
including but not limited to Internet access and social media use; to retrieve data from third party
service providers paid by the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department; and to shut down,
without prior notice, any Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department sponsored social media
platform for any reason, and to delete content on its social media sites without providing a reason
or notification at its sole discretion. The Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department further
reserves the right to block access from its networks and assets to any internet site at its sole
discretion as permitted by applicable law.

2. Any software or other downloads on Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department equipment or
devices must comply with IT guidelines, licensing compliance and protections against viruses,
spyware, malware or other threats to electronic systems.

3. Social media activities should not interfere with work commitments.

83



4. Information published on social media sites should comply with the Torrance County Volunteer
Fire Department’s confidentiality policies.

5. Torrance County Firefighters are personally responsible for the content they publish on-line,
whether in a blog, social media site or any other form of user-generated media. Be mindful that
what you publish will be public for a long time—protect your privacy and take care to understand
a site's terms of service.

6. Identify yourself—name and, when relevant, role at the Torrance County Volunteer Fire
Department— when you discuss the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department or Torrance
County Volunteer Fire Department -related matters. You must make it clear that you are speaking
for yourself and not on behalf of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department.

7. If you publish content online relevant to the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department in
your personal capacity use a disclaimer such as this: "The postings on this site are my own and
don't necessarily represent the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department’s positions, strategies
or opinions."

8. Be respectful to the department, your colleagues, and the general public.

9. Respect copyright, fair use and financial disclosure laws.

10. Only members of the Department who are assigned the responsibility to be spokespersons are
authorized to act as spokespersons on behalf of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department
on any topic in any forum or in response to any inquiry.

11. Don't use the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department logos or trademarks unless approved
to do so.

This policy applies to all members of the Torrance County Volunteer Fire Department. Please sign
below to acknowledge that you have read and agreed to abide by the above policy. If you have any
problems in regard to abiding by this policy please talk to Fire Chief about your concerns.

Member Signature Date

Printed Name Date

84



] Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Policy | Standard Operating Guideline 1.22
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

To establish a process to develop, place into force and review Standard Operating Guidelines. This policy
applies to all members of the department.

Policy:

A Standard Operating Guideline (SOG) establishes a standard course of action and guidance for members
of the fire department. Not all possible situations can be covered by SOGs as such SOGs may need to be
modified in response to site-specific conditions. Such modifications shall be under the direction of the
officer in charge of the incident.
Procedure:

Needs Assessment

MR

The first step in developing SOGs is a needs assessment. Questions such as: “What is the issue or
root cause that is driving the development?”, “What is to be accomplished?”, “How will this
affect current department policies and procedures?” etc. are to be considered by the development
team.

Items to consider during needs assessment are:

department mission

operating environment

regulatory requirements

standards of practice

local needs

any other item identified by the development team

Implementation

The membership will be informed of the new or modified SOG going into effect at a regular fire
department monthly meeting. Subject of and the modifications to the SOG will be reviewed at
this time. A copy of the SOG will be updated in the master book at the fire station.

It is each member’s responsibility to know and understand their roles under the SOG.
Key points each member should understand:

e knowledge and skill necessary to implement
e safety & affectivity
¢ understand consequences to safety and performance for failing to comply

85




The officers of the department will monitor performance, identify potential problems and provide
support in the implementation process of the SOG.

Evaluation
On an on-going basis all SOGs shall be reviewed for overall effectiveness.

Ttems to review include:

changes in department operations that occurred as a result of the SOG
purpose and objectives of the SOG are being accomplished
membership understanding

adherence to the SOG, if not — why not

A special evaluation of an SOG shall be taken under the following conditions:

change in federal, state, or local laws and regulations
change to NFPA or other standards

change in equipment

change in mutual aid or other agreements

incident that resulted in a bad outcome

new or special construction in protection district

Enforcement
All members of the department shall follow all active SOGs. Not all possible situations can be

covered by SOGs as such SOGs may need to be modified in response to site-specific conditions.
Such modifications shall be under the direction of the officer in charge of the incident. Members

in violation may be disciplined following the departments discipline policies.

86



Torrance County

Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
Policy Vehicle Operation and Maintenance 1.23
Scope: ' Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
| 09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:
The purpose of this Policy is to ensure safe operation and management of vehicles.

Guidelines

Training:

1. All new members of the department shall receive full driving training during the 6 month
probation period and may not operate any vehicle during a response until this training has
been completed. All new members must also complete CPR training before driving as
well as Defensive driving and EVOC.
All existing members shall participate in training at a minimum of every 12 months.
Training should include:

a. Review of this policy and applicable state laws regarding emergency vehicle

operations
b. Driving practice as needed on various apparatus

wi

Responding:

1. Vehicles shall always be operated in a safe and prudent manner and in accordance with
any additional guidelines provided by the department and in compliance with the New
Mexico vehicle and traffic law.

2. While traveling with lights and sirens, all vehicles shall come to a complete stop at all
red lights and stop signs to check for other traffic before proceeding through the
intersection.

3. While traveling with lights and sirens, all vehicles shall maintain a speed that permits
operation in a safe and prudent manner.

4. While the driver is in control of the operation of the vehicle, the officer is ultimately

responsible to ensure the safe operation of the vehicle and ensure that all passengers

are securely positioned on the apparatus. All passengers shall be seated and passenger
restraint devices buckled prior to vehicle being put into motion with the exception of
medical personnel providing patient care in the ambulance.

All drivers must have a valid New Mexico driver’s license and be 19 years of age or older.

6. Vehicle operators shall be physically able to operate the vehicle and have completed the
probationary training for operation and driving of the vehicle.

7. Talking on cellular phones or operating GPS units, MDT, or other electronic devices is
discouraged while driving Torrance County Fire Department apparatus.

b

87



Miscellaneous:

1.

All apparatus shall be equipped with back-up alarm devices if possible and, in
addition, one or more firefighters should be positioned at the rear or side of the
apparatus to assist in backing it up if the personnel is available.

All apparatus should be examined on a regular basis for routine maintenance items and
the evaluation checklist as approved by the department shall be completed. The Fire
Chief shall also arrange for a maintenance program for each piece of apparatus

as per the manufacturer's recommendation. The work should be completed by persons
capable of doing such maintenance. Unsafe or non-serviceable equipment should be
removed from service until it is repaired and the Battalion Chief notified.

No apparatus shall be removed from the fire station without permission from the
Battalion Chief, other than for a call, training, or maintenance.

Equipment incident reports shall be completed for any missing, damaged, or

inoperable equipment or other vehicle problems.
5. No unauthorized person shall operate department vehicles.

6. No equipment will be relocated, removed, or added to department vehicles without

notification of members and authorized by the Fire Chief.
7. All vehicles and equipment will be refueled and cleaned inside and out after each call.

Backing Vehicles

1.

When the vehicle is manned by only the driver, they shall attempt to utilize any available
fire department personnel to act as spotters. Where no personnel are available to assist,
the vehicle driver shall make a complete 360-degree survey of the area around his vehicle
to determine if any obstructions are present, prior to backing the vehicle.

When backing, the spotter should be located off the left rear corner. The vehicle shall not
be backed until the spotter is in position and communicates approval to start backing.
Spotters will remain visible to the driver. Anytime the driver loses sight of the spotter, the
vehicle shall be stopped immediately.

Backing will resume when the spotter is visible. Departmental policy prohibits tailboard
riding at any time. When vehicles must be backed where other vehicle traffic exists, the
vehicle's emergency lights (if equipped with such lights) shall be operating. Whenever
necessary, personnel shall be assigned to traffic control. Under these conditions, spotters
and traffic control personnel shall wear orange safety vests or turnout coats.

ladder, etc. according to manufactures specifications, after its repair, or if it appears
damaged. As new apparatus is ordered, it will incorporate enclosed seating areas for all
firefighters and in addition may incorporate other safety features as recommended by
NFPA 1901 standards.

88



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure

Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance
Policy 1.24
Program
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
04/16/2019

PURPOSE

This policy establishes procedures for department vehicle and equipment maintenance.

RESPONSIBILITY

1. All Chief and Company Officers have the responsibility to comply with and ensure that the
personnel under their command are adequately trained, fully understand, and comply with
this policy.

2. All firefighters have the responsibility to learn and follow this policy.

POLICY

A

Manufacturer’s instructions shall be considered as minimum criteria for the inspection
maintenance, and repair of any apparatus or equipment.

All apparatus and equipment shall be inspected and operated at least once a week/month

as detailed on the Torrance County Fire Department Apparatus Inspection Checklist.

1. The Company Officers of each district will assign members to their respective
apparatus for inspection.

a. When personnel are operating the Hurst Tools, cut off saws and chainsaws
during this weekly/monthly check, turnout coat, pant, helmet, safety glasses
and ear protection shall be worn.

2. Thorough documentation shall be completed for each vehicle.

a. The Company Officer in charge of the respective district shall review and
also sign the Apparatus Inspection Checklist in addition to the firefighters
completing the form.

3. The timeframe of this inspection is outlined in Policy 100.08, Meetings. The meeting
date is subject to change at the discretion of the Fire Chief,

All apparatus and equipment shall be inspected and maintained and/or repaired after

every use.

1. A Post Incident Apparatus Check Sheet shall be turned in with the incident report for
each responding apparatus.

89




a. When the incident is of magnitude, i.e. structure fire, the Torrance County
Fire Department Apparatus Inspection Checklist shall be used to check
apparatus to ensure all tools/equipment are back, clean and operational.

. Preventative maintenance shall be performed on all apparatus and other applicable

equipment at least annually.

1. The details of the preventative maintenance for each apparatus are listed on a check
sheet and vary from year to year. The Fire Chief has the records.

. All repairs to apparatus and equipment shall be made by qualified personnel experienced

with the type work to be performed in accordance with the vehicle and/or equipment

manufacturer instructions.

1. Notify the Assistant Chief — Maintenance when apparatus repairs are needed.

2. Some equipment must be certified or tested before putting it back in service. The test
equipment is not available so repairs and testing shall be conducted by certified
person.

. All apparatus and equipment shall be cleaned after responding to an incident or other

function.

1. Washing apparatus is defined as using approved soap and water.

2. Based on conditions dictated by a Chief Officer, the apparatus may be left to be
cleaned at a later date and time.

. When a piece of apparatus is in need of major repair, that vehicle shall be unloaded per
the instruction of the Fire Chief.

. If a piece of apparatus or equipment is found to be defective or in need of repair for safe
operation, the apparatus or equipment shall be declared unsafe, tagged and taken Out Of
Service (See Out of Service Tag Procedure below)
1. When a piece of apparatus is taken out of service the following notifications shall be
made:
a. Assistant Chief — Maintenance
b. Company Officer for piece of equipment
¢. Fire Chief
2. When all necessary repairs and any required certification tests are complete the
apparatus or equipment will be returned to service.

Tire pressure checks of apparatus shall be performed by the Assistant Fire Chief -

Maintenance and one designated firefighter appointed by the Assistant Fire Chief -

Maintenance.

1. The appointment shall be on file with the Fire Chief.

2. The Assistant Fire Chief - Maintenance and firefighter shall have documented
training on this topic in their training file.

3. These tire checks are to be done at least quarterly and can be done more often as
scheduled by the Assistant Fire Chief - Maintenance.

4. Filling of tires with air shall be done with the portable shop air compressor only.

a. When filling tires with air, the remote fill hose shall be used.

90



J. Out of Service Tag Procedures
1. Whenever a piece of equipment or apparatus is placed out of service, a two part tag
shall be completed with the following information on it:
Date/Time
Item identification
Identification number if applicable
Normal stored location of the item
Problem or defect
Reported to a Chief or Company Officer
Person taking equipment or vehicle Out of Service
Date and time
The top portion of the Out of Service Tag shall be place on Out of Service
Tag Clipboard
The bottom portion shall be affixed to out of service equipment.
When the equipment or vehicle is returned to service the Out of Service Tag
on clipboard shall be signed by the person putting equipment or vehicle
back in service.
1. The completed tag should be filed with or by the Fire Chief

MER S Ae o

o

References — Risk and frequency classification information -
http://firefighterclosecalls.com/sopsog. php,

91



Torrance County
Fire Department
Policy and Procedure
Policy Vehicle Response 1.25
Scope: Department Administration Volunteer
Torrance County Fire Chief Effective Date:
Authority:
09/26/2018

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

The purpose of this Policy is to clearly define vehicle response as it applies to each alarm type.
The initial roll order assumes all units are available for response. If any units are unavailable,
comparable units shall respond in place of those listed. Mutual aid alarms will be as listed unless
requesting agency or an officer indicates otherwise.

Definition:

1. Code 1 — (Non-emergent) No lights or siren. Do not exceed the speed limit. Obey
all traffic laws.

2. Code 3— (Emergent) Use of lights and siren. Obey all traffic laws (Maximum
speed for Command units, brush trucks and Engines, will not exceed 10 mph over
the posted speed limit, tenders shall obey posted speed limit).

Guidelines:

1. All vehicle engines will be left running at all times unless the officer in charge
indicates otherwise.

All vehicles will maintain a minimum of 300 feet interval during response to
calls.

Seat belts are to be worn at all times while vehicle is moving.

There will be no smoking in any Fire Department vehicles.

The Chief or another officer may change the order of response.

The driver is prohibited from using a cell phone while driving.

Response shall follow the status listed in this SOG unless the Incident
Commander indicates otherwise.

8. While traveling code 3, all vehicles shall come to a complete stop at all red lights
and stop signs to check for other traffic before proceeding through the
intersection.

9. Response level to the hospital will be determined by the primary EMT and should
be assumed as non-emergent unless otherwise directed.

10. Avoid backing whenever possible. If the unit has to be backed always have a
spotter. If no spotter is available always back to the driver’s side with caution.

On Scene:

b

NNk W

1. Warning lights - Shall be used at the scene of any incident when the emergency
vehicle is required to park in a traffic way or other area that may present a traffic
hazard.

92



Agenda Item
No. 12-E



PO Box 48
205 9" Street
Estancia, NM 87016
(505) 246-4725 Main Line (505) 384-5294 Fax

County Commission

Commissioner Lonnie Freyburger, District 1
Commissioner Leanne Tapia, District 2
Commissioner LeRoy M. Candelaria, District 3

County Manager
www.torrancecountynm.org Joy Ansley
Deputy County Manager
Annette Ortiz

REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON THE TORRANCE COUNTY
COMMISSION AGENDA
This form must be returned to the County Manager’s Office ONLY!

Deadline for inclusion of an item is WEDNESDAY, NOON prior to the subsequent meeting.
All fields must be filled out for consideration.
Name: Martin Rivera Sheriff
First Last Department / Company / Organization Name
Today’s Date: 4/11/2019 Mailing Address:

(Departments/employees of Torrance County need not include their address)

Telephone number/Extension: Fax Number:

Would you like this Agenda Faxed to you? Yes

No

Email Address: Sdunlap@tcnm.us

Is this request for the next Commission meeting? ¥ If no, date of Commission Meeting:

Brief explanation of business to be discussed:
Deputy Salary Increase

Patrol Sergeant Positions

Is this a Resolution , Contract, Agreement, Grant Application, Other?

Has this been reviewed by Grant Committee? Y& NO If yes, corresponding paperwork must be attached.

Has this been reviewed by the County Attorney? YES NO

If this is a contract, MOU, or Joint Powers Agreement there must be a signature line for the County Attorney on the original contract.

Has this been reviewed by the Finance Dept? Y55 o Comptroller Initials:
No Impact
Change in current fund
Raise Budget (allow 45 days after Commission approval)
Change in funds (allow 45 days after Commission approval)
Reduction
Transfer funds (allow 45 days after Commission approval)

Other:




Patrol Deputy Salary Raises with 2 Sgt. Promotions

Employee New Hr. Rate Hours Total Pay Periods New Salary
Patrol Sgt. $ 25.00 80 S 2,000.00 26 52,000.00
Patrol Sgt. S 25.00 80 S 2,000.00 26 52,000.00
Detective S 2475 80 S 1,980.00 26 51,480.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy $ 2200 8 |$ 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Evidence S 20.57 80 S 1,645.60 26 42,785.60
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Deputy S 22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 45,760.00
Office Manager S 17.50 80 S 1,400.00 26 36,400.00
Records Clerk S 14.50 80 S 1,160.00 26 30,160.00
Undersheriff S 31.88 80 S 2,550.40 26 66,310.40
Administrator S 30.37 80 S 2,429.30 26 | a memH..\o
Current Salary Budget | 680,243.00
FY20 increase Request Amount m ,,H.Nm.,oco.co,
FY20 Final Salary Budget Request Amount S 806,243.00

_wm_oi is our pay scale for each new hire. Uncertified will start in a Cadet Status and gradually move up in



Patrol Deputy Salary Raises with 2 Sgt. Promotions

pay, in accordance to the below pay scale. Certified deputies will start in a Academy Graduate Status and
gradually move up in pay, in accordance to the below pay scale. These numbers only reflect the Patrol Division
and not the Transport Division, which remain as is.

Cadet - Uncertified $19.00 80 ) 1,520.00 26 S 39,520.00
Academy Graduate $20.00 80 $ 1,600.00 26 S 41,600.00
Probation End $21.00 80 S '1,680.00 26 S 43,680.00

2 Years of Service $22.00 80 S 1,760.00 26 S 45,760.00




Agenda Item
No. 13-4



New Mexico True Grant Summary

Cooperative Marketing Grant Program, NMTrueCoOp.org

Utilized New Mexico True branding to create millions of brand impressions and use proven methods to
attract visitors to NM destinations, attractions and events.

Goal: help communities thrive through tourism

Funding Source: NMTD

Deadline: May 2019 (passed — consider as future opportunity)

Traditional grant program with initiatives proposed by grantee

50/50 match AFTER execution of program and payment

No maximum award

Grantee handles vendor negotiations, insertion orders, vendor payments, creative
trafficking, proof of placement, reporting

Types of Grants
e Flex Grant
o
O
o
Q
@)

Eligible Expenses
= Any media placement
=  Any media vendor
=  Qut of Home/Billboards
= Website Development
= Website Search Engine Optimization
®»  Tradeshow exhibit, fees, booth rentals

e Media Menu Program

O
O
o

Set menu of media programs and production options at negotiated rates

50/50 match PRIOR to program execution

Torrance County pays match in mid July and mid December depending on package(s)
selected

NMTD CoOp Team handles vendor negotiations, insertion orders, vendor payments,
creative trafficking, proof of placement, reporting

Torrance County responsible for making payments to NMTD on time, identifying assets
and creative delivered on time and to spec, respond timely to reviews and approvals,
end of year tracking and impact report to complement MMP vendor reporting



Agenda Item
No. 14



Agenda Item
No. 15



Agenda Item
No. 16



